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10 3.30 3.00
10 1.65 1.50
50 100 0.825 0.75
100 0.55 0.50
0.45 10
0.40 10 0.35
5,000 0.25 5,000
0.20 0.15
0.02
0.23 10
0.28 10 0.33
2023 31
191 106 97
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2023

280 0.70
255 0.64
770 1.92
197 0.49
193 0.48
1,391 3.47
691 1.72
360 0.90
142 0.35
58 0.14
19 0.05
165 0.41
59 0.15
57 0.14
52 0.13
10 0.02
1 0.00
1 0.00
3,317 8.27
660 1.65
185 0.46
43,069 107.44
62 0.15
90 -0.22
51,904 129.48
11,818 29.48

40,086
100.00

5,861
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30
2023
1 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 0.125 2031 15 4,227,742| 3,874,025 3,480,978 .68
2 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 0.125 2024 10 15 3,065,942| 3,011,712 2,912,167 .26
3 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 0.625 2026 15 2,512,658| 2,502,471 2,411,181 .02
4 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 1.375 2044 15 2,693,335| 2,434,807 2,296,692 .73
5 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 0.125 2025 15 2,224,982 2,161,799 2,070,368 .16
6 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 0.750 2028 15 2,126,784| 2,044,165 1,962,074 .89
7 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 0.625 2032 15 1,999,255| 2,077,700 1,935,244 .83
8 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 0.500 2028 15 1,929,072 1,894,226 1,792,947 .47
9 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 1.625 2027 10 15 1,754,212 1,732,181 1,728,966 .31
10 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 0.250 2029 15 1,859,220 1,768,820 1,638,131 .09
11 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 0.875 2029 15 1,529,539| 1,429,794 1,372,932 .42
12 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 2.375 2025 15 1,418,093 1,377,101 1,372,458 .42
13 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 0.125 2032 15 1,564,770 1,535,293 1,370,096 .42
14 |Italy Buoni Poliennali del Tesoro 1.400 2025 26 1,380,051| 1,199,016 1,276,115 .18
15 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 0.250 2025 15 1,305,188 1,274,350 1,227,654 .06
16 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 0.500 2024 15 1,261,330| 1,244,641 1,213,937 .03
17 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 0.125 2026 15 1,247,910 1,234,036 1,170,345 .92
18 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 0.375 2027 15 1,118,107 1,087,091 1,031,321 .57
19 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 0.125 2031 15 1,215,405 1,113,120 1,003,491 .50
20 |Fannie Mae, TBA 4.500 2053 970,664| 1,000,000 969,121 .42
21 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 1.750 2028 15 996,828 955,231 956,605 .39
22 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 0.125 2030 15 1,016,261 950,260 864,981 .16
23 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 2.000 2026 15 892,302 865,312 863,470 .15
24 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 0.375 2027 15 786,075 789,702 749,110 .87
25 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 1.000 2046 15 976,290 858,588 746,090 .86
26 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 0.125 2026 10 15 702,210 662,748 626,499 .56
27 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 0.750 2045 15 748,605 756,250 625,389 .56
28 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 2.125 2041 15 712,571 578,886 624,119 .56
29 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 0.125 2026 15 665,198 633,023 599,242 .49
30 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 0.875 2047 15 597,170 562,680 472,391 .18

77/349



EDINETOOOO

OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)

Ooooooooooooooooooad

2023

89,446,622 13,077,096 17.06 2,494

2014 31
80,930,802 11,832,083 16.62 2,430

2015 31
62,793,186 9,180,364 16.62 2,430

2016 31
38,241,199 5,590,863 17.10 2,500

2017 31
38,320,854 5,602,509 17.13 2,504

2018 31
38,097,687 5,569,882 17.79 2,601

2019 31
39,629,858 5,793,885 19.08 2,789

2020 31
49,135,309 7,183,582 20.59 3,010

2021 31
46,667,122 6,822,733 20.15 2,946

2022 31
40,085,911 5,860,560 19.16 2,801

2023 31
2022 41,335,528 6,043,254 18.45 2,697
10 41,568,998 6,077,388 18.69 2,732
11 42,247,901 6,176,643 19.02 2,781
12 41,938,104 6,131,351 18.89 2,762
2023 40,574,881 5,932,048 19.22 2,810
39,953,100 5,841,143 18.93 2,768
40,982,996 5,991,714 19.45 2,844
40,766,809 5,960,107 19.45 2,844
40,085,951 5,860,566 19.16 2,801
39,803,815 5,819,318 19.11 2,794
40,184,001 5,874,901 19.15 2,800
39,623,697 5,792,985 18.98 2,775
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258,740 819,629 5,243,566
(258,740) (819,629) (5,243,566)
590,870 965,008 4,869,428
(590, 870) (965,008) (4,869,428)
364,900 1,456,548 3,777,780
(364,900) (1,456,548) (3,777,780)
212,200 1,753,400 2,236,580
(212,200) (1,753,400) (2,236,580)
86,150 85,370 2,237,360
(86,150) (85,370) (2,237,360)
17,260 113,350 2,141,270
(17,260) (113, 350) (2,141,270)
124,270 188,409 2,077,131
(124,270) (188,409) (2,077,131)
390,420 81,250 2,386,301
(390, 420) (81,250) (2,386,301)
256,963 326,833 2,316,431
(256,963) (326,833) (2,316,431)
22,770 247,545 2,091,656
(22,770) (247,545) (2,091,656)
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Secrecy Act
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2023 11 2024 10 31
100 10
10 3.30 3.00
10 50 1.65 1.50
50 100 0.825 0.75
100 0.55 0.50

85/349



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

86/349



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

87/349



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

NYSE

60

NYSE

NYSE
NYSE
NYSE

88/349



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

NYSE

NOCP
NAV
NAV NAV

NAV NAV

BMA
BMA

89/349



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2001 100

31
5,000 1972 Exchange Control

Act 1972 BMA
75
100
12
2001
2006

2017
29

90/349



30

45

30

EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

60

60

45

60

30

91/349



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

10

21

10

75

75

92/349



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

93/349



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2021 2022 31
2022 2023 31

131

23 103

2023 31 UFJ
146.20

94/349



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2023

31

2023 31

51,932 7,592
0 0

80 12

230 34

6 1

472 69

55 8

8 1

0 0

TBA 2,665 390
0 0

119 17
55,567 8,124
10,094 1,476
117 17
120 18

0 0

TBA 5,041 737
0 0

0 0

76 11

0 0

15 2

9 1

1 0

8 1

0 0
15,481 2,263
40,086 5,861
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0 0
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2023 31

2,428 355
1 0
2,429 355
191 28
106 15

97 14

8 1

362 53
764 112
1,665 243
(1,246) (182)
0 0

485 71
132 19

5 1
(624) (91)
(3,245) (474)
0 0
(306) (45)
215 31
®) €y
(3,341) (488)
(3,965) (580)

(2,300)  (33)
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20.15 2,946
0.76 111
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0.00 0
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S.C.A. BBH BBH
BBH
2020 FASB LIBOR
Accounting Standards Update ASU 2020-04
ASU  2020-04 2020 12 2022 12 31
2021 LIBOR LIBOR 2023
30 2022 12 FASB ASU 2022-06 LIBOR
2024 12 31
LIBOR
ASU
2022 FASB ASU 2022-03 820
ASU 2022-03
820

ASU  2022-03 2024 12 15
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2023 31
385
385 (96)
1,306 7,249 (2,924)
600
34,038 38,515 (1,570)
11
PIMCO
12
5,000
10
JITF
2023 31 2023 31 2023 31 2023 31
3 187 2 124 211 6,391
2,451 38,419
@n (2,000) (18) (1,333) @60)|  (13,982)
4,315)|  (67,541)
24) (1,813) (16) (1,209) (249) (7,591) @.864) (29,122)
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2023 31 2023 31 2023 31 2023 31
100 3,703 23 453
385 26,286
202 30,795
77 1,922
2 114
11 555
134 9,929
11 586
464 3,643
77 7,804
15 320
108 7,825
820 56,651
1,383 | 148,017
(169), (6,245) (247) (4,734)
@60  (17.824)
a5 (@.850)
@  (5.636)
(16) (952)
oy 3,071)
@)  (3.623)
enl @, 00)
(1.684)]  (13,247)
@)  (4,070)
24) (514)
@  (7.685)
©20)P)| (62,242) )
©63)| (102,618)
69 @542  @4n| @737 @5)|  (4.281) 883 81,395
2022 30 2023 28
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2023 31

e "
LRt 0] (AL

A
L0

LT rAd-2 Lo
Jyake Eeslkredit A5

1. 000% duoe 10,/01,/2050 DEK 1, 31 3 138
L. 00% dwe 10,01,/2053 Ll ]
1. 5005 due 10,/0] 72053 155 21
Mordea Eredit Reallreditaktivsslskeh

05005 due 10,/01/2043 443 45
1. 5008 due 10,01,/2053 200 20
2, 000% doe 100172053 100 11
Nykrodit Bealkradit A/S

1. 0008 duwe 10,/01,/2050 1, 100 115
1. 000% dwe 10/01,/2063 1 11
1. 500% dwe 10,01,/2053 1. 746 153
3. 0000 doe 10,01./2047 ] |
3. 500% duw 10,/01/2053 3 42
Roalkredit Darsark A5

1 000% dwe 10,701 ,/2060 95 a3
1. 000% due 10,/01/2053 350 a8
2 000% due 10,01/2053 100 11
R 0. BN : :

Isparial Brands Finamte PLC

3. 125% due O7/26,/2024 5 200 193

]

ATAT, Ime.

2. B50% dwe 12/01/2033 251 157
A 1, 160
(RS 51, 52T)

A MECFHRME 8. 3%

Fannie e

&, D00 dwe 05,01 ,/2043 ] 5l
& D00% due (29,/01,/2043 187 152
4. 666% doe 190/01/2044 z i
5. k85% due 07,/25/2037 i 'l
B, 518% due O7/55/2037 i i
B. 578% due 05/25/2008 3 3
Fannie Wes, TBA (b}

4. 000% due 07/01/2053 400 378
4. 5008 due 07,/01/2053 1. 000 Gl
b, D00 dwe 07/01,/2063 A0 T
B, BOO% due 07/01,/20563 300 200
. S00% due 07,/01/2053 300 307
Froddie Wac

o TOTS dwe 12/15,/2037 B L3
Ginnie Mas

3. 958% due 04,30,/ 2068 A7 i6
B, TII% due O4/30/2073 20 g
B BLIS due 03020,/2073 201 159
6, 100% due 05,20,/2073 208 206
4RI DR e £ 1 3,317
(EARIEE 33, 350)

B EES 107, 4%

A4 27 LR (2

0, 126% due 10/15/2024 (o) FURL 1 B 2012
0, 125% due 04/15/2025 2. 162 2,070
0, 1258 due 101572025 465 (Y]
i 125% due 04/15/2026 633
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2023 31

HEEH E

i F Rk IRl
01258 due OT/15/2076 3 1, 234 3 1,170
0. 1255% dwe 107152025 (e} 7 7
0, 128% due (41572027 214 M
1265 due 01/15/2030 450 B
0. 125% due 07/15/2030 i 32
0. 1255% doe 0171572031 1. 113 1,04
0. 125% due 07715,/2031 (e) 3, 874 3,481
0. 1255 due 01/15/2032 1,535 1,530
0 126% dwo. 02/16,/20561 1] 85
0 126% due @2/15,/2052 173 115
0, 250% due 01152025 1,274 1228
0. 2508 due 07/15/2009 1, 760 1,638
0 2500 dwo 02,15,2050 153 o7
0 A75% dwo, O7/16,/2025 2T o i1}
0 3768 duoe 01/715,/2027 1. 087 1031
0 3755 due 07/15,/2027 ] 40
05008 doe 04,15,/2024 1. 245 1,214
0,500 due 017152038 1, 8 1,793
0. G258 due 01/15,/2026 (e} +.502 Z411
06258 due 077152032 (o) 2. 078 1,835
O G205 due 0215/ 2043 168 129
0L T50% dwoo O7,/15,/2028 o044 1. 962
0, TH0% due 02/15,2042 A% 120
0.750% due 02152045 166 625
0. 8755 due 01152029 1, 430 1,373
0, 5765% due 027152047 HES 472
L D00 dwe 02/ 15,2046 359 T40
1. 000 due 02,15,2049 S o7
1.3058% due 00152044 2 495 o T
1. 62558 due 10S15/2027 (o) I, 732 1,720
L. 7508% due 01/15/2028 955 657
T 0008 due 01/15/2006 865 864
2. 125% due (251572040 a7 n5g
2. 128% dwe 0271572041 570 B2
LOATER due 01S15/3025 1,377 1,373
25008 due 011572029 360 376
3. 3768 due 04/15/2032 0] ey
3. G20% duo O4,15,/2028 268 i
3. 8788 due 04/15,/2009 W2 103

3 5N due 0172072047 42 =
CTH Trast

6. 0200 duoo 02/25/2045 B 5
Countryeide Home Loan Martgage Pass-Through Trust

3. TIB% due O4/25,/2035 -] BE
3 First Baston Mertgape Securities Corp.

£ 908 due 01/25/2032 (1] 58
GSANP Trast

5, 873% due 0925/2035 (d) 16 15
GER Mertgage Loan Trost

4. 0560 dune 09/25/2035 ] ]
Hosms Egaity Asset Trast

5. 813% due 02.25/2038 6 7
HS1 Asset Securitization Corp. Trust

B. 458% duo 05/25,/2037 19 19
IndyMac INDY Mortgage Loan Trust

5. G168 doe 07/25/2035 ik gz
5. 978% duo 05/25/2034 10 1
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2023 31

HEES g

AT L& & 1]
Lobman X5 Trust
T, 438% dwe 12/26/2037 (d) 5 6 3 7
lsllon Residential Fonding Corporation Mortgage Pass=-Throogh Trust
3. 96T dooe 08°15/2032 ] 4
Now Besidential Mortgage Loan Trast
2, A0 dwe 07/25/2059 W5 et
Opticn Ome Morigage Loan Truat
5. 903% doe 11525,/2034 57 55
Residential Mortgage Securities 32 FLC
5. 512% doe 06202070 Gy B2 ki
Sazon Asset Securities Trust
5. % due 09252037 i 1 11
Tewd Foint Mortgage Punding Granited FLC
S.41E% doe 10/20,/2051 P B 108
ol Mortguge Poss-Through Certificates Trust
3. 974% due (/25,2037 k1 13 12
== Ao ERE 845
(AR 560

Fole o ks et 2 N 13K
Bospherus CLO IV DAC

TR doe 12/15/2030 EUR Fofie} i)
Calrn CLO IIT DAC

L 213% due 10,/20/2028 ] 16
Widocean Credit CLO W
G, 385% duwe 07192028 3 | 21
OZLM XCIV Led.
G A10% due 07/20,/2032 100 L
5TWD Led
6, 250% duoe 07/15/2038 63 &3
THL Credit Wind River CLO Ltd.
6, 340% due 04152031 169 ag
Fz bt AN 536
(AN 35720

3. 0005 doo 09,/20,/2025 {c) ALD ] 55
Canada Gevermment Bood

4. 2508 dwe 120152028 (c) CAD 1 142
France Government Boed (c)
0, 100% dwe 03/01,/2026 EUR 232 240
O 100% doe 07/725,/2038 104 14
Italy Buoni Polisnnali del Tescro (o)
0UB00% due 06,15/2030 118 115
1 A00% due 0626,/ 2025 I, 194 1, 278
Japan Goversment CPI-Linked Bond (c)
0. 005% doe 03,710,/20:1 ¥ 25, 049 6
0, 1006 dwe 03,710,/2028 29, 685 e
O 100% doe. 03,710,/2029 40,924 0%
Mozico Government International Bomd

4. 500% due 11/22/2035 {c) LA 327 %
¥ & 681
(R fEE 22, 901)

Australis mnd New Zealand Banking Group Ltd

2. 8T00% due O6,/01,/2023 A 2 I
Bank of Mova Scotin

3. 5H0% duw 060172023 CAD 1 1
4. 5808 dwo 0601,/2023 b3 9 L]
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2023 31
HEES 2
Flf iy
P Paribas Bank
ao AU duoe 06701 F5K0EE DRK 1 5 L1
Brown Brothers Harrissn & Co.
(0, 3708} dus 085,0]0/2023 ¥ I3 i
1. TT0% doo O6/01,/2023 heril] B b
Citibank N A
1. 580K due 060172023 L {1i] 10
D85 Bank Lud.
i BS0% due 06,01,/2023 B2 &2
ImB Bank ASK
2. BT0% duo 05,0] /2023 Al 1 l
HSBC Bank FLC
I 360% due 06,/0] 2023 EUR o a4
3. 6405 doe 060172023 G 1] 1
JPiorgan Chase Bank M. A
i 50K due 06,01/2023 5 12 L+
MUFG Bapk Lid,
(0. 370 dus 095,0],/2022 ¥ BES G
Sumitoms Miteui Banking Corp.
(00370 due 06,00/ 2023 = |
& 360% doe D60] /2023 EUR I7 15
§, 580% dwe 06,70] /2023 k3 ] [
Sumitoms Mitsui Trust Bank Ltd
(0L 3T0%) duwe 06,00,/ 2023 ¥ &1 16
F360% doe 060172023 EUR | |
{, 580% dus 06,70] /2023 3 17 !IT__
345
SR Gl M5
(R0 3345)
BREESGH () 195 H &1, 932
(e FpN0E 25T, 408)
S U OF TR
) () 0.2% 73
(EBNEE AR I A, ME 50168))
OO LU, e (20, T i {0, 918
R 100 0% 5 40, 086

SR ERRE N IR (- e DI ¢

o Vo, THERRCRRI Sht EREEERL TS SRS,

()} ﬁ AR 31 PR M i M S R W A o B, Dl SR 110,08, Sk e RO 1L B S0 S ool LGl
D

(&) RIS,

e} BEBOMEEEIL 7 LR L TN SR TE,

) RBFRITIC N,

A de L TRE o DR S |

AR .
B e ww o R LERBIC S
i 22 MARH"Y (1B (A7 B/%) L R
o] o, | e Q5042023 Q7 /D6 2023 3 L5TH % (F STap
L3l 5. 170% 05323/ 2083 DBS13/2083 {8, 3010 (8. 5153
P s (10, 094)
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2023 31

EEMI A - LTl R S s

B omEnERE
e

BEF

WEER 3 EET 3 HHE0A 80 Bl it
L
& atel | 3 L1 3 15,515 3% L5794 § [ § {0, 0a)
# At ] 0§  (&bl&) 3 (L6 § 0§ (io0en
L RS ] 08 (BEIB) § (L5M) % [ TV
LR A S e § 110,03

fiF A3 L TR O R RIS | R

BT, 205 E50 M FRES, BRSNS L SWANE SRS OO -EMlhd| ORpES SRR (R ShitERoEECRS,

(o) 20234EG N 31 PHYE, BFOwR S —S0&Hicik-5E, EBHERE 10, 065 % FA-DEASERIER F fioTiE,

LeaiaMic nECHRL f#rnp ke
tdnd LS BElohdd B0 TohoRe HiR =y A—
AaTEh _ =E o Sfthd  Fihd e S ihdr RG] £ !.':'\/ — M
Fo—rid = A8 — B
k=N k] o F (L5 § a § o % {1579 % 1. 546 k] (330
L) ) (8, 515] 0 i} 18,515} g, 500 L]
AN L CE 0RO SMER S 0§ {lo,084) § o % [

'Z0ZIES N A BE TRES, RREOEEIEANIL 0250 8 FAT, NEEESRL L AAT RS, TERARL, SO S SME. B MR LRELE
AR ik b,
= e e L, W EOPRTRROHE NS ookl E - (R ARl e, ARS RGOS SRR e a0
R e DR O A Y — R S YRR AL SIS SOTIR 205, A Y — IR AT SRR T, B
BN T2 y—manea $EmolkE,

i WE_(3,%)

Esto-Bobl 5-Year Mote Jume Futares Shart e 1] 3 (%] ] R : kil
Euro-BTP 10-Year Bond Jime Futares Shoirt L1 i el (1] 27 1] (L)
Furo-Bund 10-Year Bopd June Futures Lors Me/o0z3 1 L B 0
Buro-Buxl 30-Year Bomd June Futures short 2003 2 114y o (7
Bura-0AT 10-Yoar Bend Jume Futares Skort (/2023 2 1ok 1] (4}
Esto-3chatz 2-Year Sote June Futures Short 1L T n s § 6 {54} 1] (6
Jopan Goverrment 10-Year Hood June Fotures Shoirt L1 T el ] {25} i} ]
Shart Fupo-BTP Note June Fotures Shart e/ 20ea T L] i] 1]
I.5 Treasury 2-Year Note Septesber Futures Short e 20 =B L] ] (8)
I. %5 Treassury 5-Year Note Septesber Futures Short - Rpe i ] L] 0 ()
U5 Treasury 10-Yeor Sote Septesber Futures Short ST n e § 1% £ 1] 1:1]
.5 Tremsury 20-Year Bond Septesber Futures Shoirt 09 L] £ o k1]
U.5 Tressury Ultra 30-Year Bond Septesber Futures Shart LT w et § i L] 1] 1i1]
i 5§ (48 ] g % [EE]
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2023 31

| e SRR _EmEmMe

ot b ilEi ] B =] (A~ B.4E) Mk B Vi i H e
i G-Month EURTROR 0. 526%) 11721/ 2023 EUR 1,400 5 (3 ] 31) 5 | ] o
1 5-Year French (P Ex

Tobacco Daily

Beference Index ER DG/ 15,2024 ] i JLu i} H
,*.'En G-Manth EUHIBOR 0, TOr% o110 100 (a0 {10) ] o
i G-Manth ELRTEM . G54 D12 20T 100 (10} {10} i} o
. G-Month EUVRTEOR 0. B30 05,11,/2027 100 [ [1}] {10} | o
=i G-Manth EURTRGH L. s 05, 1373007 et {7 {17) | o
*E G-Manth EURIBOR IR 06,718/ 2027 D] L5 3) 1 ]
A G-Month EURIBOR AT 08,15, M3 400 62 2 5 o
f 7 1 6-Manth ELRTROH 0. DO 11,04/ 2032 W20 12349) [Z34) i} i
. G-Month EURTBOR 0, DO 11/08,/2032 2] (156} [ 436) & o
b £ G-Manih ELRIBOR TR 0C8, 0, 2033 100 4] i4) | o
2 G-Manth EUVRIBOR I, 20 SIS0 300 1 1 o (5}
Fef G-Manth EURIBOK 3. 004% 09,130,/ 033 400 3 1 5 o
= 6-Manth EURTROR [ 1 1104/ 2052 130 i) Gi a ()
il G-Menth EURTBOR 0. [96% 1104/ 2062 150 i 7 1] 1]
o i} G-Manik ELRIBGE o 197% 11/08/ 2052 200 {{ux] (k] 1] (2
2 G-Manth EURTEOR B 081,530,/ 20053 pat 1] 3 2] o (3}
2 Bank of Japan

Uncol lateral ized

(vernight Call Rove 0. 4505 03/30/2020 ¥ 119, 070 2 a7 ] o
i} Bank of Japin

Uneallateral [zed

vernight Call Rate 0. 05 12155031 440, D 12 H 1] 4]
| Eurosiat Euronome

HICP Ex Tobageo

Unrevised Series NS4 0, DO 9152024 FIR 100 1) (1) - o
wH, Enrasisl Eurosome

HICF Ex Tobacoo

Unrevised Sories NS4 1. D00 05,15/ 2027 100 3 3 o (h)
38 Eurosisi Eurczome

HICP Ex Tobaceo

Unrevised Series NS4 0, DO 0, 15,0007 100 1 1 o (K
2 i Eurosiat Eurozone

HICP Ex Tobacco

Unrevised Series NS4 0, DO 0315/ 2028 500 4 @ o H
L Eurostat Eurosome

HICP Ex Tobocoo

Unreyised Series N54 0, DO 068,715/ 2030 100 a B ¥} 1]
e | Furosiat Euronome

HICF Ex Tobaceo

Unrevised Sevies NBA 0, DO 0a0E 203 L] (=) 57) & o
FH, Eirestal Eurooms

HICP Ex Tobocos

Unrevised Series N5A 0, Do 0SS15/ 2032 ot} 1] E i} (2
1 Eurosiat Eurozoms

HICP Ex Tobaeeo

Unrevised Series NS4 0, DO 6,15,/ 2032 ] 3 3 i} 81
2 Eurosial Eurozone

HICF Ex Tobacoo

Unrevised Sevies NS4 0, DO 05,15,/ 3037 L] 4l {4} | (]
oy i} Eurostat Eurosome

HICP Ex Tobacen

Unrevised Series BS54 0, DO [T i i a0 L] ) 1 o
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2023 31

b Vg | mme L _EREME
EXEF] S R B e (BB mEEk EpE (%) p L3 A
= Eurostat Eurozops

HICP Ex Tobacon

Unrevi=zed Series X534 . DO 05,15,/ M52 EI® 10 k4 €21 £ 2} L] i} 3 i
o Eurosiat Eurozome

HICF Ex Tobucoo

Unrevised Sories NS4 0. D0 1215/ 2062 100 Lk} 6] 2 o
| Eurostat Eurosone

HICF Ex Tobacco

Unrevised Serics N54 0. DO 04 152053 1y £ 2} ¢} o
718 Secured Dvermi ght

Financing Rote L. 7B 06/15/2004 8 3, 200 (1541 8] 11 o
2 Secured Dvernight

Financing Hote L. 7508 1Tl Tk 1L 1, WO {168] {25) [ ]
ot Secured Uvernight

Financing Rnte L8l VLA LS 20 0 b | 24 i} (1
2 Secured Dvornight

Flnancing Rote 3, 085% 02713203 1, 300 (14) 4] 7 o
R Secured Dvernighe

Fimancing Hate L. 497 5% 1A 452053 1iHy (26) 126) 1 o
bl R Seeured Dvernight

Financing Hute 2, BiE5% 02/ 1372054 500 18 3 o (5}
il US CFT Urban

Consumers NS4 0, DO 003,705/ 202G 400 35 b o (E)
L U5 CPl Urban

Consumers NEA 0, 000% 06/ 13/ 3026 200 1] 14 o o
g US CP1 Urbwn

Consusers N5A 0, 000% 5/ 14/ 2026 [ T 7 1 o
2 US CPL Urban

Consumers NS4 0, DO 09,01 /2026 L 7 7 o o
= US CPT Urban

Consumers NS4 0, DO 08,/ 2573027 200 b = o o
i U5 CPT Urban

Consumers NGA . DO L1 R 1 g M 1 3 27 i} 1]
Zi Us CPT Urban

Consusers NS4 0, DO0% 0205,/ 2028 190 7 {17) o o
% o US CPI Urban

Consusers K54 0, 000% (8,726, 20028 [ ] [ o o
om s CP1 Uskan

Consumers NSA 0, Do 0725/ 2029 Ty (&3] (%5) z o
a1} US CPI1 Urban

Consumers NS4 0, (0% B0 S 300 [ER Y] (4] | o
=i US CPI Urban

Consumers NSA o, DO EER b Rplrk ] 300 (58] {53) i} o
L US CPI Urbmn

Consumers NS4 0, DO 02 243031 00 11 52 8} (2
2T W TR $  l8a3) § (331} i T2 3 (33
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2023 31

P P BT U S ERE TR L B 1 AF S EsRE

ELFiE, 2003 E56 A 51 PEEOD RGBT U7 o PSR B e o  L SaRE Y F o iyl LU ENEREOBEE TR S,

2023 E6 H 31 DELE, 4T ¥ FA-ORSN, GBI AT TS L MR b5 SR U 4T o TEAOER E LTREM
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Statement of Cash Flows PIMCO Real Return Fund (cont)
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Notes to Financial Statements

1. 0RGARIZATIONR

Each Fund disaussed in this repon {each a “Fund™ and collectively, the "Funds™), which akso indudes each dass of units of that Fund (each 3 "Class™ and collectively,
the "Classes™), &5 @ senies st of PIMCO Bermuda Trust (the "Trust™), an open-ended unit mest established under the aws of Bermuda 5 a muls-series rust perspant
b a gk deed exeted by Winchester Global Trust Company Limited on August 8, 2001 (a5 amended from ime 1o time, the "Trust Deed™). EMective a< of the dose
of busness (Eastem time) on Seplember 29, 2017, Maples Trustee Senvices (Besmuda) Umited (the " Trustee™) wias appointed & trustee of the Trust. Fadfic investment
Management Cornpany LLC (" PIMCO, the “Manager™ of the "Indestment Adviter™) i4 the spondor of and was respondible fof Sructuring the Trust

The Trust is subject to regulation and supendsion a5 provided for in the imvestment Funds Act 2006 and related rules redating to standard funds
The termns of the Trust Deed confer upon the Trustee, with the consent of the Manager, the power, in the future, 1 establish further funds in addition o the Funds
curenty in operation a5 of the date of this report

Freferences 1o unithvolders (each, a "Unithodder”, and collectively, She “Uinithotders ) in, or units (the "Units ") of {or an invesiment in), the Fund shal mean Unitholders
of the Fundwho hold Unis, of Claases of Units (a5 applicable), whedh are attributable to that Furd

The Funds presented in this report are lisbed bedow

PIMICD Bersuds Fonsgn Low Dueamen Fusd Olkeied eedy 10 funck aith & Foned of Funde” sucture, i dulned in the nubke of the bvesment Tas e

PINCD Bermuda U 5. Low Derariioe Fund Aencciaon, Japan, o i funds with ssimilar s rctune ey other usdcsion

PINVCD Eseriping M ke Bond Fund LITFY

PIRICD) B M ahn e Bond Fund (s Haddged)

PINCD Emerpng Matbets Bond Fund B

PIMCD Fead Ramsen Fusd e red 1 146l i s i Jurpans by ity off publie ollering Shicugha detrbu e Japn, #6d miy
B otiered i other ines on af e cdeorecon of the Maneger

PIRICD) Shore Teem Stranegy™ {0fbe vl 1ov 1 i i i Jupan by vy of bl ofienng g & o b andfor 511k
Barding com iy in Jipan, itd Sy b oSred B othed Frton a1 the docinten af 1he Maniiger

PIRCD Emergneg Moo s Bond Fund A} (Ot red only w0 other Funds 10 serve: a5 an snderlying imves s vl for such Funds

= D S L0PY) deef (0 Tt it PO et - Wi vty e el iy B Sl e 5 Tad 9 ™ ey, in il 6 Yot e 100 Sowmitinied Dot i copaitind: g i B By e b vnlar @ wur & iy e padete s

Pl i FOBLY ey o PUAT Y Do T Sivitigy o o v gl i b Pl 6 woror i 0 e el oy st ey bl o e Fieile

Units of the PIMCO Real Retsm Fund, and AUD, JPT, and USD Classes of PIMCD Short-Temn Strateqy have been registered under the Finsndal instruments and
Exchange Law of Japan Urits of each of the remaining Funds and the C (LSO, | (IPY), and J (USD) Classes of PIMCO Shor-Tenm Strategy have not been and are not
currenily expectid to be regatened under Sie fnanoal instruments and Eohange Liw of Japan . Acoordingly, such Uinits of these Funds may not be, dinectly or
mdirectly, offered in Japan or 10 any resident in Japan, except in compEande with applicabde lapanese laws and requlations

2. SIGHIFICART ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The foll crwing is a suremary of significant acccunting polides consistently foflowed by the Tust in Bie preparation of its finandal staternents in conformaty with
acoounting principies generally agcepied in the United States of Amernica (TULS. GAAFT). Each Fund is treated a5 an investment company under the reporting
recuarements of U5 GAAP. The preparation of fnandal stafements in accordance wath U S GAAP requernes mandgement io make estimates and asumptions that
affed the reported amounts of assets and Babilities and disclosure of contingent assets and Kabilities at the date of the finandal statements and e reported amounts
of increases and deesses in ned amsets from operations during the reparting perod Actual recules coubd diffier from (hode edimates

{6} Acquired Funds: The Trustes and the Manager may apply all or a portion of the assets of FIMCO Emerging Markets Bond Fund (ITF), PIMCO Emerging Markets
Bond Fund (Yen-Hedgsd, and FIMCO Emenging Markets Bond Fund 1l {each refermed to herein as 8 "Fund of Funds™ or the ™ Acquining Fund”, whach invests in cther
Funds} to the respective aedit of the FIMCD Emerging Markets Bond Fund (M) freferred to hesein a5 an * Aoguired Fandis)™). Any assets 5o applied will be heldin such
Acrpaned Fund(s) a5 if recered directly. Where assets ane 5o applied, te Acquired Fund(s)will recond the issue of Urts 1 the relevant Acganng Fund at the issue prce
per Unit of such Units and will repurchase sudh Units at e repurchade price per Unin of sy Units 3t the me of repurdiase

Fatios shoswn in the Anandal Highlights do notindude expenses of the Aogquired Fund(s). See Mote 9, Fees and Expenses, for funber information regardng fund fees,
a4 applicable

kb Securities Transactione and Insestmant Ineame Secunities ransactions are reconded a5 of the trade date for finandal reporting purposes, Secunities purchased o
sold on awhenssued or defayed-delivery basis may be settled beyond a standard settiement period for the seurity after the trade date. Realized gaing and losses
from securities sold are recorded on the identified cost basis. Dividend Encome is recorded on the ex-dhvidend date, except certain dvadends from foreign securities
where the ex-dividend date may have passed, which are reconded a5 soon a5 2 Fund is informed of the ex-dividend date. interest income, acjusted for the acaetion of
discounts and amartization of premiums, i recorded on the acoual bass Fom seitement date, with the exception of secusities with a fonward starting efecthve date,
whene interest imcome |s recorded on the accnual basis from effective date. For converible seounities, premiumns atmbutabie to the conversion feature are not
amortized EsBmated tax liabilites on certain foreign seqanties are recorded on an aorual bass and e reflacled 2 components of interest income of net dhangs in
unrealfized sppreciation (depredation) on investments on the Statements of Operations, 35 appropriate. Tax liabifities realized as 3 result of such security sales are
reflected a5 component of net redized Gain (st on invesrments on the Statements of Operasons Pﬁﬂwﬂ qaing and losses om reortgage-related and other

vl Rapart | Bley 31, 2023 n
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Notes to Financial Statements

asset-backed securities, if any. are recorded &5 components of interect inooms KAV Furezomd

o the Statements of Operatons. Debl obfgations mday be placed on non- Dorreney Curtmty

aconesl St and:ﬂzla#?din':ere:.! incoime may be reduced by ceating Qament PRI re— U5 dolse

accnesls andwnnng off anfenest recereable when the collecton of all or a = -

portion of inferest I?as become dowbtful based an consstently applied e o P L U5 Gt

procedures. A debt obfigation is removed from non-acaual status when the AL Sty

ESSUIEr resumes inberest payments or when oollectability of interest is probable : ELLT:IM PREBEIN doRar : g 3:
Jspaeda yen

] Cash and Forsign Currency  The finandal staterments of each Fund are = JUPY lapaness yen U5, dolw

presented using the curmency of the primary economic endronment inwhidh it s JESH Jpaess yen U5, dedw

oneratesl{me '*-uﬂ-:‘:![.ﬂfﬂ cumendgy”™). The functional qurrency for each of the . Y PR US dele

Furds is listed in the bedow table . USD US dotes 1S delee

The market values of foreign sequnties, cusrendy holdngs and other asers

and liabilities are ranstated it each Funds functional aamency based on the {e) Mudticlass Operations Each Class of 3 Fund offered by te Trust has

current exchangs rates each business day Purchases and sales of securities RGNt 10 the astets of the Fund equal b that of other Classes of the tame

and income 3nd expense items. denomingted in foreign oumendes, if any, ane ELnd,_as applicable, except for 'S.p?l:.li.’ as.a?tﬁ_a'ld s and osses -:Iesegna.l:ed

transdated into each Fund’s respective functionat cumency at the exchange to 2 Clags relating to aprency hedging operations. income, non-Class spedfic

expenses, and non-Class spedfic realized and unrealized capital gairg and

rabe in eifect on the trantacton date. The Funds do nol separately report the
lorsses ane allocated toeadh Class of Uinits based on the nélative et assets of

effects of changes in foreign exchange rates from dhanges in market prices on

securifies held, Such changes are indluded in net realized and net changes in eath Class of the respective Fund, 25 applicable. Class spedfic expenses
unrealized gain of loss fom iwestments on the Statements of Operations Qimensly e MANAgRMENL visory. adenisirae. ageny a0

The Furds faay imoest in foreign curency denominated seaunties and may distritution fees, where applicable

ngage i forelin currency irardactions eitter o a spot {cash) batis at the fe} Distribusion Palicy The following table shows the anfidpated frequency
rate prevalling in the qumency echange markelat the tme or thiough 3 of distributicns $or each Fund. Distribations fiom each Fund may be dedared
Tonward foreign cusrency contract. Realed foresgn sxchandge gains of |omses and distributed to Unitholders anly upan the autharization of the Manager,
arising from sales of spot foreign currendies, qumency gains or losses realized which suthorization may bt withhedd at the Maragers deeretion

between the trade and settlement dates on sequnities ransadions and the
withholdng taxes and the funcional currendy emsvalent of the amounts PO E: Mk sts Bond Fand LIRS

actually received of paid are induded in net reakized gain of boss on foreign P E‘ﬁm“':BMI:‘m i

camency transactions on the $tatements of Operations. Met unneglized foreign SR e oo e

enchange gains and losses arising froem cheanges in foreign exchange rates on PRACL) Eane g M sk Boc] fud

foreign denceninated assets and Bablites other than investrents in seourities PRLL SronTerm Smamgy

Pl a1 thee e of the reporsnag period ane incudid in et change in = dum

urirealized appredation of depredation on foresm asmency sssets and el )

Rabalties on the Statements of Operasions Declared and Paid Guarserly:

The Met Assel Value ("NAV™) and total refurns of certain Funds for Classes PRICD Bermueds Faregn Low Duvon Fund
thiereod, as applicable) are presented in the cummency forwhich the NAV is PRICO Beamrnade U5 Low Duraton Fend
reporied (he “NAY currency™) a5 detailed in each Fund's Cffering Declared and Paid Annually;
Memaorandum {the "r'_l.:i:afing Memorandum™). For the Elt;p-:ses of the PRICT Rasl Paann Furd

presentation of the NaY and the: fotal retum in the NAY currency, the PAMCT Sor Tarm Sramey

beanning and endng MAVS are convented using the period biginning and

AUD

-
ending exchangs rates, Tﬁﬁ[ﬁi[h'ffy.aﬁdds-lﬂmltﬂﬁ ané coferted useng me . C OB
exchange rate at the time of the disribution. See the folowing Lable fof the s JPY
MAY curmency of each respective Fund: . JFYO"
y R
Furtanal The Manager dows sot expeet to declare dintributions with sespeet 10 this Fond
R MWDy iy i Diwain W st 1 s e Bt iy s i e die e nd
FIMCD Bamuda F Ve Do Fed Lpwesaym U5 dabior distributiees 12 the Unithedders at any time,
PIMED Barmuda U5 Low Duraten Fued Iapirs v 115, gk PRIGL) Bt ping Mivkism Band Fund 0
FIMCD Ermutereg Missta e Bord Fund UITF) | Jsparsss yen L5 daka * Ther s v lqundaoed erineg: the repoetng pariod
Hmn_wm”ﬂ“ o dy 1% 2 Drstributiones, it any, will gemerally be made fram he relevant Funds @
== — e e Class's, It apphcable) net imvestment income. In addition, the Manager may
[l F A H . o
HE E::m ::::: m fﬂi e SR i Juthorize the payment of net realized capinl gains availstee for derritwtion
. J @Rl TR U dalsd Additional distribuors may be dedared a5 the Managér deems sppropriate
< Nt Distributions paidwith respeat 1o amy Fund (o Class theneod, if appicatie)
= JEKRI will réduce the MAY of tudch Fund for Class thereof, if applicable) At the
. SN disretion of the Unitholders, cash distnbutions fom a Fund for Class thereod,
= I{EN if applicable) may either be reinvested in addiional Units of 3 Fund for Class
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thereod, if applicabie) or paid to 3 Unithobder in cash, Cash payments will be
pad in the MAY cumendy of the Fund Each Fund {or Class therect, if
applicabie) may ded are hurther dismbutions i cmsidered nedessanyin onder
Lo rnairtaEn & reasonable Dol of distributions dor @ Fund dor Class thereod, if
applicatde) In the event that theee is inadeqguate net income and net redized
capital gains to pay a dsinbution of 8 Fund (or Class thereof, if applicable)
required by the Offering Memorandum, the Manager may pay 3 distibution
congsting of a portaon of the Capital of siech Fund {or Class theef, if
applicable). Distributions not collected within six years from their due date
will kxpae amd will Soone to thie binefic of the relevant Fund (or Class thinod,
it appiicable)

(1) bssum and Repurchase of Units Subsequent 1o a Fund (or Class thereaf, if
applicabie) commencing business, Units of each Fund for Class theseaf, if
Applicable) rdy be vwed by the Mandger on 4 continuous batis 51 the Net
Asset Value per Uinit of that Fund (or (lass thereof, if apgiicable) at the ime
of such issue, subject 10 the right of the Manager of its appcented agent, in
the sole discretion of the Manager, to temporarily suspend sich sue. Uinless
stated othensise in the relevant Offering Memonan dum, for each Fund for
Class thereod, it applicable), the ksoe price per Unit for swch Units will be the
Met Astet Value per Unit determined om each Dealing Duy cabulated a5 set
forth belosw under *Deterrnination of Net Asset Vaue”; provided that, if a
request 1o purch.aie Units in 2 form acoeplable 1o BBH is not recéived by
Brgem Brothers Hamiman (Luxemibourg) 5. A ("BER") price 1o 12:00 noon
(Eastern time), the issue price per Unit of the relevant Fund {or amy Class
there of, if appficabie) shall be the Met Asset Value per Unit determined on e
et Dealing Dy

Iri thee case of purchate of Units which are redgritered i lpan oF deect
distributon in Japan, te purdiase price of such Units shall be paid in cash
Mo purchase in kind may be alawed for such Units. In the cate of repurchase
of Uinits o termination of the Funds in the Trustwiich are registerad in lapan
fowr direct disributon o lapan, the Linits of sch Funds <h all be repurdhased
froen Linitholders in cash. Mo repunchase in kind may be sliowed in sudh
Furwds

Except a4 athenaie provided in the relévant Offering Memorandum, payrnent
of the repurchase price will be made by the Trustes or its appointed agent by
bank ransier generally within four (4) Business Days after the Deating Day
upon which the repurchase nofice is received, or deemed to have been
received, by BEH, aithcaigh undes certain orcumstances, piyrment may take
up boreight (3) Budiness Days after such Dealing Day

LUriless stated otheansnse in the refevant Offering Memorandum, the Funds are
not sisbiect to subsaipion or repurchase fees; provided, however, 3
distributor appointed in the junsdction where a Fund is dstributed may
chiarge sulbsTiplion of repurd ase fees in such amouns a5 agesdwth the
Manager and the Trustes

lgh Newr Acesunting Proneuncements and Regulatery Updates in March
2020, the Anancal Accounng Standards Bosed (FASE") issued 30
Acoouning Standands Update (" ASU ), ASU 2020-04, which provides
ophonal I;I‘uldiﬂ':ﬁ o ease the poteniial acoounting burden 35500 ated with
tranziticning away from the Lendon Interbank Cffered Rate ["LIBOR™) and
other reference rates that are expected 1o be dscontinued. ASL 2020-04 i
effective fior certain neference rabe-rel ated contract modiScaticns Sal aocurmed
dunng the persod Mardh 12, 2020 through Decernber 31, 2022, In March
2021, the administratcr for LIBOR announced the extension of the publication
of a majority of the USD LIBOR setings to June 30, 2023 In December 2022,
FASE isuped ASU 202 2-06, whidh indudes smendments o extiend the
duration of the LIBOR wansiSon refief to December 31, 2024, after which
entifies will no longer e permitted to apgly the reference rate rebonm

refef Management is continuoushy evaluating the potentid effecta

discontiruation of LIBOR could have on the Fund’ investments and has
debermmned that it unlikely the ASU™S agapdon will have & matefial impact
o thee Funidts” finandial statements.

I Jume 2022, the FASE issued ASU 2022403, Farr Value Maxsurément (Topic
&20), which affects all entities that have investments in equity seqsities
measured at fair value that are subgect to a confracheal sale restriction. The
amendments in A5 2022-03 dantfy fat 3 confractuad restriction on te sale
of A equity weaunty s nat conskdered part of the unit of aocount of the egusty
seaueity and, ferelore, & pot considered in measuning the fair vakee. The
amendrments also require additiona disdosures for equity securifies subject 1o
contractual sale restrictions that are measured at fair valee in accordance
with Topic 820, The effective date for the amendments im ASU 2022-03 is ko
fiscal years beginring after Deember 15, 2024 and interim periods within
Ehose fiacH years. AL this drme, management is evalsating the implcations of
these changes on the finandal statements

1. IHVESTMERT YALUATION AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMERTS

(8] Imvestment Veluason Policies The WA of 3 Fund, or each of its Classes,
&% spplicable, v detemrnined by dviding the ol vaiue of portiolin
investments and other assets stiibutsble 1o that Fund or Class, less avy
lishilitees, by the total nurnber of Units cutetanding of that Fund or Class

On each Fund's Dealing Dy (4% described in the cumrent Ofering
Memorandum of the Truse), Fund Units are ondnarily valeed as of the doge of
regular rading on the New York Stock Exdvange (THYSE Clote™). information
that begomes inown to the Funds or their agents after the me a3 of whidh
WAV hat been calouslated on a particular diy will not generally be used ta
retroactively adust the price of 3 seourity or the HAY determined earfier that
day. W reqular trading on the NYSE doses earier than scheduled, each Fund
may caloulate iis NAY a5 of the earfier dosing Sme or caloulate its NAV a5 of
thee nomaly schedsed dose of requbar rading on the NYSE for that day

Each Fund generally daed nat cabadate its NAY on days during whech the
WY SE & dosed However, if the NYSE |5 diosed on a day it woald nomally be
open for barsiness, each Fund may caboulate its HAY as of the nomnally
scheduled MYSE Close for such day or such other time that each Fund may
dineamiing

Faf purposes of caloulasing NAY, por ot Securities and ot asets for
whidh market quotations are readily available are valued at marke value A
markel quotation it readily e ailable only when that quotation is a quoded
price funadiusted) in aciive markets for identical investments that the Fend
can 300ss af e megsurerment dae, provded that & quotaton will not be
readty availabie if It is not relisble. Market valug is generally determined on
the basis of offcial dosing praces of tee 1t reported sales peaces. The Funds
will noirnally wee pricng data for domestic equity securifies received shortly
after the NYSE Close and do ot nomally take into acopunt rading

chear ances or settements that take place after the NYSE Close. investments
for which market quotations are not readily available are valued at fair value
&5 detemnineed in gocd faith by the Manager or persons acting at their
direcion. As a geniral prindple, e fair value of & Lecunty of ather Hast s
the price that would be received o sell an asset or paid to fransfer a liabdity
in-an orderly transaction between market partapants at the measurement
date. The Manager has adopted methods fof valuing seauntes and other
FESELS in dpoumstances where mMarket quoties ane ot readily available, and
has the responsi bty 1or apphng the Lair valuanon methods. The Manager
may vakee Fund poetilio sequrities for which mareet quotations are not
readily availabie and other Fund assets utiliang inputs from pricing serices,
quotation reporting systems, valuation agents and other thind-party sources
{together, “Prting Sources™). A foteion (Rof-LS ) eduity Sedurity tradksd of 4
foreign enchange or on mare than one exchange is fypicaly valued using
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pricing infoemation from the exdhange considered by PIMCO to be the
primary exchange. f market vahue priang is used, a forsgn (non-ULS ) egquty
ity will be valued 35 of the dose of rading on the fareign exchange, o
i NYSE Clerse, if the WYSE Cloge eanars befone the end of traging on the
foweign exchange

Domestic nd Soreign (non-U5 ) Boed incoms securiies, non-axchange traded
derivatives, and equity options are nomually valeed on the basis of quotes
obitaened from beokers and deabers of Pricing Sownces utng s data
refleciing the prindpal markers for those securites. Prices obtained from
Pridng Sounces may be based on, among ather thingg, information provided
by market makers or estimates of market values obtained from yield data
relatng Mo irvestments of Seurises with Smile dharacterisucs. Certan fixed
mooeme: seqanities purchased on 3 delaped-delivery basis are marked to market
daly until settlernent at the fonwand sertlement date. Exchangs-traded
Ophicns, except equity options. futures and opfions on fulures are valued at
thie settement pnoe determined by the relevant sochange. Swap agresments
are valued on the basis of bid quotes obtained from brokers and dealers or
market-based prices supplied by Pridng Sources. With respect 1o any portion
of a Fund™s assets that are ieested in one of more open-end management
e el coanpanass {other than wechange-traded funds (CETFS™)), he
Fund™s NAY will be calculated based on the NAYS of sudh imvestments. Open-
end management inves ment companies may indude affifiated funds

It a foreign {non-U5 ) equity seauity’s value has matenally changed after the
cloge of the security’s primany exchange o prindpal market but before the
NYSE Choge, the security may be valped ot fae valie based on procedunes
established and appeowed by the Manager. Foreign fon-U1LS.) equly
securifies that do neot rade when the NYSE is open are so valued at fair
walye With respect 1o foreign (non-U1 S ) equity securifies, 2 Fund may
determing the fair value of investments based on informiation provided by
Pricing Sountes, which may recommend firvalue o ddustments with
reference bo other securifies, indices or assets In considering whether fair
waluation it required and in determining fair values, the Manager may, amang
gther things, consder sgrificant events fwhich may b= considered toindude
changes in the vaiue of U S seouities of securifes indeses) that ooour after
the dige of the relevant market and before the WY 5E Close. A Fund may
utilize madeling ook provided by thisd-party wendors 10 determne far values
of foreign (non-LL5 ) sequiities. For thess purposes, unless otherwiss
determined by the Man ager, sy movementin the applicable reference index
or instument (" zero trigger™) between the earier dose of the applicable
fareign market and the NYSE Closs may e diemed 1o be a Sgnificant svent,
prompting the application of the prang moded (eHecively resulting in daily
far valudtions) Foreign exchanges may pemin trading in forsgn (non-LLS)
equiby securities on days when the Tnustis not open for business, which may
resultin & Fund's portfolio imesoments being affected when Unitholders are
unable b buy or sl Uit

Seenbor secured floking rate loars for which an actae secondary marker edars
bo 3 reliable degree will be walued at the mean of the last available bid'ask
prices in the market for wach loans, a4 prosdded by 3 Pricng Senice Senior
secured floating rate loars for which an aciive secondary market does not
€xish 1 g refiabile degres will be valued at fair value, whech i intended to
approximate market vale In valuing a sensor secured floating rate loan at
far value, the factors considered may indude, but are not lirmited b, the
fodlowing: (a) the gedbworthiness of the bormower and any intermediate
particpants, (b the tepms of the besn, {0 recent prices in the market for
simitar loans, it amy, and (d) recent prices in the market for imstaments of
similar quality, rane, period until pet ntenest rate reset and matarity

Imeesiments valued in curmendes other than the funcional aurendy
ot a Fund are converted bo the funcional currency udng echange rates
obtained from Friding Sources As a result, the value of wach investments, and

in tum, the AV of the Funds Units may be affected by changes in the vale
of cumrendies in relation i the funcions! armency. The value of invesments
traded in foreign markets or denominated in currencies other than

the Ranchonal curnency may be affected significantly on a day that the Trustis
not open for business As a result, 1o tee ectent that a Fund holds foreign
(nen-U 5 ) imvesements, the value of those invesiments may change at Bimes
when you cannot purchase, redeem or exdhange Uinits and the walue of such
Investrrents will be reflected in the Fumd's et calod sted NAY

Fair waluation may requine subjective determinations about the value of 3
seaFily. While the Trust's paices and procedures are intended to rewltin a
cakulation of 3 Fund's N&Y that farly reflects seaunity values as of the time of
pricing, the Trust cannol emsure that Lar values detsmmined by e Manager
Of persons 3c0ng a1 their direction would soourately reflect the price that

& Fured could obtain for & secunty il itwere 1o dspose of that seouity as of
the me of pricing (for instande, in a forced or distressed sale) The prices
wsed by a Fund may difer from e value that would be realoed if the
securilies wene sold

] Fair Value Hierarshy U 5 GAAF describes fair value as the price that

@ Fund would receive 10 9ell an asset oF pay (o rarser a liability in an orderty
transaction between market paridpants at the megsurement date. It
esrablianes a far value hieranchy that prcntides inputs o valuation methads
and reduires disdasure of the fair value hierardy, separately for each major
categony of avsers and liakilities, that swegregates fair value meatorements intd
lewels (Lewed 1, 2, or 3}, The inputs or methodology wsed for valuing securites
&g AL AeCESEarly an indcation of the fsks paodated with nrwe-stiﬁg n those
seaunities. Levels 1, 2, and 3 of the fair value hieranchy are defined as follows:

® [eww] | —(uinted prices I:LIT‘JI*E-HEIII - aChve makets of exdhanges for
identical assets and lisbiliges.

* Lewel 2—Hignificant other observable inputs, which may indude, but are
moit lirmibesd 10, quated paices for sirilar atcets or liakaines in mankets that ane
aanves, quoted prices foridentical or smilar assets or Habilines in markets that
&g Ak actve, nputs other than quoted proes that an obienable for the
asgets or liabilities (audh a5 interast rates, yield curves, volatilities, prepayment
speeds |ods smeerities, credit risks and default rates) or other market
comoboraied mputs

= Lol 3—Significant unobeervable inputs based on the best information
avalable in the crommstances, 1o the extent observable inputs are not
avalable, which may indude assumpions made by the Manager of persons
aing at their direction that are wied in determining the fair value of
invesEmEnls

Aseets or Babilities categorized a5 Level 2 or 3 35 of penod end have been
transferred betweeen Lewels 2 and 3 dnce the prior period due fo dhangss in
the method uiilized in valuing the imvestments. Transders from Level 2 to Level
3 are 2 reudll of achange, in he normal cours of business, from the wse of
methods used by Pricing Sounces (Level 2) 1o the use of & Broker Cuote or
valuation tedmique whidh utilizes significant unobservable inpuls due 0 an
#beence of apment or refiable market-based data (Lewel 3) Transfers fom
Revel 3 1o Level 2 are aresult of the availability of aarent and reliable
market-based data provided by Pricng Scurces or ofher valuasion technigques
witiidh ublze sgnmicant abservable nputs

In sccordsnce with the requirements of LS. GAAP, Bhe amounts of randers
in and owt of Lewvel 3, if matenid, are disdosed in the Notes to Schedule of
Investments for eadh respective Fund

For fair valuations usng El_mli".ﬂ nt unobservable inputs, US. GAAR requines
8o disdiose tramelers into and out of Lével 3 of the far valué hierardhy and
purdnases and ssies of Level 3 asers snd Babdines dunng the peiod
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Addiionally, U5, GAAP requires. quantitative information reganding the
significantunobsenabie inputs wsedin the determination of tir value of
agsets of Kabilies categonzed a5 Level 3 in the fair value hisrarchy. In
acoordance wath the requinements of U5 GAAP, a far value mefarchy, and it
matesid, detads of significant unobsenvabde inputs, have been induded in the
Mates to Schedule of investments for eadh respective Fund

el Valuation Techniques and the Fair \Value Hierarhy

Lewel 1, Level 2 end Level 3 irading sssets and trading liabilities, a1

Pair vabue The valuation metheds (or "technigues™) and significant inputs
uied in detemrmining the fair values of portiolio seaities of other st and
Rabisties categorized as Leved 1, Level 2 and Level 3 of the faer value hierarchy
are % foll s

Cornmon stacks, ETFs, exchange-traded notes and financsl demeatve
Instrsments, such as futures confracts, rights andwarrants, o options on
fuatures that are raded on 3 national sequnties exchange, are stated at he
Last reported sale or settlement price on the day of valuasion. To the extent
thisse teamities ane xtvdy raded and valuation adusments are mot spplied,
thisy are categonized 25 Level 1 of the fair valwe hierarnchy

Imestments in registered open-énd imestmen cormpanies fother than ETF)
will ke valued based upon the AV of such investments and are categarized
as Level | of the fairvalue hieranchy, Investments in unregistersd open-end
investment companies will be cabodated based upon the NAVs of such

Eves rmens and ane condidened Level 1 pronided hat the NAVE e
obsarvable, caloulzted daily and are the value atwhich both purchazes and
sales will be conducted

Fooed income securifies induding comporate, convertible and munidpal bonds
and notes, U5 gaeemment agendes, LS treasury olfigations, sovereign
Feaues, bank loans, conmvertibde predemed seosities nd non-LLS. bond are
nomnally valued on the bags of quotes obtained from brokers and dealers or
Pricng Sounces that use broker-dealer quotations, reported trades o
waluation estimates from their intemnal pricing modets. The Fricng Sounces’
Entema models use inpuls that are obserdable such a5 ssuer detads, nterest
rates, yield curves, prepayrment speeck, qedt ridespreads, default rates and
quioted prices Tor smilar assels. Secunbes that use snilar valranon
techniques and inpats 35 described above are categonized as Level 2 of the
fair walue hierardhy

Firedl income sequrities purchased on 3 delayed-delivery basis o 253
repurchase commitment in 4 sale-buybade ransaction e marked 1o market
daly until serdernent at the forwand sertlement date and are categonzed as
Lewed 2 o the fair walue hierandy

Mortgade-related and asset-hadied tecuntied are udsally issied 4% teparate
tranches, or diasses, of sequnities within each dead. These securities are also
normaly valued by Pridng Sources that use beokier-dedsr quotations,
reponted irades of valuation estimates from their internal pridng models. The
prigng modes of Shede Seounities utualhy consider irandhi-lisre] atinbunes,
current market data, estimated cash fiows and market-based yield spreads for
each ranche, and indrporate deal collateral perfoemance, a5 available
Morigage-related and asset-badked secunities that use similar valuation
tedmiques and inputs a5 descrbed above are Categaonzed as Livel 2 of the
fair value hieranchy

Irnrestrnenits valued (denominated) in carendes ather than the funcional
currency of a Fund are corverted 1o the funclional qumency using exchange
rabes {oumency spot and forward rates) obtained from Pricing Sounces. As a
resull, the NAY of 3 Fund's Units may be aflectsd by dranges in the value of
currendes in relation to the furctional cumency. Thievalue of secunties raded
in Toreign markets or denomindted in cumendes other tan the funcional

currency may be affected dgnificanty on 3 day that the Trust is not open for
bursiness. Valuation adustments may be applied 10 cortain seoxities that ane
solely raded cn 3 foreign exchangs 1o acooinl for the madket movernent
biebaseien the cose of ihe 1oregn market and e NYSE Code. These sscunties
are walyed wsing Fricing Sources that consider the comelation of te trading
pattems of the foreign sequnity to the intraday fradng in the LS, markets for
imvestments. Seurities using these vakuation adustments are categorized &5
Revel 2 of the fair value hiersrdry. Prefemed seountes snd oter equites
traded on inadive markers of valued by reference Lo Smilar nslruments ae
ako categorized a5 Level 2 of the fairvaue hisranchy

Equity-Tnked sequrities are valued by referendng the |ast reported sale or
sertement pitce of the linked referenced equity on the day of valuation
Foreign exchange sdustments e apglied to the last reported price to
corne the linked equity’s mading curréncy b the oo ract’s settling anrendy
These imvestments are categarized &5 Level 2 of the fair value hieranchy

Vauation adjustments may be applied 1o certain exchange traded futures and
Gphons 10 socount for macet movement Detween the exdhan ge setiement
and the NYSE dose: These sequnities are valued ising quotes obtained fom 2
quotEion reporting Systemm, establlshed market makers or Fricng S0ures
Finandal derivatives wsing these valuation adjusiments are calegonzed a5
Revel 2 of the fair value hierarchy

Equity exchange-raded options and over the counter finandal derivative
instnuments, such s forweard foreion curmency contracts and optices contracts,
derive their vals from underving asset peices, indces, reference rates, and
atfier inputs or & combananon of these factors. Thede coniracks are normally
vaued on the bass of quotes obtained from a quatation reporting system,
established market makers or Pricing Sources (norrmally determined as of the
NYSE Close). Depending on the product and the terms of the fransaction,
Bnancal defvative instnaments Can be valeed by Fricing SOunces wsing 4
senies of technegues, induding simidation pridng models. The pricng mods
s inputs that are cbesfved from actively quated markets sudh a5 quoted
prices, issuer details, indices, bidfask spreads, interest rates, implied
vidatdities, yield cunves, dradends and eachange rates. Finanaal demyatve
instromenis. that use smilar valuaion technigues and inputs 35 desaribed
abewe are categonized as Level 2 of the f3r value hierardy

Centrally deaed swaps and over the Counter Svaps Gerve their valiue from
undeslying et prices, mdices, reference rates, and other inputs ar a
combination of these factors. They are valued using a broker-gealer bid
quotation of on markef-based prices provided by Pricing Sources {normally
determined as of the NYSE Cose) Ceniraldy desred swaps and over the
counter swaps can be valued by Pridng Sownces using a series of tediniques,
induding Srtation peicng medels The pricng madds may e nputs that
are obrserved from actiwely quobted markets such as the ovemight index swap
rate ("), LIBOR fonward rate, interest rates, vield cunes and qedt
spriads. These securites e cateqorized a% Level 2 of the fair value hierasdhy

When a far vaduation e thod i5 spplesd by the Manager that uses significan
unobiervable inputs, imestments will be prced by 3 method that

the Manager o pérsons aching at their direction befieve reflects faf value and
are Categorized as Level 3 of the far value hierarchy

Frozy priding procedures set the base price of 2 fwed incame security and
subsequenty adust the price proportenaly o mankeet value dhanges of a pee-
diterrmined secunity desmed 1o be comparable in duranon, generally a LS
Tredsury of sovereign mote based on countny of issuance. The bage proe may
b & broker-dealer quate, transaction price, or an intemal vaue 25 derived by
anabysis of marker data The base price of the secunity may be reset on a
peniadic basis based on the avakability of market data and procedures
appeoved by the Vauation Cversight Commitiee. Shgnificant dhanges in the
enobervable inputs of the prosy prcing prooess (the base prece) woould result
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in direct and propostional changes i the fair value of the sequnity These
securites ane categonized as Leved 3 of the far value hierardy

If third-pamy evaluared vendor peicing is not available o not deemed 1o be
Indicative of taar value, the kmeestiment Advicer may élect 1o obtan Broker
Quotes directly from the broker-dealer or passed-through Broker Quate from
a thirdparty vendor. in the event that far value & based upon 2 sngle
sourced Broker Quote, tese seapities are categonized as Level 3 of the far
walue hierarcry. Enoker Quotes ane tyyecally neceivied from establich ed marke!
partiopants. Aihough indspendently recerved, the Investment Adviser does
nok have the ransparency 10 view the mndedying inputs which swppoet the
market quotabion. Significant changes in the Broker Cuote wiould have direct
and proportional dhanges in the fairvalue of the seourity

The Drscounted Cash Fiow mode is based on futore cash flows genserated by
the imvestment and may be normakized based on epected imvestment
pertormance Futune cash flows ane discounted to pretent valee uang an
appropnate rate of retum, typically calibrated to the inifial ransaction date
and adusted based on Capital Asset Pridng Model andfor ather market-
based inputs. Significant changes in the unobsenable inputs wioubd result in
direct and proportional changes in the Tair value of the security. These
securities ané categarnzed as Leved 3 of the far value hierardy

Short-term debit ind rurments (such as commendal paper) having a remaining
maturity of 60 days of bess may be valued 31 amartized cost, solong a5 the
amortized cost value of gach short-term debd instruments is approodmately the
same a5 the fair value of the instrument a5 determined withou the use of
Amortized codl vaustion Thede seqxities are Cxlegarimed 35 Level 2 of Level
3 of the far value hierardy depending on the source of the base price

Sequrities that are smaller in size than insSuton 3-gzed or round kot
pasions of the particular secunifpfinstument Bype may apply an adjustment
factor o the dalyvendor-provided price for the corresponding round bt
posison b0 amive at a fair value for the applicable odd lot positices. The
adustrent factor is determimed by companing the prices of internal irades
with vendar peices, calculatng the wesghted sverage differences, andusing
that difference &5 an adjusiment factor 1o vendor prices, These sedurifies e
categorized a5 Level 3 of the fair value hieranchy

4. SECURITIES AND OTHER INVESTMERTS

lah Delwyed-Deliosry Transactiers Certain Fundd may purdhace of sl
SECUEtes 00 3 el pped-deliveny bags These transactions mwive &
cofmmitment by 3 Fund to punchase of Sell sequrities for a predetemmined price
of yield with payment and delivery taking place beyond the asstomary
setthement period. When delayed-Gelivery ransactions are cutstandng

a Fund will designate oo receive a5 coll steral liquid assets in an amount
syfficient to meet the purchase price of respective obligasions When
purchasing a secunity on A del ayed-delivery basis, a Fund Sssumes the mights
and rigks of owmership of the secenty, induding the itk of price and yield
flucteations, and takes wach Sycuations into account when determining its
WY A Fund may dispose of o renegoiiate 3 delayed-delivery ransaction
after it is entered into, which may result in a realized gain of loss. When

A Fund hag sobd  secunty on & dielayped -delivery baws, the Fund does nat
partiopate in future gaing and losses with respect 1o the security

(b} Indiation-Indexed Bonds Certain Funds may mvest in inflationindexed
bands. Infation-ndexed bonds are fixed income ssaanbes whose prinapal
walue is periodically adusted by the rate of inflation. The interest rate on
thiese T.-jﬂ-ljsligfﬂ Eh.'ﬁ'r' fined &t issuance 31 arate lower than Wﬂ| baonds
Orver the lifie of an inflation-indexed bond, however, interest will be pad
barted on & principal value, which 15 3dusted for inflston. Any inanease of
decrease in the prindpal amount of an inflation-indexed bond will be induded
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3 interest income on the Statements of Operations, even though investors do
not recee their prindpal unsl maturity. Repayment of the ofgnal bond
princpal upan matenty (35 adusted for inSation) i quaranteed in the case of
U5 TIPS For bonds that do mot proside 2 urmlar quatantes, the sdusbed
prindpal walue of the bond repaid at maturity may be less than the ongina
pringpal

i} Loan Participations, Assignments and Originatiors Certan Funds may
imvestin direct debit instruments which are interests in amounts owed 1
lemders or lendimg syndecates by corporate, goverrenental, of other borowers
A Fund's invesiments in [oans may b in the form of partidpations m loans o
asshgnments of all or a portion of koans froem therd parties of imeestments in of
onginations of loans by the Fund. A loan is often admiristered by a bank o
otfver §nanoal institution (e “lender™) that acts &5 agent for all kolders. The
agent adminisiers the tems of the loan, a5 spedfied in the loan agreement

A Fund ey ievest inomultiple serfes of tranches of 3 loan, which may have
varying berms and carmy different sssocated risks When a Fund puenchases
Fesignments from lendees it acquines direct rights against the bomowers. of the
loans These loans may indude participations in bridge loares, which are loans
gaken oufl by bomowers for @ short period (vpicady less than oneyear)
pendng s andgement of more pefmanent Bhanang thiokgh, for exenple, e
issuance of bonds, frequenty high veld bonds issued for the purpose of
acpittiens

The types of loans and related investments in which the Funds may inwest
induds, among others, senior kans, sebordnated loans (induding second
lieey [aans, B-Motes and mezzam e loans), whole [oans, oommerdal real
estate and other commendal loans and struciured loans. A Fund may
cfiginabe loans of Joquine difect inlerests in laans through prmary laan
distributions andfor in private transactions. in e case of subordn ated [oans,
here may be sgrificant indebieduess ranking shead of the bomoser's
obdigation to the holder of such 3 loan, indudingin the event of te
bosmowes™s insolvency. Mezzanine loans are typically secured by a pledge of
an agquity interedt in the mortgage bomower that ces the real edate rather
fan aninterestin a mongage

Ivesements in loans may induwde unfunded |oan commibments, whach ane
contractual obfigations for fundng Unfunded loan commitments may indude
revohang aredit facties, which may obligate 3 Fund 1o supply additionsl cash
o thie borrower on dernand . Unfunded loan eommitiments fepredent a fulune
obdigation in full, even though a percentage of the committed amount may
not b witilized by the bomower. When irvesting in 3 loan parSdpation,

3 Fund has the right 1o regeive paymen s of principal, interest and any fees to
whidh itis entithed onby from the lender seling the loan agreement and only
upeoen receipt of payments by the lender from the bomower A Fund may
fieckrde 3 Conrmitrment Bee based on The undraan portion of the underhydng
lime of credit portion of a loan In certain oroumstances, a Fund may receive a
penaldty fee upan the prepayment of a boan by a bormower Fees samed or
paid are recorded 25 2 component of interest income o inferest expense,
rrSDtil'i'\-H]'. o the Statements of Operations. Unfimded loan commitments
are reflected 25 3 Bability on the Statements of Assets and Liabilities

{d] Martgage-Related and Other Asset-Backed Securities Certain Funds may
imvest in marigage-related and ofer assel-badved ecurite s that directly o
indirecthy represent & partidpation in, of are sequned by and payabde from,
loans on red property. Momgage-related securities are geated Fom pools of
residential or commercial mongage loans, indwdng moetgage [0ans made by
sinings and loan instiutions, mortgage bankers, commerdal barks and
others These sequnties provide 3 monthly paymentwhidh comsists of both
interest and prindpal Interest may be determined by fixed or adjrstable rates
The rate of prepayments on underying mortgages will affect the price and
vidatlity of & mortgage-related security, and may have the effect of
shortening of extending the effective duration of the sequrity relative to what
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was anficipated at the time of purchase. The fimety payment of peincpal and
nterest of cennain rrortgage-related secunies is qurarantesd with the full faith
and dedt of the U5 Govemment Pools created and quaraniesd by non-
governmiental [ssuens, ndudng govemiment -Sponsofed CopOrations, may be
supported by wariows fonms of insurance or guaranbess, but there can be no
assuranie that privabe insurers or guarantors can meet their obligations under
the imsurance policies of guarantee armangements. Many of the risks of
Enviesting bn rorgage-felated seourites deoured by commerdal mongage
boans reflect the effects of local and other econemic conditions on real exate
rmarkets, e ability of tenants tomake lease payments, and fe abdity of 2
property to attract and retain tenants, These securiBies may be less liquid and
rray exhibat grea ter price vilatility than other fypes of mortgage-related of
other asset-backed seaurities. Other asset-backed securities ne areated from
Ty yiees of e, ineduding, Bt not hembed 0o, auto boams, aoCounts
recetyable, such &8 redit cand recenables and hospital actount redenvables,
home equity boans, student koans, boat loans, mebie home loans,
recreational vehide loens, marulactused housing laans, ainraft leases,
computer [eases and syndicaied bank loams. The Fund may imeestin amy level
of the capital structure of an issuer of o bgage-badied of astet-hadeed
securities, induding the equity or "first loss™ tranche

(&) Callateralized Mortgage Obligatiors ("CMOs™) are debt obligations of 2
fegal enitity that are collatersfized by whole madtgage [oans or privale
martgage bonds and dvided into dasses. CMOs are stuctured into mudtiple
damses, often referred to a5 "manches”, wih each dass beaing a different
stated manurity and entided to.a different schedule for payments of princpal
and interest, induding prepaymments. CRIO0s may bee bess Bgud and may exhibic
greater price volatifity than other types of morigagerelated or asset-backed
securities

0} Stripped Martgage-Backed Securities (T5MEST) are derivative multi-class
martgage secunities SMES are usualy structored with bwo dasses that receive
different proportions of e nterest and prindpal dismibutons on @ pool of
marigage Fssets. An SMES will have one dass that will receive all of the
Enterest (the interest-ondy of "10° dasgh, while the other dass wall receswe the
entire pnndpal (the pindpal-only or "P0O" dass). Payments recaved for 105
are induded in interest income on the Statements of Operations. Because no
pringipal wall be received at the maturity of 2n 10, adjustments are made o
the oosk of th security on a monthly basis untl masriey. These adustments
are induded in interest income on the Statements of Operations. Payments
rieceyed bof POS are treated as reductions to the cost and par value of the
secyrifies

lgh Collaterakized Debn Obligatiore ("C00s") indude Collaterdized Bond
Obdiganons {"CBO0s"), Collaseralized Loan Obligations (TCLCs ™) and other
similarty souchaned sequnities. CBOs and CLOs are types of asset-badved
securities A CBO S & trust whidh |5 badced by & dwversfied pool of hig rig,
below irmeestment qrade fixed income securties. A CLOVS & trust typically
eollaneralized by & posd of loars, which may ndude, srmong others, defrilic
and foreign senior sscured loans, senor unsecured loans, and subordinate
comparate g, induding |aans that may be rated below imvestment grade o
equivalent unrated leans. The risks of an imeesiment in 3 €00 depend largely
on the type of the collateral secunities and the dass of the C0O R which

a Fund imwests. In addiion 1o the nomal risks assodated with fiwed income
secufities dscuwseed elvew hide in this report and the Funds” Offering
Memorandum (&g, prepayment nisk, aedit risk, liquidity risk, market mig,
stucharal risk, legal risk andlinterest rate risk (which may be exacerhated if
thee interest fate payable an 2 sruciured inandng chandges bated on
rraalepes of Changes in intenest rabes of irnersly b changes i intenest
rabes)) CB0s, CLOs, and other (00 carry additional risks induding but not
Firated to, ) the possbility that dsmibutions fiom oollateral secuntieswill not
be adequate to make interest or other payments, §i) the quality of the

oollateral may dedine in value or default, (i) the g that 3 Fand may invest
I CBCks, CLOS, of ather C00s that are subordingte oo other dasses, and (v)
thee cormgdex structure of the seourly may not be tully undersicod a1 the dme
of irvestment and may produce deputes with the issuer or unexpecied
imvestment results

{H Paymant InHKind Securities Certain Funds may invest in payment inckind
sedulies (TFIKS™) PIKS may give the issuer the opfion at each interest
payment date of making interest payments in either cash andfor addtional
debs seawites. Those additonal debr secusities usually have the same terms,
inclusdirg matun ty dates and enterest rates, and assodiated risks a5 the
ofignal bonds. The daly maroet quotations of the ongnal bonds may indude
the accrwed interest (refermed 10 a5 8 “dirty price”™) and require a pro rata
adustrrent from the unrealized appred ation of depredation on investments
0 inkeresd receivable on the Statements of Assets and Liabilites

() Restricted Securites Certain Funds may hold imvestments that are subject
no begdl of contracnua restricions on resale Thess securiies may be sod
privately, but may be redquined 10 be regstered or exempled from such
regitration bedofe bimng <old to the peble. Private placement seounlies ie
gener dly corsidered (o be restricted  Disposal of restricted imestments may
involve tme-consuming negetiations and expenses, and prompt sale 3t an
aneplable price may be dificult to achieve. Restriged investments held by
the Funids a1 May 31, 2023, a5 applicable, are disdlosed in the Hotes 1o
Schedule of nvesments

[ Structured Nates Certain Funds may imeest m structured notes and othes
rel ated insiruments, which are peivately megotiated debt obligatons in which
the prncpal and’ of neere is determined by rederence to the performance of
3 benchmark asset, market or interest rate (an “embedded index”™), such as
seledied searites, an index of securibes or tpechied inlerest rates, o the
differential performance of bao assets of markets, such as indexes reflecting
bonds. Structured instruments miay be |ssued by corparations, indudng
banks, a5 well 25 by governmental agendies. The tenms. of sudh structured
Irstnumen s normndlly proside that ther panapal andéor ntenett payrments are
o be adutted upwards or downwands (bul ordinarnily not belaw pera) o
reflect changes in the embedded indéx while the stuchured irstruments are
cutstandng As 3 result, the interest anddor principal payments that may be
made on & stuctued product iy vany widely, depending on a vaniety of
factors, induding the wolatlity of the embedded index and the effec of
changes in the embecded index on pendpal andior interet payments

{k] Govermmant Securities and Japaness Governmant Securities
Government securiBies, dach & Ereasurny bills, notes and bonds, are
obligations of, of guaranteed by, governenents, har agenoes o subdhisions,
of govemmEn-sponsored enterprises. Japanese Gowernment senuities, such
a5 fregsury bills, notes and bonds, are obligations of, or quaranteed by, the
lapaness Govemment, i15 agendes of subdhisions of goveernment-sponianed
enterprises  Goweemiment sequrities and Japanese Governmen? seouities are
subject to market and interest rate ritk, and may be subject tovanying
degrees of ceditrisk. Govemment securities and Japanese Government
seutied indude Zeno coupon weanbes, whidh do not detibute intenst on 4
urment basis and tend 1o be subpect to greater marker nsk than nierest-
paning sedurites of sirmdar maturities

1 U.5. Government Agencies er Gevernment-Spensored Enterprises

Certain Funds may invest in secunties of LS, Govemament agendies or
ConRmment-sponsaied enterprines LS. Govmniment Seculities s
obligations of and, in certain cases, quaranteed by, the 15 Government, it
afendes of InArumentalities. Sorme LS. Gonemment seauitied, wdh a8
Treasury bills, notes and bonds, and securities guaranteed by the Government
Hational Morigage Assodation {TGNMA™ or ~Ginnie Mae™), ane suppored
by the full faith and ceditof the U5, Government; others, such a5 those of
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the Federal Home Loan Banks, are supported by the right of the issuer to
[airowy om e LS. Departmeent of the Treasury (the “LULS. Treasury™); and
others, sich as hose of the Federal Mational Mangage Assadation ("FNMA™
of “Fannie Mae”), are supparted by the decretionany authonity of the LS
Govermnment o purchase the agendy’s oblgations. U S Govemment securities
gy incude 280 @Upon seourites, which da not disbibute interest on a
curment basis and tend to b= subject to 3 greater nisk than interest-paying
seiities of similar matunites

Government-related quarantors (e, notbaecked by the full faith and medi of
thee L5, Governrnent) indude FNMA and the Federal Home Loan Morigage
Corporation ("FHLMC® or " Freddie Mac™). FNMA i a govermiment-sponsored
corporation. FNMA purchases conventional &, not nsured o guarantesd by
ary govemanent agendy) residential mongages from 3 st of spproved
selberifuenvicens whedh indude state and federally dharénsd sinangs and loan
assodiations, muluad savings banks, commendial banks and qedt unicas and
maftgage bankers, Pass-throwgh securites 1ssued by FNMA e guarantesd as
to timely payment of pincipel and interest by FRMA, but are not badeed by
the full fasth and credit of the U5, Government. FHLMC issues Pamtidpation
Certificates (TPCS™), which ane pass-through securities, eadh representing an
uridvicked imteredt in a pool of retdent s mortgaoes. FHLMC guarantess the
timely payment of interest and ultimate collecGon of principal, but FCs are not
backed by the full faith and credit of the U5 Govemment

In Jure 2009, FHMA and FHLMC stamted issuing Undioem Morigage-Backed
Securities (" UMES™) i place of their cument offerings of TEA-#lighle
Secdities {the “Single Secumity Bitiatve"). The Singie Security Inigathe sses
b suppont the overdl liquidity of the TBA market and abgns the
characheristics of FNMA and FHLMC certificates. The effects that the singls
Sequnity Initiatve may have on the market for TEA and other mortgage-
Dacked seunilies ane uncertan

Fecdl-Sirming strategies can be wsed where 3 Fund seeks to extend the
expiration of matufity of 3 potition, sidh 24 & TEBA seaxity on an undeshing
asset, by dasing out the position befiore expiration and opening 3 new
pasition with respect 10 substangally the same enderying asse1 with a later
expiration date. TBA seqrities purchased or sold are reflected on the
Sratements of Assets and Liabilitles a5 an asset or Bability, respecively

|mb When-le=ued Transsctiors Cerfan Funds may purchase or sell secqunties
on 3 when-ssed basis. These ransactions ane made condionally becase
secunity, although autherized has nod yet besn issedin the market
Transactions o puschase of sl securines on awhen-ssued basis mvole

a commitment by a Fund 10 purchase or 5l thess seaurities for a
predetermined price of Wield, with payment and delivery taking pace beyond
the axtomary sstfement period A Fund may sell when-issued sequrities
before they ane delvered, which may result in 3 reslized gain o loss

i} Bank DMigations Bank obligations inwhich & Fund may invest mdude
certificates of deposit, bankers’ acceptances, and fixed time deposits
Cersficates of deposit are nisgatable cernficates issped agansl funds
depodited in a commerdal bank for a definite period of Gme and saming a
spedfied return. Bankers' acceplances are negotiable dratts or balls of
exchange, nonmally drawn B 2n importer of exparter o pay for specific
merchandise, which are "accepted” by 4 bank, meaning, in effect, that the
bank unconditionally agrees [0 pay the face value of the irdinumen ! on
manity, Foed time deposits are bank obigatons payable at a waned
malrily date and beaing interest at a fooed rate, Fooed Bme depuoiits may be
withdrawn cn demand by the investor, but may be subject to early
withdrawal penalties which vary depending upon market conditions and the
remEning maturity of the obdgation

5. EORROWIRGS AND OTHER FIHAMCING TRAHSACTIONS

Thie followanig disdosnes contan mbormaton on the Funds” alality 1o lend o
borrows cah or securities to the extent permitted under the Offering
Bemnarandum, which may be viewed a3 borrowing or finandng ransactions
bry the Funds. The becation of these imstnuments is desaibed below. For a
detated desoription of credit and counterparty nsks that can be assodated
with bomowindgs and other finanadng ransactions, please see Note 7,
Princpal and Other Rigks

{a] Repurchase Agreemants Certain Funds may endgage in repurdh e
agreements. Uinder the terme of a typical repurchase agreement,

& Fund purchases an underhang debit obligation {collateral) subject 1o an
ubligation of the seller to repurchase, and a Fund bo resef], the obidgation at
an agreed-upon price and time. I an apen manry repurchase agreement,
there is no pre-cetenmined repurchase date and the agreement can b
rerrinatid by the Fund of counfefparty a8 ary e The macke value of the
collateral mast be equal to or exceed the total amount of the repurchasze
ubdigations, induding interest. Repurchase agreements, induding acoued
interest, are induded on the Satemnents of Assets and Lisbilites Intenest
eamed & recorded a5 a component of intenest income on (ke Statements of
Operations. I perods of increased demand for collaterd, 3 Fund may pay a
fee for receipt of oolaneral, whidh may resull in Bnterest sxpense bo the Fund

{b] Reverse Repurchase Agresments Certain Funds may enler inno feverse
repurchaze agreements. In a reverse repurchiase agreement, a Fund delivers a
sequnity in exchange foe Gash 10 3 finan dal instution, the contenparty, with
3 simulfanecas agresment to repurchass the same o substantialy the same
S0y 41 30 agreed upon price nd date. in an open Fatriy reverse
repunchase agreement, there & no pre-detenmined repurchase date and the
aghéement can be terrmnated by the Fund of counterparty at amy e

A Fund is entitled bo receive prindpal and interest payments, if any, made on
the security delivered o the counterparty during the temn of the agreement
Cash recedned in exchange Tor securities delivered pius accrued intenet
payrrents 1o be made by a Fund to countempartes ane refected o a liabdity
an the Statements of Assets and Labilites. Inferest payments made by a Fund
0 cInterpartes ane recorded 35 3 component of interest expense on the
Statemends of Operations. In periods of indreased demand for the sequrnity,

@ Fund may receive 3 fee for use of the sequerity by the counterparty, which
mary resulllin imberest incomse bo & Fund. A Fundwill segreqate ssers
determined to be lbgad by PIMCO or will ctherwise Cover its obligations
wnder rewirde repurchate agreements

ie) Sele-Birgbacks  Certain Fundk may enter inte finanang ransadions
refemmed to s sae-buybades’ A sale-banback finanding ransaction comsists
of a sale of a sequrity by a Fund to a finandd institution, the counterpary,
with 3 simmAtane0Us agreement (0 repurchase the same of substantaly the
same Lecnity a1 30 sgreed-upon price and date. A Fund i not entitled to
receive principal and interest payments, if any, made on the sequrify soid o
the counterparty during the term of the agreement. The agread-upan
progesds for seouriges to be repurchased by a Fund are reflecied a5 a latiliny
of e Statements of Asiets and Liablities. A Fuend will r-.-cr:-mizf Thitl IO
represented by the price diferential bebween the price regeived for the
transherred security and the agread-upon repurchate price. Thas i cormmmcnly
refesred bo a5 the “price drop’. A price drop consists of (i) the fregone nterest
and imfladonary income adjustments, if any, a Fund would have atherwise
receved had the security not been sold and (i) the negotiated Snandng tems
biebwvieen 2 Fund and countesparty. Foregone mtenest and inflanondany inadmi
adustments, if any, are recorded a5 components of intersst income on the
Slatements of Operations. interest payments based upon neganated finanang
ferms made by 3 Fund to coenterparties are recorded a3 a component of
interest expense on the Statements of Operations. In perods of inoeased
demand for the security, 3 Fund may receive 3 fee for use of the security by
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the counterparty, which may result ininterest income to 2 Fund. A Fund wil
Segregate d55ens delermmined 10 b bguid by FIMCO or will ofhenaise cover it
obligations under sale-buyback trarsactions

{dh Shert Sabes Certain Funds may enter info short sales fransacBons. Short
Lt Are Iransactions in which the Fund sells & secunty at it may noL o

A Fund may make short sales of securities to () offset potential dedines in
long positions in similar securities, (i) boincrease the feibility of the Fund,
(i} for investment return, () a5 part of a ek arbitrage strategy. and ) as
part of its overall portfolio management srategies imvolving the e of
derivative instruments. When a Fund ergages in a short sale, it rsy bomow
Uhee security sold short and diliver it bo the countemparty. The Fund will
ordinarily have to pay & fee or premiwm 1o bomow 3 security and be obligated
b ey the bender of the security amy dvidend o inferest that aconues on the
secyrity duing the period of the loan. Seqmities sold in short sale ransactons
and the dividend of interest parvable on ach seanties, ifany, are reflected a5
payatie for shart sales on the Statements of Astets and Liabaties. Short sabes
exporse e Fund tothe risk that itwill be required to cover its short position
ata time when the security or other asset has appredated in value, this
resufting in losses (o the Fund. A shoet sale is " agamnst the box”™ if

Uhee Fuenid Bedde in it podtfolio of has the mght t acquire e security sold
Short, of securities dentical 1o the seaunity sold shorl, 4t no addtional cost

A Fund wall be subject to additional risks to thi extent that it engages in shart
s3les that are not "against the bae™ A Fund's loss on 3 shoet sale ooutd
theceetically be unismated in cates wivere the Fund is unatile, for wila Tever
reasan, b dose out its short pasition

6. FINAHCIAL DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

The fodlowing disdoswres contain information on how and wiy the Funds use
finanda derivative instruments and how finandal desvative instruments
affect the Funds’ financial position, results of operations and cash flows. The
bocason and far value amaunts of these instruments on the Statements of
Ausets and Liabilities and the netrealiped gain (oss) and net changs in
unrealized sppreciation (deprediation) on the Statements of Operations, each
categorized by type of finandial derivative confract and related risk exposure,
are incuded in @ table in the Notes o Schedule of Invesements. The finandal
derivative instruments outstanding as of period end and the amounts of net
realized gain (oss) and net chandgs in unrealized appredanon {depredation)
on financal denivative instrumen s dising the period, a5 dsdesedin the
Mates to Schedule of Investments, serve a3 indicators of the volume of
finandd derivative activity for the Funds

|ah Farward Fareign Currency Contracts Cerfain Funds may engage in
fsnward foreign cumency Contracts in connection with settling planned
plirchases o sales of seowities, to hedge te OATenoy exposure 3500 ated
with some of all of a Fund's sequities or 25 part of an imesiment srategy. A
fanward foreign cumency coniradt is an agreement between two partes 1o buy
and sell & imency at a sef price on & funure date, The market value of 3
forward forsign qurency conitract fluchaates with changes in foreign aumency
exchange rates. Forwand forelgn asrency conracts sre marked to market
daly, and the chang® in vaue is reconded by a Fund a3 an unnealided gain of
bt Realized gains of ktses are squal to the differnce between the value of
the confract at the Sme it was opened and the value at the time itwas dosed
aned are recordied upon delivery of receipt of the cumency. These contracts
Frudry Enwolve rrearlost risk in excess of the unrealized gain or Ioss reflected on
thes Statements of Assets and Lisbilities. In addition, 3 Fund could be exposed
torisk if the countenparties an: wnabbe 1o meet the terrs of the contracts or if
the walue of the currency changes unifavorably to the functiona qemency. To
mitigate such risk, cash or securiBes may be exchanged a5 ool ateral pursuant
to the terms of the underlying contracts
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Certain Funds, having a hedged (lass, may o enter into forward foreign
QurTency contracts designed to offset the effect of hedging at e Fund level in
cder to beave the hedged Class with an exposure 10 wmendes ofher than the
furctional currendy. There can be no quaranbes that thete Clasw ipechc
torward fareign qumency contracts will be successhul

[b] Futures Contraces Certain Funds may enter into futures contracts. A
futures contract is an agreement o buy or sell a seaunty of other asset for a
sef price on a fulure date and is traded on an exchange. A Fund may use
fuures CORTAcTs o LN &g 115 Exporune 10 the Seunes markeds of o
movemenls inintenest rates and curmen cy walues. The primany nsks asodated
with the ude of futures contracts are the imperfect comelation bedseen the
change in maket value of the securities hedd by a Fund and the prices of
futures contracts and the possibility of an Biguid market. Futures contracts
are walued based upon their quated dady settement prices. Upan entering
into @ futures contract, 3 Fund is required to depositwith its fulures broker an
amount of cash, LS Government and Agency Cbligations, of ssled severegn
debd, in acooedance with the initial margin requirernents of the broker or
exchange. Futures confracts are marked to market daily and bazed on such
movements in the price of the contracs, an approprate payable or recebale
tor the dhange inwalue may be postied of colleed by the Fund (7 Futures
Wariation Margin®), Fusres Vananon Margins, Ffal'rj'. are dsdosed within
centrally deared finandal demvateve instruments on the Statements of Adtets
and Lizbilities. Gains or losses are recognized but not considered realzed until
e coniracts expire of dose. Fulures Coniracts Bnvolve, b vansng degrees,
risk of loss i encess of the Futures Variation Margin induded within
exchange raded or centrally deared finandal derivative nstraments on the
Statements of Assets and Liabilites

e} Dptiens Contracts Certan Funds may wite or pundhase ophons 1o
enthance retums of 10 hedge an edsting position of fulure irmvestment. Certain
Funds may write call and put opions on securities and finanda dervative
Imstnurrents thisy own of an which they may imvest. Wntng put opdons tends
T inirease & Fund's expasure to the underying instument. Witing call
apdions wends o dedeate 3 Fund's eposune 1o the underhying instrurment
When a Fund wrnites a call or put, an amount equal to the premium recéied is
reconded and subsequently marked to market o reflect the qument valwe of
e option wiitten. These amounts are incduwded on the Statements of Assets
and Listalides. Premiums reefved from wiiting opticns which expire e
tredted as realized qains. Fremiums recehed from writing options whidh ane
exerdeed or cosed are added 1o the procesds or offeet against amounts paid
on the underbying futures, swap. secunity of QETendy tansaction to deterrmine
ehe realized galn of loss, Cetain opthons may be weitten vath premiums to be
determined on a future date The premiums for these options are based upon
il‘Tl-L!IEI‘.‘I il atifiny pararelers at spedfied tems. A Fund a5 awriter of an
aption has no oatnol gver whiether the undertying s rument may be sold
(T 1) o purchiased (Cput”) and & 3 redult bears the rdcked risk of an
uenfavorable change in the price of the instrumen? un derying the written
option. There is the risk & Fund may nod be able 1o enter into 3 dosing
wrantacticn because of an iBquid marke

Cegtain Funds may also purchase put and cal options. Prnchasng call options
fends toinease a Fund's exposure bo the underlying instument. Purdhasing
pul options tends 8o dedrease 3 Fund's epdsune 1o the underfying instrument
& Fund pays a premium which & indudid a5 an asset on the Statements of
Assets and Uatehines snd wibsequently maked o market 1o reflect the
current value of the cpson. Premiums paid for purchasing opgons which
Epire ané ireated a5 reslized lodsed. Certan options may be purdh sed with
premiums bo be determined on 3 future date, The premiums for these options
ane based upon implied wolatlity perameters at specfied terms. The fisk
Fssod ated with purchasing put and call opsicns i limited to the premium
paid. Premiums pad foe purchasng opbions which are exerased or dosed are
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added to the amounts paid or offset against the proceeds on the enderdying
Eves et Iransaction (o detemine the realized '}.’l'ﬂ oF |65 when the
underhing ransaction is executed

Credit Detault Swaptions Certan Funds may wiite or purchase gedit default
SwAptions 1o ledde expotune o thie oredit s of an mnvesiment without
making a commitment 8o the underying instument. A gedit default swaption
Fs an option to sl or buy qedit protedtion to a spedfic reference by entering
Ento a pre-gefined swap agreement by some speified date in the future

Foreign Cumrency Options: Certain Funds may write or pierchase foreign
QUTENCY OPTIONS 10 be wsed a5 & short o long hedge aganst posstie
waniatans in foreign exchangs rates of 1o gain exposure to foregn currendes

Intlation-Capped Dptions Certain Funds may wiite o purchase inflation-
capped options to enhance refurns of for hedging oppoctunimes. The purpose
of purchasing inflasion-capped options is to protect a Fund from inflation
ergrion abowe & ceftain rate on 3 gven noSonal expasure, A foor can be
used to give downside protection o investments in inflation Enled products

Interest Rate-Capped Options Certain Funds may write or purchase interest
rate-capped opfions 10 ephance retums of for hedgng opportunities. The
purpose of puschasing inberest rate-capped opliens is 10 peotect & Fund Fom
Noatng rate ek abowe & cemain rate on 3 given noBonal expotune, A Booe
CAN B uded 10 givie dowmaich PROTECT N 1 ANWESITeRIS i intered rate lirked
products

Interesy Rate Swaptiors Certan Funds may weite o parchase interest rate
swapdions which ane opBons 1o enter into 3 pre-defined twap sgreement o
to shorten, extend, cancel or athenwise modiy an existing swap agreement,
by s specified date In the futise: The wiiter of e Swaption becomes the
counterparty to the saap if e buyer exerdses, The inerest rate swaption
agreent will speafy whether thie buyer of the svaption will be a Sxed-rate
receiver or 3 Exedrate payer upon eerdse

Optiors on Exchange-Traded Futures Comracts Certain Funds maywrite o
purchase opticns on exchange-traded futures contracts (" Futures Oplion™) o
hedge an existng position or future investment, for spequlative pusposes of (o
Mhandge exposure 10 mankel movements. A Futures Ophon 5 &0 oplicn
contract in which the underbdng insirument 5 3 single futures coniract

Dptiors on Securities Certan Funds may wiite of purchase options on
SeCfItES b erhan O nebums oF 10 hedge an exditing poation of future
investment. An opSion on 3 security uses 2 spedfied security as the underfying
imstumient for the Gplion eontrac

(ch Swap Agreements Certain Funds may imoest in sy ap sgreements. Swap
agreements are bilaterally negotiated agresments between 3 Fund and a
counterparty to exchange or awvap imestment cash flows, assets, foreign
cumences of market-inked retums af specfied, future infervals. Swap
Agrésments may be peivately negotiated in the OTC market of may be deaned
throwgh a third-party, known 35 3 ceniradl counferparty or derivatives dearing
organizabion ("cenfrally deared swaps™). A Fund may enter into atset, dredit
default, oross-ourmency, interest rate, total retumn, vanance and other forms of
S A HOFERITERTS B MANA0E |15 exposure 1o oredil, OUITEncy, ENTenest rate,
comemadity, equity and inflation sk, In conneciion with these agreements,
secupities of cadh may be identified a4 collavéral or mangin in accondance wath
the terms of the respective swap agreements to provide aseets of valpe and
recourse i the svent of default or banbnupiopinsohency

Centraly deared swaps are marked 0 market daily based upon valuatons a5
detenmined from the underbying confract or in sccordance with the
requirernents of the central Coun terpamy of derivalivis deaning onganizaton
Changes in market value, if any, are reflected a2 a companent of net chiange
b undedized apprediatbon (deprediation) on the Statements of Opefatiomns
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Daity changes in valuation of centrally deared swaps ("Swap Vanation

Bargn "), if any, are dsdosed within centraly deared finandal derivative
imstnuments. on the Statements of Assets and Liabdites. OTC swap payments
recereed of pund At the begrning of Me redtunemment penod ae mduded o
the Statements of Assets and Liabdities and represent premiums paid o
received upan entering into te swap sgreement to compensate for
differences besween the stated terms of the swap agreement and prevailing
markel condeons iredt spreadk, qumendcy exchange rates, nterest rates, and
atfier relevant factors). Lipfront premius recerved (paid) are inidally recorded
&s liahilides (assets) and subsequently maked o matket to reflect the oument
value of the swap, These upfront premeurns are reconded 25 realiped gains or
losses on the Statements of Ciperations upon termination or matueity of the
swap, A liquidstion payment recerved of made at the termination of the swap
is reconded as realized gain or loss on the Statements of Cperations. Net
perddc payments racenved or pad by & Fund afe induded a5 part of redlized
gains or bpsses on the Statements of Operations

For purposes of applying certan of a Fund's investment policdes and
restctons, Saap agreements, like other dervative indmuments, mday be
vialued by a Fund at market value, noticnal value of Rull exposure value In the
cade of acredit defaudl twap, in apphying certain of Bhe Fund™s invesment
podickes and restrictions, the Fund will value the cedit default swap at it
notional value or its full exposure value (e, the sum of the noficnal amount
for the contract plus the market value), but may value the gedit defacit svap
At rarket value for purpases of appldng certain of the Fund’s other
imvestment policdes and restrictions. For example, the Fund may value oedit
default swaps at full exposure value for purposes of the Fund's credit quality
guidelines (if any) because such value in general betier reflacts the Fund's
3CTua econamic exposure during the tem of the edit default swap
gheement A3 result, & Furd riosy, b times, have notional espature B an
dsset dass (betore netmng) that i greater of lesser tan the stated init of
restiction noted in the Fund's Offering Memarandum In this context, bath
e notional ameunt and the market value may be positive o negative
dependng on whether the Fund & selfing or buying protection through the
credit default swap. The manner inwhich certain sequnifies of other
Imstrurmenis ane valued by the Fund for pumeases of Sppling mvestment
polices and restricBons may differ from the manner inwhidh hose
imvestments ane valued by ofer types of investors Entering milo S~vap
agresments imvolves, tovarying degrees, eiements of interest, credit, market
and documentation risk in excess of the ameunts recognized on the
Statements of Adsets and Liabilices Such nsks mvolve the posabdity tat
therie will be no liquid marke for these agreements, that the counterparty
the agreements may default on its oblgation to perfom ar disagree as to the
meaning of contractud terms in the agreements and that there may be
unfavorable changes in interest rates or the vales of the asset upon which
Ehe Svap is based

A Fund's maximum rigk: of loss from counterparty credit sk is the discounted
met value of the cash fows 1o be received from e counterpaty ower the
conbract’s remaining life, 1o the extent that amount i positive. The risk may
be mitigated by having a masker netting amangement between a Fund and
he countermparty and by the posting of collatera to a Fund o cover a Fund's
Exposune o i CORNTEPRTY

To the extent a Fund has 3 policy to limit the ned amount owed to of (o be
tecervid from & dmgle Counenpesty under exsling Weap Agreements, tud
limitation orly applies o munterpartes o OTC swaps and does not apply to
centrally cdeared swaps where the counterpartyis a central aounterparty of
denvatives deaning organizadion

Credit Defoult Swap Agreements Certain Funds may enter info credit cefault
Swaprs on oorporate, loan, sovereign, LS. mumicpal or U 5. Treadury issues to
Pt 3 measure of profection against defaults of e ksuers (e, toredyce
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risk where 3 Fund owns of has expesure to the referenced obfigation) or to
Lake an acive (o0 of Short positon with resped to the likelibood of 3
particular isswer's default Credt default swap agresments invahve one party
rriaking & stream of payments (efermed 10 a5 e buyer of protecton)
anather party {the seller of protedion) in exchange for the ight 1o recese a
spedfied return in the event that the referenced enfity, obligation or index,
spedfied in the awap agresment, undergoes a certain aredit event A5 a seller
of pratection on gedt defaltl svap sreements, & Fund will generaly receive
froen the buyer of protection a fiwed rate of income thioughout 1he tem of the
swap provided that there is o credt event As the seller, 3 Fund weould
effectively add leverage ta its porthobo because, in addition 10 its okl net
assets, the Fund would be subjedt to investiment exposure on the notional
armosnt of the swap

It Fund is a seller of profection - and & credit event aoours, 85 defimed wndes
the terms of that panticular swap agreement, 3 Fund will either () pay to the
buyer of protechon an amount equal o the nobonal amount of the swap ad
take delivery of the referenced obligation, other deliverable oblgations or
underhing seauities comprsng the referenced index or i) pay & net
settlement amount in the fanm of cash of securities equal to the national
armaient of the seiap less the recoveny value of the referenosd abligaton of
unidering securities comprisng the referenced index if a Fund s a buyer of
protection and 3 gredit event ooours, &5 dedned under the terms of that
particular swap agreement, 3 Fund will either {f) receive from the seller of
protecion an Fmount equd to the noliona smount of the wap and deliver
the referenced oblgation, afher deliverable obitgations or underdying
secyrifies comprizsing the referenced index or (i) receive 3 Ret setifement
amountin the form of cash or secunties equal to the notional amount of the
s kess the recovery value of the referenced obligation or underhying
secufities compiiing e referenced mdi. Recovery valies ane edmated by
erakoet rakers comsidening ether indusiny standand recovery rates of entity
spedhic factors and considerations untl a credil event ocours. 11 3 credst event
has oocumed, the recovery value is determined by a fadlitated aucfion
wherety 3 minamium nsmber of alowable broker bids, together with 2
speafied valuation method, are used to coulate the setfiement value. The
ability 1o deliver ather obligaton s may resull in a dheapest-ro-gdeliver aption
{the buryer of protection's right 1o chooze the deliverzble obligation with the
lowwest value followang a aedt event)

Credt default swap agreements on credit ndices imaolve one party making a
stream of payments to anather party in exchange for the right o receive 2
spedhied retum in the event of 8 write-down, princpal shoetiall, interest
shiortfall or detault of 3l or part of the referenced entities comphsing the
creditindex. A edilindex s & basket of cred | nstnuments of exposures
designed to be representative of some part of fie gedt markel 36 2 whole
These indices are made up of reference aedis hat are judged by a poll of
deabirs 10 be thie rroal Bgud enBies in Che oredt dt‘-du:-liwap rrarker based
on he secion of the index Companents of the indices may indude, but are
nak Emited fo, invesiment grade seaurities, high yield ssqunties, asset-badoed
secltifies, emenging markets, andfor various credit rafings within each sector
Creditindices are Faded using credt default swaps with standardized terms
ncluding a fixed spread and standand maturity dates. An index credt default
swdp retefences all the names i the madex, and i1 thene i 3 detault, the dedit
event is settled based cn that name's weight in the index. The composition of
the indices changes periodically, usually every @ months, and for mesl
indices, each name has an equal weight in the index. A Fund may use aedit
defaislt swaps on credit indices 1o hedye & portfolio of aredin default swaps o
bonds, which i5 kss expensive than it would be to buy many aredt default
Swaps to achisee 3 urmdar effect. Credit default Svaps on indoes e
mstnements for protecting imvesbors owning bonds against default, and
braders use them bo speilate on changes n aedt qualify

Impleed credit spreads, represented in abedute terms, uilized in determining
the marke! value of cedt defaull saap agreements on corporate, oan,
sovereign, U5 rumidpal or LS. Treasury issues &5 of period end, of amy, e
disdged m the Motes 1o Schedule of investments. They tense 2 an indscace
of the current status of paymenbiperformance sk and represent the licelihood
o nisk of defauld for the referenced entity. The implied cedt spread of 3
particular referenced entity reflects the oast of Duyingfselng pratection and
may indide u|:ﬂl'-i'rﬂr payTnents required 1o e made Lo enler into the
agreement. Wider dedit spreads represent 3 detenoration of the referenced
entity's grecit soundness amd a greater likelhood or rigk of default or oher
oredit event ocouming a5 defined under the terme of the agreement. For credit
default swap agreements on aswet-badked sequniies and Tedit indices, the
quited emarket prces and rewling vales sene a5 the indicator of the aurment
status of the paymentperfoemande risk. Inareasing market values, in absolute
Rerires when compared bo the nobonal amcunt of the swap, repretent a
deteriaration of the referenced entity’s credit soundness and a greater
liketitond of risk of defalt or other credit event soasrring a5 defined under
the terms of the agresment

The maxmum pobential amount of future payments undeooumted) that

A Fund as 3 sefler of protection could be required 1o make under § qedit
default swap agreement equals he notional amaunt of the agreement
Hotional amounts of each individu 2 gedit default swap agreement
cutstandng as of period end for which 3 Fundis the seller of protection are
disdosed in the MNofes 1o Schedule of Investoments. Thede polential amounts
would be partially ofteet by amy recovery values af the respective neferenced
obdigations, upfront payments received upon entering into the agreement, o
net amounts received from the settlement of buy profection credit default
Swap agreements entered into by 8 Fund for the same referenced entity or
efilities

Interest Rate Swap Agreemenes Certain Funds are subject 1o inferest rate
sk exposure o e noma oourse of pursigang ehedr investment ofpectives
The value of the fixed rate bords that & Fund holds may decrease if interest
rates nise Tohelp hedge aganst this risk and tomaintain its akility to
generate income at prevailing market rates, a Fund may enter into interest
rate swap agreements. inlerest rate Hvap -ZQIE?"E“EEIH‘-'H'WE the exchange
bry & Fund with another party Sof their respectve commitment o pdy of
receive interest on the notional amount of pindpal. Certsn forms of interes
rale wap sgreements may indude: () interest rate caps, under whidh, in
return for 3 premium, one party agrees to make payments to the other to the
extent that interest rates enceed a spedfied rate, or “cap”, (i) interest rate
Bors, under whidh, in return for 3 premicm, one party agrees to make
paryereenits &0 the other 5o the extent that injenes rates fa8 bebow a specfied
rate, or “floor®, (if) interest rate collars, under which a party sells a cp and
purdhases a floor of Woe versa in an attempd 1o protect itself against interest
rate movements exceeding gven minimuem of maximum kevels, (v) callable
inbesest rate swaps, under which the buyer pays an upfront fee in
vonsideration for the Aght to early terminate e swap ransaction inwhole,
At 2o 008t and a8 & predetenmined date and tme peior o the matunity date,
(¥} spreadiocks, which allow the interest rate swap users to lodk in the
Borward differential (or spread) betaeen e infenest rate swap rate and a
spedfied benchmark, or (i) basis swaps, under whidh two parties can
exchangs vanable mierest rates Dised on different SEgmen s of monsy
markets

7.PRINCIPAL AHD OTHER RISKS

[#] Principa] Rizks In the normal course of business, the Funds for Acguired
Fund{s), if apphicable) rade finandal mstruments and enter info finandal
wansactions whene nisk of potenial koss exdsts due to such things &5 changes
im Hhee readost (arket nek) of failere of inability of the atter party 1o 2
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tranzaction to perform {oredit and counterparty fick), See bebow for 3 detailed
desaiption of selec prindpal risks

Fund ol Funds Risk To the extent hat certsin Fumds irmest substantialy i of
their respeciive assets in Acquired Fundis), the risks sssodatedwith investing
i thiste Fursds will be closely related to the ids assodated wath the wdaurites
and other investments held by the Acquired Fund(s) The ability of the Funds
b achieve their respective imeestment abjectives may depend upon the ability
of the Acquired Fund(s) to achieve their respecive investment objectives
These can be no assurance that ;e imvesment objecive of amy Acquired
Furdis) will be adeeved The NAY of an Acguiring Fund will fluctuate in
response 8o dharnges in the regpectve NAV of the Adquired Fundish in whid it
nvests

In e normal course of business, Acquired Fund(s) Irade finandal insaments
ard enter into finandal ransacions where risk of potentia boss exdsts due o
changes in the market (markel resk), of fadure o inabdity of the other party o
& ransacmon to perform (medi and counténparty )

Market Risks A Fund's imvestments i finana dl denvatve nsirumens i
other finandal instrurments expase the Fund ba various ks sudh &, but not
Barrtid bo, interest rate, fanesgn (ron-LL5 ) currency, equety and commadty
risks

Interest rate rigk is the rick that fied income seouities and ofer instruments
hetd by & Fund may dedine i value becarss of an indrease in nieest rates (f
narrenal ntenest rates rise, the value of certain foed ncome seadnities held by
3 Fund woould likehy decrease. A normingl Inberest rabe can be desonbed a5 M
sum of a red interest rale and an expected inflation rate Inferest rate
changes can be sudden and unpredicable, and 3 Fund may lose money if
hiese chamiges ace nol antiapated by Fund mansgement A Fund may mol be
able 1o hedge agenst changes in interest rates of may chodse not 1o do 5o for
cost of cther reasons. In addition, amy Redges may not work % intended

Aoy of the date of this repart, interest rates in the United States and many
parts of the world, indwding certain European counfnies coninue lo indrease
In efforts o combatinfation, the LS. Federal Resenve ratsed interest rates
midleple times in 2022 and has indicated an expectation that itwill continue
L P S Imberesl Fates in 2023 Thus, the Fund carently faces & héighiened
Tevel of rick associated with rising interest rates andfor bond yields. This could
be driven by 3 variety of factors, incuding but not Emited to ceniral bank
manetary palicies, changng infation or real growth rates, general economic
condiions, increasing bond issuances or reduced market demand for bow
wielding investments. Further, while bond markers have steadily grown over
thee past thee decides, dealer inventories of conparate bands are near histone
Bowws in relation bomarket size. As a resull, there has been a significant
reckiciion in e 2hility of dealers 10 “maks markets”™

Foreign dnon-Ul.5 ) securities in Bhis. report are dassified by the country of
inceeporation of aholdng In cemain nstances, & securitys country of
Ecomporation may be different from its coundry of stonomic expodure

Il a Fund irvests directly in foreign (non-U S ) cemendes or in securities that
trade in, and receiwe reweniues in, foreidn on-U.S ) curmendies, of in fimancal
derivative nsiruments that provide exposure bo foreign (ron-U 5 ) curendies,
it will b subpeat to the fisk that these aumendes will deding in value relatve
b the base cumrency of the Fund, or, in the case of hedang positicns, that
thee Fuand's bare currency will dedane in valae relatie 10 the curmendy being
hedged Currency rates in foreign countries may fuchuate sgnificanthy over
short pesiods. of time for a number of reasons, induding changes in inferest
rates, intervenBion {or the failure toimtenene) by U5 o foreign govemments,
central banks or supranationsl entities such a5 the Intemationa Monetany
Furd, or by the imposition of qurrency conirdls of other political developments

in the United $3ates or dbroad As 2 result, 3 Fund's investments in foreign
l:‘l.ll'f!?ﬂl:h"ﬂ?ﬂ(‘ﬂ'l'ﬂﬂ‘.?ﬂ SECUrives Frary redce Ehe Funed's retums

The market values of equites, wch 35 common stodks and prelemed seainies
af ety refated investments dudh & futured and options, have Ristoncally
risen and fallen in periodic cydes and may dedine dus to genera market
conditions which are not specaficaily related o a parSodar company, such a¢
redl or perceived adverse economic cond ticns, changes i the general

ol ok o Corporate edTINGS, changes in mbenet of cusrendy rades, public
healdy emergendes, such as the spread of infectious iliness or dsesse, or
adverse imvestor sentiment genérally. They may dso dedime duwe to fackors
which affect a particular industry or indusfries, such as labor shortages or
inreaed production costs and competitive conditions within an industry
Diffesrent types of equity securites may react differenthy to these
developrments. Equely seunties and equity réated investments generally haw
greater markel price volatilitg than fixed income seauities

Credit and Counterparty Risks & Fundwill be sxposed to credit sk 1o
parties with whom it trades and will abso bear the risk of settlement default
A Fund minimizes concendrasons of oedit risk by undertaking transactions
wth & large numbser of qustomess and coun leparties on recognized and
reputable exchanges, where sppiicabie, OTC defivative Fansactions ane
subpect 10 the figk Sat 4 countepaty [0 Me ransacbon will not et it
contraciual obfigations bo the other party. a5 many of the profections afforded
to cenirallly cleared derivative ransactions might not be available for OTC
desivative Iransactiors. For derivatives raded on an exchange of trough a
cEnTral countemsarty, aedit mk resides with the credtworthiness of

the Fund’s deaning broker, or the dearingfouse itself, rather than with &
COURSErPTY N an OTC dervative transachon . Chandges in regulation relating
&0 3 Fund's use of denwatives and refated instruments could potenally Emat
of impact the Fund's ability to invest in desivatives, limit the Fund's ability to
empboy certain strateges that use derivatives andfor adversely affect the value
of perforrmance of denvatives and the Fund A Fursd could lose money if the
issines o guarantor of 3 fixed income security, o the counterparty o a
Bnancal denvative insnemenis Contrac, repurdhate sgreement of a loan of
portfolio sequnties, is unable or mwilling to make timely princpal andior
interest payments, or 10 othenwise honor it cblgations, Securities and

i ancial cimeative Instnuments ane wibjsct 1o vanying degrees of aedit gk,
whidh may b reflecied in aredit ratings

Simnilar 1o credit risk, a Fund may be exposed 1o counteparty sk, of the risk
that an institulion or ather entity wath which 3 fund has unsettled or open
wransactions will default FIMCO, 5 the Manager, minimezes counterparty
risks b the Funck through 3 numiber of wars. Frior to entering into
wransacions with a new counterparty, the PIMCO Courterparty fisk
Coramilies onducts an extensive credit rndes of dech counterparty and must
approve the use of sudh counterparty, Furthemmore, pursiant fo the terms of
ne '.JI"I}E”]"H'I':I Comract, o the extent that unpasd amounts owed [0 3 Fund
exceed 3 predetermined threshold, sudh counterparty shall advance calateral
& & Fund in the form of cash o securities egual in value 1o the unpaid
amount oweed B0 3 Fumd. A Fund may invest such calateral in secmities of
athier instruments andwall typically pery intenest fo the counterpaty on e
collateral received. B the unpaid amount oweed to 3 Fund subseguently
dereases, 3 Fund would be required 1o resurn to the counterparty &l or a
postion of the collatersl previowsly sdvanced. PEVCO alRernpas 1o minimise
COLIRGEEITY vek may, howeser, be unsuooeishl

A1 ransactions in listed seourities am setfedipaid for upon delivery using
approved counterparties. The risk of default is considered minimal, a5 delivery
of securies sold is only made once a Furd has received payment. Payment is
made on & punchase once the Secunibes have been delivered by the
counerpaity. The trade will Sl i either party fails to mest it obbgation
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k) Ocher Rizks in genesal, each Fund may be mbject to additional risks,
including, but not Emited to, nisks related fo government regul ation and
intervention in finandaf markets. operational risks, figks assodated with
finandal, economic and global market dsruptions, and oybersecunity fsks
Please refer toeach Fund's offering docurments for 3 more detaled
description of the risks of irmesting in the Fund

Market Disruption Risk The Funds afe subject to imeestment and operational
risks assodiated with finandial, economic and other global market
developments and disruptions, induding those angng fromwar, terroism,
market manipulation, govemament intervenfions, defaults and shutdoawns,
politecal changés or diplomatic developrnents, public health emengenes
{such as the spread of infecBous diseases, pandemics and epidemics) and
naturall environmental disasters, which can all negatively imnpact the
sequrities markets and cause a Fund fo lose value, Thiese eventts can also
lmpar the bechnolody and ather operational Sysiems upon whidh & Fund 5
senvice providers, induding PIMCO a5 a Fund's investment adviser, rely, and
coutd ctherwnoe denapt & Fund's sendce providers abiity to fulfill theis
obligations to a Fund

U5 and giobal markets recently have experienced indeased volalility,
Encluding a5 & result of the recent failures of cerfain U5, andnon-US. Danks,
which cowld be harmdul to the Funds and issuers in which they invest. For
example, if 3 bank atwhich 3 Fund of isswer has an socoent fails, Ay Cxh of
other assets in bank or custody accounts, which may be substantial in size,
could be Befrgor iy inaocessble o permanently lost by the Fund o issuer I
a bank that provides 3 subscaiption line cedit fadlity, asset-based fadlity,
other crecit fadility andror ofher servides to an issuer of 1o 2 und falls, the
isauer or fund could b unabie 10 draw funds under its credit facikties of
obtain replacement qedt fadlites or ather senvices from other lending
mnafations with smilar teirms

lesuers i which 3 Fund may invest can be alfected by volatilityin the banking
sector, Bven if banks used by issuers in wiich the Funds invest remain sobvent,
continged volzohey in the banking sector oould contnbute 10, cause of
Entensafy &0 economic recession, increase the costs of capital and banking
Cervices of resull in the isuers being unable 10 obtain o refinance
ndebitedness at all or on as favorabie terns as could othenwise have been
obtaned Conditions in the banking seCior are evolving and the scope of any
potential impacts to the Funds and issuers, both from market condiions and
also potental legedathie of requl Mory résponses, ahe uncertan. Sudh

cond ions nd respondes, as well 35 3 changing inferes! rate emaronment,
can contibute o dedredted market liquidity d erode the value of cerLan
holdngs, indwding those of U S and non-U0%, banks Continped marked

wol atikiny and ncertaingy andior a downium in market and economic and
finandid conditions, &5 a result of developments in the banking secior or
othenwise (induding as 3 resdi of ddaed sooess o cash or credi faglides),
could have an adverse impact on the Funds and issuers in which they imest

Geowvernmant Intervention inFinansial Markets Federd, state, and afer
govermiments, thiir requlatony agenaes, of self-requiatony organzations may
take actions that affect the requlation of the instruments in which a Fund
Envests, of the Bsuers of such insiruments, inways that are unforeseeable
Legistation or requlation may as0 change the way in which a Fund itseff is
riegianed. Such legislagon o requlation could Bret of predude 3 Fund's
ability to achimee itz Festment objective. Furthermore, volatile finangal
marnkets can expose 3 Fund to greater market and liquickoy risk and potential
difficulty in valuing portfolio instruments held by the fund The valpe of 2
Fund's holdings is also generally subject to the risk of futsre local, nationa, or
global economic disturbances baged on unknown weaknesses in the markets
nwhich a Fund inwesis. In additeon, it i nal oemain that the U5 Govemiment
will intenvens in responsé 102 future market dishrbance and the étect of any
such future intervention cannot be predicted Itis difficullt for kssuers 1o

prepare for the impact of future finandal downtums, although companies can
seek 1o kdentfy and manage fulure uncertainties rough nisk management
o ams

Regulatery Risk Financizl enfities, sudh a5 investment companies and
imvestment sdwisers, ane generally wbpsct b0 exten S goenermment negul stan
and intervention. Govemniment regulaion and'or intervention may change the
way 4 Fund is requiated, affect the expenses intumed directly by a Fund and
the value of its imestments, and imit andior predude 3 Fund's ability to
arhieve B imeesiment obgectve. Govemment requlation may change
frequently and may have significant adverse ooersequences. Moreder,
qgesernrent requlation may have unpredictable and uninierded effects

Oparational Risk An investment in @ Fund, Bke sy fund, can imiolve
operational risks aising from factors such as processing errors, human emoes,
inadequate or failed internal of external prodesses, failures in systems and
technology, changes in personnel amd ermors caused by thind-party senvice
proveders The ocourrence of amy of thes: fallues, amors o breadhes coud
resultin a loss of information, requlatony scrutiny, reputaticonal damage o
alfier sy, sy of which auld haee 3 ratenal adwerse ffect on a Fund
While a Fund seks to minimize swch events throwgh controds and oversight,
Ehere may sl e failures that could cause ksses to the Fund

Cybar Security Risk A3 thie ute of technoboqy has become more presalent in
the course of business, the Funds have bevome potentially more wsceptible
& operatbonal snd enformateen Seourity fsks reslting froem breaches in opber
sedrily. A breach in cyber security refers 1o bath intentional and
whintenbonal cyber events tat may, among other things, cause 3 Fund 1o
lose progrietary information, suffer data comuption andier destruction or lose
operational capacty, resultin the unau thonized relesse or ofher misuse of
confidential information, or othenwise dismupt normal business operations
Cybser security failures of beeaches may resstin financal losses o a Fund and
ite Unitholders. These talures or breaches may aleo result in disuptions o
Earsiniess operations, podentialy resulting in finanaal loses; nterberencs with
2 Fund’s ahility to caloulate its net asset value, process Linitholder
vansacions of otfensise ransa business with Unisholders; impediments to
tradng; voelations of applicable prvacy and other L, requiatony fines;
penaites; reputational damage; remdersement of other compinsation oous;
additional compliance and cyber tecurity ek management costs and other
adverse consequences. In addiion, substantial oosts may be incumed in order
ko prevent amy oyber indidents in the future

5. MASTER HETTIHG ARRAHGEMENTS

Thie Funds may be subject 1o vanous netting arangements (bt
Agresments”) with select counterparties. Master Agreements govem the
terme of certam fransacions, and are intended to reduce the counterparty risk
asso0 ated with relevant iransaciions by spedfying aedit protection
medhanisms and peoviding stancard zaton that is intended o irprove legal
certanty. Esch type of Master Agreement govems certain types of
mansactions. Different Bypes of ransacdtions may be traded out of different
legal entities or afffiates of a parSiodar ceganization, resulting in the need for
multiple agreements with a single counterparty. As the Mater Agreements
are spedfic to unique operations of cifferent asset types, they alow 3 Fund
clivte out and et ins total exposure bo a cosntepaty in the event of & default
with respect to all the ransactions govemed under 2 single Master
Agreernentwith a counterparty. For finandal reporting purposes the
Statements of Assets and Liabdlities generally present derivative assets and
lighiBties on & gross basis, which reflects the full rites and exposiees prior 1o
retling

Baster Agreerments can also help limit counterpanty risk by speafng
collateral posting amangements at pre-amanged exposure levels. Under most
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Master Agreements, collateral i rousinely ransfemed if the total nel exposure
[0 CRFtan Iransacmons (et of psting ol ateral Sreddy in placed govemed
urder the relevant Master Agreement with 3 counterparty in 2 given account
exceids 4 spedified threshold, which typically ramges Fom zera to §250,000
depending on the counterparty and the type of Master Agreement. Unifed
States Treasury Bills and US. dollar cash are generally the preferred fooms of
collazeral, although other seasities may be used depending on the: terms
outlined i the spplicable Master Agresment Sequnities and cash pledged as
collazeral are reflected as aise1s on the Statements of Assers and Liabilites as
either a component of Investments at vaue (eqrities) o Deposits with
counterparty Cash collateral received is not bypically held in a segregated
acoount and as sudh is refected & 3 Rabdity on the Statements of Assets and
Liatslities a5 Deposats from counterparty. The macket value of any sequnibes
recesvied & collateral s not reflected a5 3 component of NAY The Fund's
owerall expodure T cowhterparty ride can change substantidly within a shoe
period, as it is affected by each ransaction subrect to the relevant Master
Agyeement

Master Repurchase -ﬁ-jl'{'t’l'l‘lé‘l'l", and Global Master Repurdhase -f-g'-:'?ﬂ“-:ﬂ’::-
(indvidually and cdllectively “Master Repo Agreements”™) govem repurnchase,
riverie repunchade, and sale-binbads ranssctions between the Funds and
select counterparties. Master Repo Agreements maintan provisions for,
amaong ofher things, initiaton, incomes payments, events of default, and
mainsenance of coilateral The market value of ransactons under the Master
Repo Agreement, Collaterd pledged of recenved, and the nel xosure by
counterparty a5 of period end are dsdosed in the Nates 1o Schedule of
Imvesiments

Master Sequrities Rorarard Transaction Agreements (" Master Fonward
Agreements”) govern certain forward setting transactons, such 35 TRA
s, el ayed-celreery of sale-buyback ransactions by and

betwen the Funds and <elen countérparses. The BMaster Fonaand
Agreements maintain provisions &, among other things, initiation and
confirmation, payment and transler, events of default, termination, and
maintenance of coflateral The markef valee of forerand settling transactions,
collageral pledged of redeived, and the net exposure by counterparty a5 of
penod end are dsdosed in te Notes 0 ddhedule of Irvestments

Customer Acoount Agreerments and related addenda gowern deared
dhetivatived aRLAaIonS sudh &5 fulies, oplions on Rutures, and deared OTC
derivatives. Such fransactions require posting of initial mangin as detemmined
by wach relevant dearing agencywhich is segregated in an account at &
Tutures comimission mendiant FCMT) regatened with te Commodty
Futgres, Trading Cormression {(TCFTCT) In the United States, oounberpay e
ey be reduced as creditors of an FCM cannat have a daim o Fund assets in
the segregated account. Fortability of expasure in the event of an FCM
detault soenanio further redices rigk to the Funds. Waniation margn, o
changes in market value, are generally exchanged dally, but may ot be
nttisd bedween futures and dieaned OTC dervaes unless e parlie hive
dgreed 10 4 Separate arrangament in respect of fund margming The marke
wal e o accumulated unrealized apprediation {depreciaton), mifal mangin
posted, and any unsetted vaniation margin as of pencd end are disdosed in
the: Mabes 10 Schedule of Investments

Internabons Sweaps and Devatives Assodaton, inc. Madter Agresmenis and
Credit Suppoet Anneces (71508 Master Agreements”) gowem bilateral OTC
derivative ransactons entefied into tey the Funds with select counterpartes
1500A Waster Agreements maintain provisions for general obligations,
representaions, agresments, coflateral posting and events of default or

Ll iaon  Events of tefmanation indude condiions that rdy entithe
COUNCRTpartes 1o elect to temminate ealy and chuse Setdement of all
subitanding ransactions under the applicable BDA Master Agresment. Ary
election to terminafe early could be matenal to the fnandal statements The

E:DA Master Agreement may contain sadiional provisions that add
COURIErpanty protecton beyond coveragr of exdsting dally exposure if the
coun berparty has 3 dedine in credit quality below 3 predefined level o 2
requined by requiamon. Sirmilary, If requered by requisnon, & Fand may be
required to post additional collateral beyond coverage of daiby exposore
These amounts, if any, may {or if required by Law, will) be segregated with 2
ghird-party custodian To the extent a Fund is required by regulation 1o post
addtional collaterdl beyond coverage of datly expodisne, iTooukd potentally
incur costs, induding in produning eligible aisets o meat collateral
requirements, assodated with such posting. The market vaue of OTC
financial denvative instruments, collateral received or pledged, and net
expoaure by counterparty a5 of period end are disdosed in the Notes to
Schedile of nvesrments
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§.FEES AHD EXPENSES

Each Fund is subjedt to the following fees payable at the Sollowdng annual rates (stated a5 3 percentage of the average daily net assers of each Fund, oo Class, if
applicable, taken separately)

Fees

Fund Mansgement Advisary Administrative Ageney Disaribution
PIMCO Bermuds Foreign Low Duration Fund 0.236% - = - =
PIMACD Barmuda U.5. Lows Duration Fund 0.236% - - - -
FIBACD Real Return Fund - L S 0% 007 % e Lo
PIBACD Short-Term Strategy

= Al 145%™ - - 010%™ DETR™

s CLED} - - - - -

= JLFY) - - - - -

= JQED) - - - - -

CR {145 %" - - 0™ 8

= JPrOM 45 %" = 0 16% - 0E%

. D HELE Sl - - 010%™ ]
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n amears b PIMCO for providng or arranging for the provision of advisony,
g werdces. The agency and

The management, advisory and administrative fees, if applicable, are paid monthly i
adrninistrative and third-party serdqces induding audin, arstodeal, Tustes, portfioig Soouns N, fougne lega, transher BGENT and pane
distribution fees, if appiicable, are paid manthly in amears. to reimburse §nanda imlemmediaries that p i i redating 0o the Uiits of the
applicabde Fund gor Class thereod, a4 applicable) i the case of the PIMCO Bermisda Foregn Low Durason Fund and PIMCO Berruda U5, Low Duraticn Fend, PIMCO,
out of its management fee, will bear the costs assodated with advisory and administrative senvices, 0 1% of whidh is designated o oover admenisirative expenzes. In
exchange for this fee, FIMCO will bear the costs of certain thind-party senvices required by the Funds, induding audit, custodidl, tustes, porkfolie accounting, Legal
transfer agent and printing services. FIMCO, and not Unitholders, would benefit from amy price dearease in the cost of such thind-party sendces, indudng degeases
resiling fom an indease i net assets b addton, with respedt 10 Funds that are Subject 1o a0 Adminisratve fisie, PIMCO) qeneraly makes 3 peafiton sudh 4 fee

As noted in the table abowve, certain Funds and Classes of Funds are nod subject 1o management, advisory, adminisrative, aoency of dstibution fees. PIMCO lapan
Lid, PIMCO"s affiliate in lapan, is paid a fee from the Japanete Fnesiment Trusts of other imvestment vehices hat ireest in such Funds or Classes and a portion of

such fee is then allocated to FMOO to compensate it for its sendces, as applicable

The Funis {or Classes thereof, as applicabée) may bear other expenses related to 1r|-=~'- eration that are nod covered by the management, advisony, administative
agency of dissribution fees, incuding but not limdted 10; (1) taxes and governmental fees; () s, and commassion s and afher poetfolio Fardacion expenses;
iy costs of bomowing money, induding interest expense; (v} extracrdnary expenses, indy |-'i-1-'| costs of Rigation and indemnification expenses; and i) any expenses

allocated o aocable to a specfic Class of Units, a5 apglicable. PIMCO has paid the organizamond expenies ssocated with the deation of each Fund

PAMKCO hat paid thie arganizational expen s ssodatedwith the areation of the Trust. If further Fund a0 laundhed, sudh oosrs directly atributable o the relivant
Furid may be borme by the relevant Fund

10. RELATED PARTY TRARSACTIONS

The Irvestment Adviser is a related party to the Funds and is a majonity-owned swbsadiary of Allianz Assel Management AG. Feed pasd to the related party, if any, ae
disdased in Mote 9, and aconsed related parry fee smounts, if any, are dadosed on the Statements of Assers and Liabeites

Certain Funds are permitbed to purchase or sell secyrities from or 0 certain related affiliated funds under spedfied condtions outined in progedures adopted by the
Imvestment Adviser. The proceduses have been designed (o ensure that any purdhase or sale of securites by a fund from or to another fund tat is o could be
considered an affil ate by viriue of having a common adviser for affiliated imvestment advisers), s effected at the osrent market pice. Curing the period ended May
31, 2023, thie Fundis) below engaged in puenchases snd sales of securitees among affiliated funds (aamounts in thossands)

Fund Furhems Geim Fenfized Gainfll oss}
PIMICE) Bsrriidls Foessgn Loy Duor soos Ford nh 5 - 4 -
FANCE) Berrmuda 1 5. Low Duession Fund - 35 12 ]
FIMCO Ermengey Mark et Bond Fund (M) L6 .33 283

FIMCE Riesd R Fund i) - -
FIMCE) SheerTorm Smamgy M o8 38,515 11,570

11. GUARANTEES ARD INDEMRIFIC ATIOH 3

Uinide the Trust's anganizational documends, certain parties §nduding the Trugtes and PIMCO) are indemnifiad against certain Babilisies that may anise ot of
performance of ther duties W the Funds. Addisonally, in the normal oourse of business, the Fumds enter inte conbracs that contan & varety of indemnification dauses
The Furds’ madmum expasure undsr hese avangements is wknown 35 this would invoive future dains tat may be made against the Funds hat have not et
pocuirmed. Howsewer, the Funds have not had proor disimes of [osses purt ant to these contras

12, UHITS OF EEREFICIAL INTEREST

The Trust may issue up o S00,000,000,000 Units. The Funds may have 3 sqificant concentration of nsk, a5 certain Unitholders owm more than ten percent of the net
assets of each repectve Fund, Such concentrasion of Unitholders’ mterests could hawe a matenial effect on the Funds in the svent these Unitholders request o
withdrany substantial amounts of capital at he same tme. Subscription s and redergdans of units of the Funds ane denomenated in the Funds” NAY currency and
converted to the Funds' fundlional curmendy at the <pot rate on the transacton date: Units of each Fund are istued without par value, The Trustes, with the consént of
the Manager, may n the future deate and offer an addinonal Fund or Class o Classes of Units

Chuangies i units of benefidial inberes Dwene a3 Bllows (units and amouwnts in thousand"):

devsgn] Bapary | My 31, 2020 L
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Notes to Financial Statements o

Year Ended ar Ended Year Ended Year Ended
May 21, 2023 May 31, 2023 Moy 31, 2023 Ny 21, 2023
Linits Amount Urits Amzunt Urits Amourt Unis Amount
Racalps for unin sold 1 =% 147 2 8 1M ni & B [ Ha
usg 1) ' NE [Ty Wik [T 5§ Mg
Coxt of usie: rechamad (K] (2000 ] 1,350 (4603 113560 Rk Wiy
(1E:1) s L] NE L1 Wik M 4315 {67 40
Nyl rerems kervma)
maling from Fund unit
Furmacton o nEE mE & (709 N& ¢ [sm HEE) ¢ I
¥ear Ended Yaar Ended Yaur Ended Year Ended
My 31, 2T By 31, 2033 Iy 1, 202 Wy 3. 2023
Units Amournt Units Ameunt Urets Amburt Units Amount
Recalps fer uniw soid [ 3703 NE N a3 ok 45 " Ha
ALD (L] ) NE NA Wk 1] =5 H &%
C 1D [} [ N M Wik 1] m 1T
J§BAUL Wi WA m -4 1812 WA i K Hia
[ L) L] 2 114 Wik L] A Hia
LL] KR N i} L Wik Mk K W
1Y KA NE& B Wi N4 I LR
W, A 11 585 Wis i hed i
R N o] 31643 Wik Nk A W
& [0 N N Wk M4 i (0]
J AR he WA 15 i Wik A e MR
Py K ) N2 L i N 108 155
WL R L N N Wik M [hii 55651
: B he WA N Thn Wk W i3 T
(1580 451 NE& NI n [4.730 [ N
Wi L] NE L] Wik NiA {rii] 7 )
W [0 NE N Nin N 75 7,550}
R A 1] 15,634) Wil ik ] Yidh
J fIDR} W WA 1Al 5 Wik 1] L N
WA L1t [0 El 13071 Hiy Mk L1 L
IF Y} R KA N L1 Wik M (450 a6
(FEET ] [T ' (ra)| 11, 054) WA N4 [ &
TR1 R (T8 &) TEFIH] Wik [ [T H
1301 L] KA N L Wik Nk (4 [T
T i AR MR EHE . Wk TN Bk RR
FY R K% N MK Wik Mk (L]11] 7 55)
T MR NA NE [T WA i [ L E]
=0 R [ N N Wik M ] (1 E1E)
Myt irermy ey}
mofing from Fured unit
T il [1i:1] H [FFil 14471 b [ 2y % (4281 K] ) B35
= A rwra babec b may ol ol EmeEE roardn] 19 e i
B A e Sesmmater B TOTT feceanes ceal B Bad 7 i S,
drvasl Bapary | Mpy 31, 200 -]
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Notes to Financial Statements o

13, REGULATORY ARD LITIGATION MATTERS

detendants in ary material Bigabon of Ftaraton procesdng: and ae not awane of any matenal hogaton of dam pending of

: Soregoing speaks only as of the date of this repon

14 IRCOME TAX

0 -

dovvanl Ragart | My 1, 2020
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Schadule of Investments PIMCOD Real Return Fund

PRNIF
EMESNT
L]
IVES TMENTS [N SECURITIES 1296%

VAELE
L e}

CORPORATE BDNDS & ROTES 2

ok Rulkrde N5

1000 doe 10T 0080 {1 O e v 13
1000% dee 10603753 | B
1500% des 10010060 16 n
Wardes Kredit Roaliore ditaabrs b ok
D500% dee 1000203 l i &
1.500% dee 10401753 m ]
2 000%: des 1040170063 im n
Rykredt Realiredit 5
1000 ds 1000152050 1.1m 1%
1000% doe 1000203 M ]
1 500% oo 1070053 .78 18
J00% due 1040107 i 1
J500% dee 107010 i) iz
ReaBredit Dammark &5
1/030% dee 10401500 - ]
1000% A= 1001253 m £}
200 dee 104012053 i il
7
tand flnltlFLt
NS doe DRI 5 am 156
ATAT. Ine.
1550'% dee 1200177000 15l 15
Total Curparate Buack & Hate — LiED
Eas1 81527
1.5, GOVERMMENT AGENCIES 83%
Fansis Mg
J00% doe 013 b L]
J000% doe D203 1w 152
6% de 1001704 1 1
5458 de OTSET 1 4
S5I8% de D757 [ B
5570% da (55250006 3 ]
Faniie Mae. TRAM
A D00% doe DOADES 400 k]
4 500'% dee D0 NED 1800 )
S00% de 0701 C083 400 2l
5 550% dee 0701 CHIY :o 3
BS00% dae 7N 5T £ 1] £ 1)
Fredds Mac
5 707 dee 121150037 i ]
Damn e Maw
TESE% doe DR0VIER L1 ]
T3S de DVIT) m il
LRI da V05T (] @
5100% dee D0 il HE

Tetal LLE, Oevmrament Agescies
Eas1 33350
U5, TREASLIRY DELIGATIONS 107.4%

Traas ury lstlation Protecind Secovitins i)

0175% dee 10A1500 led im? 102
DI5% e A SIS FRL Lim
DTI5% dom 10 5025 ] 5
0125% doe (SN0 £ L]
0125% de 7ASTORG 1074 1,18
0175'% dm 107157005 (6] it} ir}
D35% doe (4AS0ET 14 ¥l
0125% dee 01ASE30 =il BES
D125% da 07150050 i ez
Tav s gy s

iz

FRINCEE,
AMOUNT WalUE
K] LU
[LE5% o 5241 500 2 L3 & 10mM
[R5 o 01 52031 [l e KEL]
[LRE5% o 0211 2022 1538 1,31
0 E25'% doe B 52051 | 3
[URT5% oo B0 5052 1m 115
[L250% doe 991 5025 L] 114
(250% s 5071 52023 1,58 1633
0 250% dow 201 57050 153 1
TL3T%% s BT 52025 m i)
(U375 don 007152027 1687 1,031
[U375% o 0071 52007 ] 73
10500 o 011 5024 1,245 1214
05080 o 091 52008 1B 1,703
[UBE3% dow 5311 520K {nd 2902 2411
[535% o B0 52020 [ it} 1,835
QETS% e 231 52000 134 14
[ 750% dow 01 SE0CD Flit 1,962
[750% o 0 2042 454 L
0 T50% dox EN1SM5 T8 B3
[ ETE % e £111 52009 1430 1,373
(VBT % o 1 5T 563 Lird
1.1000% <os 021 520G o Mg
1 E00% o 231 52040 e i
1. 375% dow 521 52044 1435 L
1 EI5% doe DB TT (n) L 1.7
".J]KME L ir 5 a5
2 000% dos B 52026 | BB
DTS o B 52040 i e
DA o B ST 5T i
LTSN o BN 2025 3 1373
2 500% o 0211 52029 = i
3TN dow B 2002 fil]] m
JERSN o B 5200 k| Fae
3BT dow i1 52000 02 11
Tetal U5, Tressary Mligatiens 43049
Caxt 147 S04}
Bant ol Amorics Fanding Trest
JEG N o BT i 3
CIM Trast
BRI o BTN 5 3
Camtrywide Heme Laan Mertgage Pass - Threagh Trest
5% dow BSOS (] :
G5 Firsi Basten Martquge Secariiies Corp.
£ 900 e BT i W
GEANF Tres
SETIN dos BRZHR05 [d) ] 15
GER Marigage Loas Trmst
4 SE6% dw IBTY205 ] g
Home Equity fzset Trmd
5B o IRE036 L] ]
HE| fsiet SecurRization Carp. Trast
B doe BEDEOT 18 18
ImchyMic BHD0 Mertgage Loan Trast
SE18% dos INTYAIIS i o
5 5T8% ot ETS2004 104 o
Lehman XE Trast
TA3E% doe KIS () F. | n
Malban Residentisl Fandiag Corperation Martgage Piss-
Thewugh Trus:
BB T o BB 00T i 1
Rirw Eesidsncial Mestgage Laae Trevt
2 T0% dox ETTYRG 55 B
Optian Due Mavtgage Luan Trast
SR o VDI 57 =5

172/349

FRANCIF AL
EMIUNT VRUE
P00k} L OS]
Aesidentisl Marigage Secarities 32 PLE
5.511% dow DET0ETD Gae i & n

Sacenm faset Serlths Trest

5.445% cue [HTS2007 & ! 1
Towid Pedat Marigage Fuading Grasibed PLC

ST doe 1002051 Gae & 1]
WaMa Marigage Pass-Throngh Cemificates Trmt

3% due [WTST0G7 ¥ 13 12
Tatal Martgege 8 ichod Secorities. 5
(Cast 4380

B5SET-BACKED SECURITIES 1.3%

Buaphores CLO IV DAC

1TT7% due 1250000 EUR Fri N
Calra ELO 11 DAE

£ 71 dos 10A0CE 15 18
Pilizhe s Crvait ELOW

. 385% due 0PN22070 ¥ 1l n
COTLM OV Lid

A0 doe DVIOVZ0OZ 16 ]
STWO Lad

.25 % dus 052008 53 A3
THL Esweit Wiad Biver CLO Led

B.340% dus DANS20N 100 ]
Total Asset Baclord Secmritino 5%
Cest 2570

Bwtralia Daveramest Band

3000 cue (ST00025 i) &0 & ]
Canuda Devvrnmert Bead

&0 dow 120G i) cap i (L
Framce Gevermment Bsad &)

0.7600% due 0302075 EUR far) ri
0. 700% doe DATS0038 1 HE
Ry Ensai Poliennali del Tesmrs kb

0 400% choe (57152000 118 115
T 400% dux (STRENI5 118 1178
Japan Gwvwrn meni CP-Linked Band ich

(.005% due IVNDZ0H ¥ M 160
(.700% due E3N020720 M55 m
00,100 choe OO 02020 4092 1]

M Gewernmest [mberaational Bead

L5000 dur 1H220035 6 NN a i}
Tatal Swvereign ks e 2561
(st 2907}

Bmtralia and Hew Zealand Banking Gromg I.ld.

LETE% cue DEIETOEI & 2 1
Bamk ol Nova et

3 560% cue 0GT2003 (¥ ] I 1
4 B0 e [SO12003 2 9 |
BNP Paribas Bank

200 doe DSN2003 1.4 I ]

Erawe Breibers Harrimaa & G,

[M37E) e BRO1HEI & il ]
4TI e 1002 | Fai] i} -]
Citihank N.A

4 5B0% due DA 2013 - 10 1]
DBS Basmk L1d

& S50 due DA 0TI ad 5
On® Baak ASA

T due DBTN2013 Ao [ i
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Schedule of Investmants PIMCO Real Return Fund iCont)

P oM OOF A
: 1 vRUE
F) i
HEEL Bank PLE
0% da DN BUA Ho® -]
AFA0% e DRI GEP [ !
JPMlergan Chase Eank M. A
4 530% due (AT1ANED 2 o i
MUFG Bank Ltd
{037} due DST03 * 3] 5
Semiteme Misoi Basking Corg.
(0L 37T} due DSTE0ET ¥ 1
2 30% dee DN 02T i 1) L]
A S0 don DETH D S fi
Semitams Mitywi Trest Bask Lid
{0 37T due DSTI2033 ¥ e I8
LH0% des (801010 BUR 1 1
4 SE0% doe DRATIRAIEY 2 HiE 117
ME
Tedal Shant-Tors | vaSests s
=k
Tetal levestments i Secariiles W) 129.5% i 651832
Eaai JET400
Fisamedal Devivatie
Istruments Fligl 0% b
East s Premmms. net §{18)

Other Pesits and Liskilities. set (4,75
M fesets 100.0%

NOTES 70 SCHEDULE DF INVESTMENT S:

i A oo Balsped m oy reflect Beusl smeurts reunding to leid thin snd thaugind

(3] The allscation of Total Invesiments by geographlz reglon xs of May 31, 2023 s 118.0% of Met Assats in the United States and ather countries comprising of
11.5% of Net Assets in aggregate

By When-lssusd security.

[¢) Principal amount of security is adjusted for inflaton.

[dy Security is in default

BORRIWINGS AND OTHER FINANCIMNG TRANSACTIDNS

Payabls tar
Eareawing Svthiment B apity LI | Revirie Repurchats

Counterparty Rate"! Date Dite Berrmend'! Agreements
BN 5 HR0 ITEm : N5is # s
DEU 5.17% DB 18 504} i}
Total Reverse Repurchise Ajreemenis § [10,084)

Aemaining Comiractua| Mgturity of e Agraements

Owernight and Greater Tham
Caiti Up t 30 days 31.90 days 90 days Tetal

Reversa Fepurchase Agresmants
U5 Goovss rrom g Dabe § i 85154 ] 15701 g g ] 10054
Tetal Reverse Repurchaese Sqreesmenis ] ] [ {8,515) ] [T [] [1] [ [EGED]
Tetal Berrawings & [] ] ®,515) ¥ 1 5TE 1] a § [19,084)
Payabibe tof Revevse Regurchase Agreemenis & e nRi
Sarw oo e gy deveas| Papor | My 90, 5029 15
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Schedule of Investments PIMCO Real Return Fund iCont)

Thos bediooainn] & 8 duamm iy By dimarer fur iy o the warkes vilue of Borrowsee: ard Dtber Firnencing Trare acions and colens pledondle s & o May 31, 2073

(¢) Securities with an aggregate market valus of §10 056 have been pledged a5 collaters] under the terms of the following master agresments as of May 31,
il

Ragiirehadn

Agresmenk Taal

Precands Payahle fur Bernwings and

ok SileBuydack Paysdle Bar  Dther Fingneing Calytaral

Bimhrlll'l'f R_ﬁ!hﬂrd TransacSens Shaet Sabes Transactiing Ph&li Eﬂlhﬂ& i‘JlIElllrl.l-ln"'I
Gl Mgz o Pprohanin Agrowes sm
Bz 2 o : D = o K3 = 1.5 2 K]
Dl ] ] ] @515 8,508 1]
Tetal Berrowings and Other Financing Tramsactions & ] L] a ]

T warage et ol beAcwings sstidng donte Vhe pared mded by 51 2007 s $10 25000 wevnnghnd newiien rdeent ien ol 3 SN Avege bortawnp iy ichali sl Suyboc k 1 Beve ot i renlin mpan hasi

apremea il bl Aating thet pranied
L ™ wrepiaarh B il b bl adln |10l wcield by douienma B cosile o e il o ool Expuoat bt oot dumvengsl S ot et ) Ei bt 5 Sl (o B il i BSa i, o't | ol Bl
alok CRED & b0 T [hok STt bl ey ok Bt olirr Homen) ATmunguamantt, i (ot s 1o St a8 STORMOILE Bor Wty et g it IISTRT BT T ot

{t} FINAHCIAL DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS: EXCHANGE.T RADED OR CENTRALLY CLEARED

Uinrpalized
Exgiritis #af Apreciation) Witiatien Mirgin
Dezcription Type Munth Cantracts [Depreciatian Az et Liakility
I b 5 et Mot June Fubire: Sttt b [ m g [ n
Shext B (] 1] m
Loy [ 1] (] ]
ey F na 1] m
o4 T B0-Yeat Hored Jurs Fufures Fhat o [ 1] 1]
wi 2-Year Ko June Fyrs Shoart 1] =] 1] 26
s 10V Bored Jurw Fonunes Shon 1 5 1] m
e Juse Fusures Shant r @ i @
bt Fuprs Fhart ] L] 1] 1}
U5 Teeasury 5Yem No Shen i il 1] i
U5 Teeagiry 10-Year Nom Shan 8 H 1] 16
U5 Tieasury J-Yeur o Fhowi i L]} n ki
U5 Towasury Uk 35-¥ear Bond Sepiester Fange Shant i 31 1] L]
Total Futures Centracts L] {148 ¥ B % (L]
Unrealized
Pay Recebve Madsrity Hetimnal Mlarket Agpreciatisn) Wi ita e Hljn
Flaating Rage Fluating Rais Index Fixed Rate Date Ampunt Valuw Depreciation) Bszet Liakility
Pay 10 525%] TR0 EOR 1400 : K1) ' 134} g 1 % [
Pay q
Rabowrcn Index 0 00 [ 50 00 10 10 ] 0
Fay - centh EUFIECA L Damen:? 160 na n ] [
Pay E-Month BIRE0R A5 nam2ni 1 na QG o o
Py Mook BIRECA 0 G50 100 na oo 1 i
Py M essth BIRIGOA 1000 a0 i ah 1 0
Pay E-Month BIREOR 1.000% 7 100 1] 1.1 1 i
P Floenth BJRE0R T AT [Ensana 00 i [} 1 [
ey (M neth BURBEA 0000 TR o % Fi ] &
Pay E-Menth EIREOR o 0% ] (158 11545 5 [+
Pay FlMonth BIRE0R T 54T L1] [11] (4} 1 [
Peciesn fildoeh BIRECR 1020 00 1 | ] L]
Pyt Mot EURECH 3.000% i : 8 3 ]
Plecswe E-llooth BIRBCR o1 1] &7 &7 il 1]
Reciess B-leeuh BIREOR o1 150 m n ] i
ek EHldesth BIREGA THM Al 11 i u 7]
Recsse'™ E-Month EIREOR 2 500% 0 3 2 ] [xi]
Sarw ot e gy drveas| Mg | My 30, 502 o
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Schedule of Investments PIMCO Real Return Fund iCont)

Unreallized
Pay Recelve Materity Hetisnal Mlarkei Agpraciation’ Warka tham Margin
Fiaating Rase Fluating Rate ndes Fignd Rite Dute Ampunt Wl Mepreciaties) Haset Liahility
Hecene L |-ty ve ulie
Ay FL 11T ® 1iadm 3 ] F ki 3 8 2 H
Aaceive ncalute cabre
Hare 0050 I RTHI] 40,000 12 | 1] in
Hecume HEF Ex Tidosn
(1 00 ] 100 m {1
Pay
8 HGA 0000 150 1 0 U]
rEf bueatone HILF Ex Tokass
d Seraes NEA oL000Y ST 100 [ | 0
P Eurs et Eparone HECP Ex Tokaco
Ureevied Sersss IE3A 0000 NS b L] 4 L 0 5}
Pay Butmtnt Euomone: HIP Ex Tokeom
Urrevmed Sarms HHA 0 (Y [ S0 100 3 3 ] n
Receie Euroant Eeaons HICP Ex Todacos
Urr evmed o000 SR K] 400 i ] 1] 3
Pay Bt Bueaone: HECP Ex Tokaco
Urrevied Sanms K3A 0000 R EN 00 0 § 1l ]
ray Bureanst Euraon HIEP Ex Tobaom
0 000 [ENSONE2 180 3 3 0 m
Tlece s Toaksacsy
(1000% (5L (] L1} (4 LA 1 [
Heceive T oo
01 005% TR T B [ i 1
Focw b Todacn
000 RS2 o {r) 7] ] [t
Receive Eustat By Todacrs
Urrevgsd e HEA 10 D00 135D {11} [ [ ) [
Aecuie Eureaest Eupatone HICP Ex Tobaox
Urrevied Senes HEA 3] ] i
Fay Sezired Dvemighs Finarging Rane 154 1 [V
Py Secured Deemigha Fin [ f 0
Aean'" Seoured Deermsghs Fin | ] in
P Secured Dvemighs Finarcing Rags {14} T
P Secured Dvemaghe Fnarcing Rate [ ot 4 -
Hociau!™ : Dweitught Fvircarg Rate 16 g 0 o'
Py Corg umes: & . a 11
Pay s o umaey M54 14 14 ] [
Py 1 ! ] i
Pay T ] o
Pay 7R ] i
Pay 77 i .
Heene 1173 1 1] [
Py 6 & ] 1
Recese U5 071 Urbas =] ) i [
Heomae U3 CF U1bas Lo ] [ 1 L
Aeene U5 (R ] {1 ] 0
:-h. 15 (P Uk € 51 52 ] @
Total Swap Agresmmis ] Ein § 3 [ 72 % vk

The idioang & a summany o the mgrbet wiks and varaSon i asgn of Bclange- Trided of Destrally Deaned Fromis Dervaz b mumane & of Moy 71

Cash of $472 has besn pledged as collateral for exchangetaded and centrally cleared financial derivative instruments as of May 31, 2023. See Note 8,
Master Metting Arrangements, in the Notes to Financial Statements for more information regarding master netting arrangements.

Fil {al Derivative Rsseis Fi al Onvdwaihvn Llahilides
‘Warkagien Margkn Varlatam Margin
Mariee Vilue Aagel Mlarknt Vabon Liabiliry
Purchased Swap ‘Written Swvap
Dptisrm Fubaies Agremint Tetal Opsans Falure: Aghes mants Teral
Tetal Exchamge-Traded o1 Contradly Cleared_$ [} B 72 § B0 § [ [E5 § B3 8 iin

o st o3 (orvand starbeq flactwe e Sae Hote 2 Sevobm Tronsacs o ool bwstmes Insma. n 3 Haoes 1 fiewar al St et o Py mfrmerben
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Schedule of Investments PIMCO Real Return Fund iCont)

(g8 FINAMCIAL DERNATIVE |RSTRUMBNTE: OVER THE COUNTER

Settlement Camency o Curremcy ta Unrwalized AppreciationDepreciatien
Counterparty be Delvered e Awcabved Fsset Liahility
] = 20 [ .35 3 I H 1H
BOA K 1,30 E oLl 1 E
04 L] 3 1 0 Ik
AID k2 16 F E
EUR 2056 227 e g
&P 158 2 @
Y 3.0m fi
4 149 Ll 0 3
52 BIR i
511 Y 0
BFS Y 13904 H o a
B A0 17 0 :
X PEM 13 i P
B 4 1 CAD o
BX 3 43 0 i
(X A0 17 3 o z
(X £ M PEN 1 3
GLK u o r
ND 583 3 i [Tk
ND K 408 3 : 4 2
M : i [ 0 3
MEC L EUR H o i
MEC T Gap 138 [
NEC 5aP (L] ¥ 15 o g
ULl i LR ] i 5 L
RE E J WEN 3 0 G
£x I 34 ] 506 18 0
ki1 1] % 2119 EuR 1078 1]
28 ] ElR 19N -] kb L g
=8 203 H k| PEN ) 1 a
TCH DET0T3 Jali s 3 3 W ] K
Total Ferward Ferelgn Currency Cantracis § 168 § [l
PayReceive  Exeeciie  Expiratien Netiaral Market
Counterparty  Descriptisn Fluating Rate bndes Floating Rate _ Rate Date Amgunt’ Cast Value
HEF Pt - O 300 Yt | o Hpauh 50-UBDA [ L F T ET T ] 3 _z 19 & ]
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Statements of Cash Flows
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Statements of Cash Flows (com )
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Notes to Financial Statements

1. ORGARIZATION

Each Fund discussed in this repart (each a "Fund” and callectedy, the " Furds™), whach also indudes eadh dass of units of thal Fund (each & "Olass™ and collectively,
the "Classes™), is a senies rust of PIMCO Bermuda Trast (e "Trust™), an open-ended wnit tust established under the Lawrs of Bermuda a5 a multi-series trust pursant
Lo fruest e oo tisd Bry Windhestter Global Trust Company Limited on Augest 8, 2001 (a5 smended from time o time, the "Trust Déad™) Effecthe a of the dose
of business (Exstem time) on September 249, 2017, Mapdes Trustee Senaces (Bermuda) Limied (the “Trustee™) was appoinfed as trustee of the Trust Padfic nvestment
Management Company LLC (CPIMCO", the "Manager™ or the " Imvestment Adwsar™) is the sponsor of and was responsible fior structuring the Trust

Ercesn Brothers Harrenan & Co. {"BBH ™) has entered intd an agreerment with State Streel Corporation (T50ate Sreet”™) under which State Streelwill bogquare BBH'Y
Ivettoe Sences butiness; wihech indudes its austody, fund dcooumting and adminisration, transher agency, depositary, foreign enchange, tustes and securities lending
services. The completon of the ransaction is subgect to qustomany dosing condfiors and regul atory appeovals

Thee Trust is subject 1o regulation and supenation as provided for in the investment Funds Act 2006 and refated ruled refating to dandand funds

The terms of the Trust Deed confer upon the Trustee, with the consent of the Manager, the power, in the future, to estabiish further funds in addtion 1o the Funds
agrently in operation 45 of ihe date of this report

References to unithobders (each, & "Unitholder ", and collectively, the "Unithobders ) in, or units of (or an investmenting, the Fund shall mean Unithoiders of the Fund
wihid hold urits, or dasses of wnits (as applicable), which are atirbutabée to that Fund

e Funds presented in this report are listed below

Fund Offed
PEMED Bermuda Foreign Do Duranon Fund DHiered oy 1o fund with a Fong of Funds” sieaciure, & defosd n the e of e B omerg Trss
FRMCD Bermisda 1. 5. Low Duramion Fund Aeporanion, Japn, o 10 hond wath wam dar s mucture i any siber predeson

PIMED Emergeng Martss Bond Fund LITF)
PIMCD Emergng Mart et Bond Fund (Ven-Hadge d
FEMICD Emergng Mart et Bond Fund §

PIMIED Euen Total Fietum Fund DHered 10 aad irveanoa n Jepan by wary of pabde offerng twosgh & deviburor in Japan, snd mry

PIMICT Peal Fanam Furd boe el o othe imaion a1 the decmnion ol the Wasnge

FIMCD Sy Term St py™ I:ITllrtd 10 redad invesnoss in Jepan by wry of pabc oféring twough a debutor andior 2 sakes
handing company i Japan, and m iy b ofered o coher inveon a1 che decnvon of de Bassger

FIMED Emurgrng Mot s Bond Furd M) Ollared anky 1o oher Fundk 102enve & an underlong s et vebicls b such ok

= R ST ! Y oo iy PRRLT et arm gy e et i £ i et Tl Py " derow o deliowt i e vl e vyt gty drmscunmy e o i ey wash g sl ch ey ey b pasicira

Pl £ 00 Qo ! R S T vy o Bl ey o b iy o sy 8 vty vy bl ok Pty

Liits of e FIMCO Euro Tokal Renum Fund, PIMCO Real Return Fund, and AUD, JFY, and USE Chasses of FINKCO Short-Term Striteqy have Deen regritersd under e
Finandal Instruments and Exchange Law of kspan. Units of each of the remaining Funds and the € (USTY, § {1FY), and ) (LEE) Classes of PIMCO Short-Term Strategy
have not been and dre noT QuEmently expected 1o be regestened under the Rnandal Instuments and Exchange Law of lapan Mtﬁ}flil'lt,‘h'. siyih Units of hese Funds MWy
ok be, directly of inditectly, offered in Ligan of 1o Sy fessdent @ Japan, excepl in complisnce with applicalle Japanets avs 50d fegulstions

1. SIGRIFICANT ACCOUHTING POLICIES

The folbowing is a summany of significant accounting polacies consis tently foll cwved by the Trwst in the preparation of its inandal statements in confiarmity with
acttunting prinaphss generally accepted in She United States of America (U5 GAART). Each Fund is treatéd &% an nvestment company under the reporting
reqguirements of LS, GAAP The preparation of fnandd statements in acoordance with UL 5. GAAP requires management bo make esimates and assumptions that
affect the repoeted amounts of assets and lisbilites and dedosyre of contingent assets and Babilites at the date of the finandal statements and the reported amounts
of increases and deqeases in nel assels from operations during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates

i} Aequirad Funds The Trustee and the Manager may apply all of a portion of the assets of PIMCO Emerging Markets Bond Fund (TR, PIMCO Emenging Markels
Bond Fund (¥ en-Hedged), and PIMCO Emeraging Marers Bond Fund 1 {each sefemred 10 hetsn &5 3 “Fund of Funds™ of Bhe " Acquinng Fund®, which envests in ather
Furds) to the respictive credit of the PIMCO Emenging Markets Bond Fund (W) {refermed 1o heren as an ~Aoquired Fand(3)") Any assels 50 applied will be held in such
Acduited Furdish 35 if receed direcsly. Whisre assels are 50 appised, the Aoquered Fundis)wall reond the issue of units to the relevant Aogubring Fund a1 the gssue plice
peer unit of such wning and will repurdhase such units at the repunchase prce per it of wuch umits at the Gme of repurchase

Ranos showm in ihe Rndnoa Highliohts do notindude expenses of the Adoquired Fund(D). See Nate 9, Fees and Expenses, for further information regandng fund fees,
a4 apphcable

(b} Secuxities Transactions and bmvestment Income Securities ransactons ane recorded as of the rade date for finandal reporting purases, Seouriees pundhased of
sodd on avwihen-ssved of delayechdelivery basis may be settied bevond a standard settement period for the security after the rade date Realized gaing and |osses
fron seenties wid are recorded on e dentfied contbasis. Dividend mooime i reconded of the ex-diidend date, except certain dvidemds from foreion Seasmities
where the ex-dinadend date may have pasted, which are reconded 5 soon a5 a Fund is informed of the ex-dividend date Interest income, adusted hor the aatretion of
discounts and amortzation of premiums, i< recordad on the acmaal besis from settement date, with the EXCEpROn of secunities with & forward S1arnng effective date.
b nbenest Bcome 14 mecodded on the adoudl bass from effecve date For convertible searities, prempums attnbutable 1o the converaon featune dre not
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amortized . Estimated tax liatilties cn certan foreign senmities ane recorded
on an aomuad bass and are redected a5 components of interest income or net
chande in ureealied appreaation (depreiation) on ifmvestments on the
Statements of Dperations, as appropriate. Tax labeities reafized a5 3 result of
sipch wecunity sakes ane reflecied 6 o corponent of nel reshized gain Joss) on
imeestments on the Statements of Operations. Paydown gains and lidses on
rrorigage-related and other asset-hacked sequnties, if amy, ane riorded 45
components of interest income on the Statements of Operations. Debl
obdigations may be placed on non-zowal status and relabed interest income
ray be reduced by ceasing cument acoruals and waiting off inferest receivable
wihen the collecion of all or a portion of interest has become doubtiul based
on consstently appled procedures. 4 debt obligation is removed from non-
accrual status when the iSouer fesumes intefest payments of when
collectabeity of interest is projabde

kel Cash and Foreign Currengy  The financal statements of each Fund are
presented using the asmendy of the primary stanomic evwironmentin which it
operates (e “functiond cumency™). The functional qamency for each of the
Funds is listed in the below tatbie

The market valses of foreign securities, cumency holdngs and other assets
and liabilities are ranslated into eadh Fund's functional oarency based on the
aument exchange rates each business day, Purchases and sales of securities
and income and expense items denominated in foreign qurrendies, if any, are
wrandated into each Fumd’s respective funcBonal urrency at the exchange
rabe 0 efiect on the transachon date The Rends do noL Separ alely repont the
effects of changas in foreign exchange rates from changes in market prces on
securites hekd Such changes ane induded innet realized and net dhanges in
unredized gan of loss from imvesiments on the Staternents of Operations
Thie Fumsds iy ifvest i foreign currendy denominated secunities and may
engage in foreign currendy ransactions either on a spot {cash) basis at the
rate prevailing in the currency exchange market at the Sme or Hrough a
tarwand foreign curmency coniract. Reahized foreign eathange gains o losses
ansing from sales of spot foreign qumendes, airmency gains or losses realized
between the rade and settlement dates on secunties ransactons and the
difference between the recorded amaunts of dividends, interest, and foreign
withholdng taxes and the functional agrenty equiealent of the amounts
actually received or pad e induded in net realized gain or loss on forem
Qe Ry FARSACHoNS on the Statements of Operations. Met unrealized foreign
exchange gains and losses asising from changes in foreign exchange rates on
Toreign dendmenated sssets and hanlnes ather Ban iveesiments in w0mties
hield af the end of the repodting penod are induded in net change in
unredized Jppredaticn of depreddBon on fofsgn QaTency Jisets and
[abilities on dhe Statements of Operations

The Met Asset Value {"HAVY ") and total retums of certain Furds or Classes
theseaf, & applicable) are presented in the curmency forwhich the NAY is
reported (the “HAN currency™) a5 detailed in each Fund™s Offering
Memarandum (the “Offering Memorandum™), For the purposes of the
presentation of the NAV and the 1063l refuem in the N&Y qurrency, the
Begrining and ending NAVS are comwerted wsing the pencd beginning and
ending exchange rates, respectively, and dsmibutions are convérted using the

Fork
Fond Tl HAV Corrermy Dirvaak
FIMCD Emaigang Marues Bond Fund | Yen-H adged) Jaganiega yen U5 dollar
FIMCD Emazgang Markces Bond Fund il Jupanesa yen U5, dollar
= JiBRL
L] J{IDR]
= J{NFD
= JiMAK
= JITAN
® J{TAR)
FIMED Eura Total Renun Fund Eien o
FIMCA Real Rietum fund 5 dolar LS. dollar
FIMCD Sher - Teem Sowingy
= AD Asmahan doflar U5, dolar
= LC0ED U5 doller US dollar
= JUFn Jpparasa yen US dollar
= JnEm Jepaness yen U5 dollar
=Py Jipanesa yen U5 doler
* s (L5 dol 15, dollar

[ Multictess Operations  Each Class of 2 Fund affered by the Trusthas
fights. to the assets of the Fund equal to that of other Classes of the ame
Fund, a5 applicable, excepl for spedific aisets and gains and losses designated
b a Class relating to cumency hedging operaBions. Inoome, non-Class spedfic
expentes, snd non-Class spedlic reaked and unrealized cagets) gans and
leesies are Alocabed toeach Class of units based on the relative net et of
edch Clags of the respeciive Fund, s applicable. Class spedfic expenses
cumently indude management, advisory, adminisirative, agendy, and
distribution fees, where applicable

[e] Dizeributen Palicy The following table shows the antiopated frequency
of distribuBions for each Fund. Distibutions from each Fund may be dedaned
and distniwited to Unitholders only upon the authonzation of the Manager,
wihich authonzation may be withheld at the Manager™s duretion

Declared Dy and Paid Meathhy
FERCH Ewen Totd Aedurn Fusd

Dieclared and Paid Monthbye

FRLICE) Emeegng Black ez Bond Fund LITR
PRI Erroes garng Miask s Blond Fund [Yen-Hedged
PEVC) Ernar gang Mk ts Bond Fund |1
FRRICD) ShoreTorm Soamgy

= JUFY

= i
Declared and Paid Bosrierky:
FRLCE) Bermids Farsgn Lo Durason Fond
FRLICE) Barmuda U Lo Duswion Fued

Dieclared and Paid Annualby

FIMCDO Fead Rerrures Furdd
exchange rate at the time of the diiribution See the following table for the PRUCT) ShareT |u-:;
HAY cumency of eadh respective Fund: L a;n“ ki
1 LR P 1]
Furel e NAV Duarrerey = I
Curtenoy . @
FINCY B mrerardes Formign Lows D smson Fnd J,&.mgm U5 dellw The Manager does mot mpect to declare distribotions with respect 1o this Fusd
F!hl:ﬂﬂum;nij 5. Linsy Dirstssn Fusd Japibies o S dellar fer Classes theraad, il applicablel; but may, in its discretien, declare and pay
| PILACE) Efnecgng Mlarkem Bord Fued LIITEL Aspanis ven S bl dis Bridutions to the Linithelders at any time.
PRMACT) Emergeng llarkerm Bond Fusd (M1 U S dellar S delly FEUICT) Erna ging bt Bond Fund (M)
= D
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Disaribuetions, if any, will generally be made friom the ralevant Fund's (or
Class's, If applicable) netimvestment income. in addition, e Manager may
authorize the payment of net realized capital gains available for distibuton
Additional distributions may be dedared as the Manager deems appropriate
Distribertions paid with respect to amy Fund (or Class thereof, if applicable)
will peckpce the NAV of such Fand for Class thersof, if appBcable) At the
disetion of the Unitholders, cash dismbutions from a Fund {or Class thereof,
if applbcable) may eithver be refnvested in additional units of 3 Fund (o Class
thereod, If applicable) or paid 1o a Unithalder in cash. Cash payments will be
paidin the MY asrency of the Fund. Eadh Fund {or Class thered, if
applicable) may dedare further distrbutions i coamldered recessany in order
Lo ainitain 4 redsonable level of distributions for @ Rund (or Class thereal, it
aq:»lu:.ablej I e event that there 15 inddequale net mcome and nel reaized
Capital gains b0 pay 4 destribution of & Fund (or Class thereof, if applicable)
required bey the Offering Memorandum, the Banager may pay a distribution
condsing of 4 portion of the capatal of sudh Fund (of Class thensod, o
applicable). Distributons not collected within six years from their due date
will lapse andwill sccnee 1o the benehi of the relevant Fend (or Class thereod,
it applicable)

1) Mews Ascsunting Pronsurcemems and Regulatory Updates In Yarch
2020, the Rnanoal Accognong Standands Board { FASE ) 1ssued an
Accounting Standards Update ("ASLT), ASL 207004, which prosaces
optional guidance 1o ease the potent 3 accounting burden assodated with
ransnoning vy Fom e London Enterbank Offered Rase (" UBOR™) and
other referenice rates that Fe expected o be decontinued ASL 2020-04 is
eflective for certain reference rate-related aontract modfications that ooqur
diaring the period Maxdh 12, 2020 throwgh December 31, 2022 In Mach
2021, the administrator for LIBOR announced the extension of e pubiication
of a majority of the US0 LIBOR settings to June 30, 2023 Management is
continuoudy svaluating the patential éffect a discontinuatson of LIBOR could
have on the Funds” imeestments and has determined that it is unlikely te
ASU's adoption will have 3 matenial impact on the Funds’ finandal
statements

3. INVESTMENT YALUATION AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

{a) Invesstmint Valua tion Pelicies The price of 3 Furd's wmrs is based on
thie Fund's NAY. The NAY of a Fund, of each of its Classes, a5 applicabde, 15
determined by dividing the total value of portiolio investments and other
Asyiers attributable to that Fund or Class, less any Rabilities, by the toeal
nuarmbes of urits cutstanding of that Fund o (lass On each Fund’™s Deaing
Chy (e et i thee cuifeent Offeding Memoranduim of the

Trust), Fund units ane ordnanty valued a5 of the dose of reqular rading on
the Mesw York Stock Exchange ("N SE Close ™). infrmation that becomes
kncwn to the Funds o their agents after the time a5 of which MAY has been
caboulated on a particular day will not generally be used to rereactively adust
the price of a security or the KAV determined earlier that day. Each Fund
resenves the right to change e tme a5 of whidh its HAY is cakadated if

the Fund dases earlier

Fiof parperies of caculanng NAY, portdolio seounes and other J5se1 for
which market quotes ane readity available are valued at market value. Marker
walue k= generally determired on the basis o officsl doting peices or the last
reported salis prices, of if no sales ane peported, baded on quates oblained
from established market makers or prices (induding evaluated prices) wpplied
Iy the Funds approved pang seraces, quotanon neportng systems and
ather thirdkparty sources (logether, "Pricing Senvices™). The Funds will
noemnally use priding data for domestic equity securities recetved shortly after
the WYSE Clase and do not nonmalky take into aocownt rading, dearandes o
setflerments that fake place after the MNYSE Close |f market value pridngis
used, a foreign (non-U0 5 ) equity sequrity raded on 3 foresgn exchange of on

more than one exchange is typlcally valued using pridng infomation from the
exchange considered by PIMCO 1o be the prmary exchange A foeelan fion-
LLS ) ity Security will be valued a5 of the dote of rrading on e Toreign
exchange, or the NYSE Close, If the NYSE Cose ooams before the end of
frading on the foreign exhange. Domestic and faregn (non-U 5 ) fmed
income securities, non-exchangs traded denvatives, and edquity opticns are
normby valued on the bass of quotes abtained from beokers and dealers or
Fricing Services using such data reflecting the prindpal markets for thoss
securities Prices obtained from Pridng Services may be based on, among
oftver things, information provided by market makers or estimates of market
values obtained from yield data relating to imvestments or securiies with
similar characleristics. Certain fioed ingome sequrities purchased on a
delarped-delivery basis are marked to market dally unsl cetdement at the
fonmard setiement date, Exchange-traded opsions, except aquity options,
futures and options on futures e valued at fe seiement price detemmined
by the refesvant exchiange, quotes abrained from & quatation reporting Sy,
established markel makers of pridng services. Swap agresments are valued
o e bads of maicket-based prces wpplied by Prdng Senices of quabes
obtaned trom brokers and dealers. A Fund's irreslmants in open-end
management investment companies, other than exchange-traded funds
(TETFs"), ane valued af the NAWS of sudh irvestmenls

If & foreign {non-L1 5 ) equity seqanity’s value has materially changed after the
dioze of the security’s pimary mxchange of prindpal market but before the
NYSE Clse, the secunty may be valped at fair value based on procedures
established and approved by the Manager. Foreign fon-L1 5. ) equily
senunties that do not made when the BYYSE is open ane also valued at fair
walise, With respect to foreign non-U S b equity securifies, a Fund may
deterrrine the T vaue of investments based on information provided by
Fricing Services and other third-party vendoes, whach may redomimend fair
vl or austments with reference 1o other securiies, indices of asseis.
comsidering whether Lar valuasion is required and in deternining fair

values, a Fund may, among other things, contider significant events lwhich
may be congidered 1o indude dhanges in the value of U5 sequnities or
setnities mdices) hat ooqur after e dose of the relevant market and before
the NYSE Close. A Fund may ulilize modsling tools provided by thind-party
vendors to getermine fair values of foreign (non-U %) sequnties. For these
punposes, anry mowvernent in the applicable reference index or instrument

(" zer0 trigger ™) between the earlier dose of the applicable foreign market
and the NYSE Close may be deemed to be a significant event, prompding the
appication of the prcng model (effecvey reusdting in daiy fair

valsations) Foreign exchanges may pemit trading in foreign (non-L15 )
Bty Secufities of Ayt when the Trudt IS not open for business, which my
result in a Fund’s partiolio nve stments being atfected when Urithol ders ane
unabile to biy or Sell units

Sendor secured flaating rate loans for which an active secondary market exsts
[ & reliable degose will bie valeed a1 the mean of the Lot avislable bidfask
prices in the market for such laans, as providied by a Pricing Sendce. Senior
secured floating rate loans for which an active secondany market does not
axisd 10 a refisble degree will be valued a1 fair value, which is ntended 10
approcdmate market value. In waluing a senicr sacured floating rate loan at
fakr valae, the tactors considered may indude, but are not imited o, the
flbowing: () the aedtwontiness of (e boreower and sy intemediate
partidpants, (b the terms of the foan, () recent prices in the market for
sirmalar hoans, if any, and (ch recent prices in the market fioe instruments of
sirndlar quality, rate, pedlod untl mext Mberest fate reset and maturity

Investments valued in osmendies other than the fundlionad QT ENCY

of & Furd afe cormesnied i the Rinchons] cumendy wing eotange rates
obrained from Pridng Serdces. A5 a resdt, the value of sudh imesiments and,
in sy, the MAY of the Furd's whits meny bee atfected by changes in the valiee
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of qumendies in relation 1o the functional umendcy. The walue of Evestments
traded in Soreign markets of denominated i curnen des other tan

the functonal qumency may be alfectsd ugnificansy an a day that the Tastis
not open for busness. As aresult, o the exdent that a Fund holds foreign
(non-UL5 § imeestments, the value of thode irnestments may change at Bmes
i you cannot purchace, redéem of &ochangs units and the vatue of such
kst ts will be reSected it Fund's next calaulated NAY

Imvestments for which market quotes or marke t-based valuations are nod
readly svalable se valued a0 Tar value 35 detervened i good faith by

the Manager o persons acting at their direction. The Manager has adoplied
methods for valuing secunities and other assets in droamstances where
rarket quates sre not readily available, and has delegated 1o FIMCO the
regponsitelity for apphying the fair valuation methods, In the event that market
quotes or market-based valisations are nok readlly vailabie, and the sequniiy
OF 5560 cannot be valwed pursant 1o @ Manager appioved vauation
rrethid, the value of the seourity or asset will be determened in good faith by
the Valuation Comireimes. Markel quotes e oonssderad not readily aealable
i cincumatan oes whene thene is an absence of cusrent of reliable marke
based data (e g, trade information, bidfask information, indicative market
dquitanons (T Broker Quaabes”), Prang Senaoes’ praced), induding when:
ewenls occur Alter the dose of the relevant market, but pror to the NYSE
Chose, that materially aifect the values of the Fund's securifies or assets In
addition, market quotes are considened not readily avalable when, due to
extracrdinary drourmstances, the exchanges or markets on which the
securites rade Ao nat open for rading for Sie entire day and no other
ket prices are avallable. The Manager is responsible for monitoning
significant events that may materially affect the walues of the Fund's securities
o ansats and B determining whether the valise of the sppdicable seournises of
Aty should be reevalusted in light of such SqniScant events

Whien a Fund uses Tae vakiation (o determine the value of & pormolio seaunty
of o astel for purpodes of cakaulating its NAY, wch imeestrents will not
b priced on the baus of quotes fram the peimany mearket in which they are
Iradied, bt rather iy be priced by another method that the Manager of
persons acting at ther direction believe reflects far value Fair valuation may
require ubjective determinatons dbout the value of 2 sequrity. While

the Trust™s policy is intended to result in 3 calaulaion of a Fund™s NAV that
Tairly reflects sequrity walues a5 of the fime of prigng, the Tnast cannct ensure
that far values determined by the Manager or persons acting at their
direction would acourately reflect the price that a Fund ¢ould obtain for a
security if it were 1o dispose of that sequrity & of the Gme of priding (for
Instance, in a forced of dismessed sale). The prices used by & Fund iy differ
from the wakse that would be realized if the securites wene sold

(bl Fair Valoe Hierarchy U S GAAP describes fair value a5 the price that

a Fund would receive o sell an auset o pay o transfer a Babilityin an ordery
Lransacmon betweien markel particpants at the measanemen( date It
establishes a fair valwe hierardhy that prionifizes inputs tovaluation methods
and requanes desdosure of te fair valis hierarchy, itﬂﬂl'-atﬂﬂtf each magos
cabegony of astets and labilises, that Wegreqates tar value medsurements nlo
lewels (Lewel 1,2, 0f 2). The inputs oF methodology used tor valu TH) SE0UnDes
A fuaf necestarly an indcason of e s S Med with indettng in those
securifies. Levals 1, 3, and 3 of the fair value hieranchy are defined as follows!

® Lgwel 1—Ouoded prices in active markets o exdhanges S identical assets
and liahdines

B {evel 2=Sgnificant other abservable inputs, which may indude, but are
nok limited to, quaoted prices for similar assets o liabilties in markets that are
active, quated prices for identical or smila assets o liabilties in markeels that
are not active, inputs other tan quoted prices that are cbservable for the
assets o Rabiliges (swch a3 interest rates, yield ourves, volatilities, prepayment

speedk, loss sevenies, aedt isks and default rates) or otver market
comabofated inpuls

® |pvel 3—Significant ynobservable inputs based on the best information
vl sbli i che CnOEMSLARCES, 10 the extent obseryable inpuls e not
avallable, which mazyindide asasmplions mads by the Manager or persons
JtEng At their drection hat ane wed in detemning the fai valoe of

o tipil ]

In gccondance with the requinements of LS. GAAP, the amounts of transfers
inand cut of Ll 3, if material, are disdased in the Motes to Schedule of
Investments for each respective Fund

For faur valuations wing significant uncbsenvable inputs, U S GAAP requires
1o diecioge transbers into and out of Level 2 of the tar value hierardhy and
punchases and isswes of Level 3 atsets and liabilties during the pericd
Additionally, U 5 GAAP requires quaniitative information regarding the
significant uncbsenvable inputs wsed in the determination of tirvalye of
assets or Babilities categorized a5 Leved 3 in the far value hierardey. In
acoordance with e requirernents of LS GAAR, a2 fair vaue hierardhy, and if
materid, details of significant unobssrvable inputs, have been induded in the
Motes to Schedule of Imestmenis. for each respective Fund

el Valuation Teehnigues and the Fair Value Hierarshy

Lewel 1, Lewal 2 and Level 3 trading assets and trading liabilioes, a0
lairvabue The valiation methods (or "technigques™) and significant inputs
wsed in debédrmining the fair vabues of portfolio securities of ather désets and
liabifities, cabegorized as Level B, Lewvel 2 and Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy
are s follows:

Fixed income securities induding corporate, convertibde and municipal bonds
and notes, LS. government agences, LS, treasury oﬂigac OHS, SOVETEIgN
Iszues, bank loans, comvertible prefemed securities and non-LLS. bonds are
nomially valued on the bass of quotes obtained from brokers and dealers or
Fricing Serdces that use bioker-dealer I.'].-'DI&'.iIIﬁS. repOrtid rades of
valeation esimates from thelr internal pridng models. The Fricng Senvices’
intema models wse inputs that are obsenalie sudh & s detals, nienes
ranes, yield Qunies, prepadient speeds, aedit inkakpreads, defaull rates and
quoted prices for imilar assets Secunities hat use smila valuation
techniques and inputs a5 desonbed abowe e Calegonned &5 Livel 2 of the
far value herarchy

Fied incorme Securities punchased on & delaped-delverny bads or a5 8
repurchase commitmment in a sale-buyback ransaction are marked to marked
daly until serlement at the forward setflerment date and are categorized as
Lewd 2 of the fair value hierardhy

Mangage-related and asset-baced seqanities are v ally isssd as separate
ranches, o dasses, of securities within each deal These seamities are aka
nonmaly valued by Pricing Senviges that use Droker-dealer quotations,
reported rades of valuation estimates from el intemal pridng modeds. The
pricing maodels for these sequrities uswally comsider tranche Jevel atimbutes,
aument market data, estmated cash fows and market-based yeld spreads for
each ranche, and incorporate ded collateral performance, & available
Meatgage-refated and assal-baded secunties thatl wse similar valuation
technicuies and inputs a5 descrbed abowe are categonied as Level 2 of the
fair vialue hieranchy

Cormmon stacks, ETFS, exdhangs-traded nates snd finandal demvative
instruments, sudh &% fulures contracts, fights and warants, of oplicns on
futures that are raded on a national seqanties exchange, are stated at the
last reported sale of setthement prce on the day of valuation To the extent
these seqmities are actively raded and valuation adjustments are not applied,
thiey are categorized as Level 1 of the fair value hierandhy
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Investments valued (denorminated) in currencies oder than the fenclional
asrency of a Fund e comvened to the functional curency using exchange
rates (anrency spof and forward rates) obtained from Pricing Senices. AL &
result, the MAV of & Fumd's units may be affected by changes in ghe value of
Cprendes in relation to te functional damency. The value of secunities raded
in foreign markets of denominated i curendes other than the nctional
currenay may be sflscted sgnifcantyy on a day teat the Trustis mot open for
business. Valuation adustments may be appled to certamn sequnties that are
solely traded on 3 foresgn exchange to acoount for the market movement
between the dose of the foreign market and the NYSE Close. These seauities
are valped wsing Pridng Senvices that cansder the comelation of the rading
pattems of the foreign security to the infraday rading in the U 5 markets for
Evesiments. Saounities using these valuation sdjustments ane categonzed &
Lewel 2 of the fair value hierarchy. Preferred secunties and other equitdes
traded on inactive markets of valued by reference o similar instruments are
Alyo caregorized 5 Livel 2 of the far value hieandhy

Ecpuity-linked securities ane valued by referendrg the last reported sde o
setherment price of the |inked redenenced squity on the day of valuation
Foreign exchangs adjus iments are applied 1o the last reported peice o
cover] the linked equity™s rading Qarency b T CORACT S Simng curency
Thede invashments ane cabegornized a5 Leval 2 of the far value Feerarchy

Imrettmisnts in registensd open-end nvesiment companies. (other than ETFS)
will b valued based upon the Navs of sudh investments and are categonzed
as Level 1 of the fair walue hieranchy. Investments in unregistered open-end
imeestment companies will be caladated based wpon the NAVS of sudth
imeestments and are considered Lewel 1 prostided that the NAVS are
observable, cabodated daily and are the value atwhich bath purdhases and
sales will be conduched

aluation scustements may e spptbed 1o certan exchange raded futes and
ophions to account for market movement bebween the exchange settlement
and the NYSE dose. These seaurities are valued usng quoles obtained from 3
Quotanon feporting System, establshed markel makers of pracng sendoes
Fenandal derivatioes ang these valiation adustrments are calegorided ai
Lewel 2 of thie falr value higranchy

Erquity exchange-tfraded options and over the counter finandal denvatne

s brurents, sudh a6 fonward [-:n:w_:p CUFTERNCY CONYTACTS And GplicNS ooniracts,
derive their value from underbang asset prices, indices, reference rates, and
ogher inguils or 3 comtenation of these factors. These confracts are nomally
walued on the badss of quates oblained fram a quotstion reparling Syilem,
established market makers or Pricing Senvices (normally determined as of the
MY 5E Closed, Depending on ®e product and the tenms of the transaction,
finandal derrvative instruments can be valued by Fricng Senvices using a
series of echniques, induding simulation pricng models, The priding models
use inputs that are coserved from actively quoted markets sudh as quoted
DS, mouer detals, nchoes, bidtadk spreads, inbenedk ratis, impsed
walatilities, yield qurves, dvidends and exchange rates. Financial detivative
InstrurTen s that use samilar valuabon Tedhnegues and inputs &5 described
abowe are categonized as Level 2 of the fair value feeranchy

Centrally desed avaps and owver the countiel Svaps demee et value from
underling asset prices, indices, reberence rates, and other inpuls or a
combanation of these tactars. They are valwed wsing 3 broker-deater bid
quotaton of on market-based pices provided by Pridng Services {normally
determined a5 of the WYSE Clote) Centraly deared swaps and over the
counter swaps can be valued by Fricng Sendces using 3 series of fedniques,
induding smulation pricng models. The peiding models may use inpats that
are ohsenved from actvely quoted matkets such a3 the cvernight index swap
rate (COR"), LEPOR fonward rate, interest rates, yiedd curves and aredit
spreads, These sequiities are categoeized a5 Level 2 of the far value hieranchy

winen 3 fairvaluation methed is applied by the Manager that wses significant
uncbservable imputs, investments will be priced by 3 method that

e Manager of persons acting a1 the dinecion belenve refiects fair value and
are caiegonzed as Level 3 of ihe fair value hierarchy

Frody priong procedures set the base prce of 4 fived income seurity and
subsequenty acdjust te price propartonally b market valise changes of 4 pre-
determined security deemed 1o be comparaile in duration, generally a LS
Treasuny or Sovereign node based on country of issuance. The base price may
Lot & Borcskcier-cheabed quate, Wansaction price, of an intemal value a4 dernved by
analysis of market data, The base price of the security may be retet on a
pegiodic bass based on the availabilitg of market data and procedures
approved by the Valuation Cversight Committee. Shgnificant changes in the
uncbservable inputs of the prosy pridng process (the base price) would result
in direct and proportiona! changes in the fair value of the seaunty, These
SeQunties ane calegon ied & Level 3 of the Tair value Merardry

If inc-pusty evalksed vendor pnong i not avalae of not deemed 1o b2
Incative of fair vialue, the Manager may elect toobian Broker

Cuotes directly from the broker-dealer or passed-through Broker Cuote from
& thard-party vendar I the event that far valise 2 based upon & snge
sourced Broker Cuale, these senmnties ane categodised o Level 3 of the fair
value hiesanchy Broker Cuotes are typicaly recenved from establithed market
partidpants, Although independently receved, the Manadger does Aot hiave
the ransparency o view the underying inputs which suppoet the markeg
quedation, Significant changes in the Broker Quote would have direct and
propartional chamges in the fair value of the security

Feference instrument valuation estmates far value by utilizing the comelation
of the sadurity to one of more broad-based seqmities, market mdices, andior
other finandal instruments, whose prigng information i readily available
Uncteervable inputs mayindude those used In algoniton formulas based on
percentage change in the reference instruments andfor weights of each
reference instument. Significant changes in the unoteensatie inputs would
et in derect amd propontional dhanoes m tihe tar value of the seamty
Theete secufities are cateqorized a5 Level 3 of the far value hierarchy

Shirt-1eimn debil mstraments (Sudh 38 commend d paper) having a femaining
rreasurity of &0 days of less My e valued an amortzed Cost, S0 long &6 he
ArmorTized oost valise of such dhort-term debil instruments s Spproadmanedy the
same a5 the fair walue of the instrument as determined without the use of
amirtized costvaluation These searities are categorized as Level 2 or Level
3 of the fair value herardry depending on the sounce of the base price

4. SECURITIES ARD OTHER INVESTMENTS

[a) Deleged-Delivery Transactiors Certain Funds may purchade of tell
sedisities on @ delayed-delivery bass These trancactions invole 3
commitment by @ Fund to purdhase or sell sequities for 3 predetermined price
or wiekd, with payment and delréery taking place bepond the customary
settement pericd. When delayed-defivery transactions are outstanding,

& Fundwill designate o receive a5 coll#teral liquid assets in an amount
suffident bo meed the purchase price or respective cbligations. When
purchasing a sequrity on a delayed-delivery basis, a Fund assumes the rights
and ks of cwmership of the sequnty, induding the fisk of price and yield
fluctsatons, and tekes such flectuations inke sa0ount when determaning its
NaY. A Fund may dispose of of renegonate a -i':lh'eﬂ-l!%ll'\-%'y Transaoton
Afves it is entered in o, which rmay result in 4 realized gain of loas. When

4 Fund has sold a sequnity on a del ayed-deliveny basis, the Fund doss nat
paridpati in fubufe gans and lostes with respect to e sequnty

[b) Inflationdndexed Bonds Certan Funds may invest m inflation-indesed
s Infation-indeoed bonds. are fived incorme seountes whode prinapal
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valye is periodically adusted by the rate of inflation. The enterest rate on
these bonds is generally fieed at issuance at a rate lower than gypical bonds
Croer the life of an nfation-mdioeed bond, howeves, inTenest will be paid
based on 3 prindpal value, which |s adusted for inflation Any inmease o
decrease in the pandpal amownt of an infation-indexed bond will be induded
as inkenest income on the Statements of Operations, even though fvestors do
ik receive ther prindpal untl matuity, Repayrent of the orignal bond
principad upon maturity {36 adusted for inflatian) is guaranteed in the case of
15 TIPS, For bonds that do not provide a similar quarantee, the adjusted
principal value of the bond repaid at matusity may be less than the original
prindpal

el Loan Partcipatiors, Assigrmems and Originationa Certain Funds may
immvest in direct debt imstrumentis which are interests in amounts owed 1o
fenders or lending syndicates by corporate, governmental, o ofher bomowers
A Fund's invesements i loans may be in the form of participations in loans or
assignments of all o 3 portion of loans from third parfies of investments in of
ofgnations of loans by the Fund, A loan is often administered by & bani: or
other fingndal institution {the "lender™) that ats a5 agent for all holders. The
agent administers the terms of e logn, a5 specified in the loan agresment

A Fund ey irneesin muldpbe series or tanches of & boan, which may have
warying temns and camy dfferent assodiated nisks, When & Fund purchases
AssignAnents fromm henders it acquires drect nghts. against the bomowers of the
boans, Theds laans may indude parSiapations in badde |oxns, which are [aans
Laken out by bomowers for a short period (ypically less than one yean)
pending arrangement of more permanent Snandng theoagh, for exampie, the
Fsswance of bonds, frequently high yield bonds issued for the purpose of
acquisitions

The types of nans and related investments in which the Funds may invest
include, among others, senior loans, subardnated |oans (nduding second
feen Igans, B-hotes and mezzaning loans), whole loans, cormmendial real
estate and other comemerdal loans and struchured boans. A Fund may
Ognate 1ans of a0quEne direct inbenests in boans through primary loan
distributions andior in pivate Fansactions. in the cae of suboedinated loans,
there may be sonificant indebledness rarking ahead of the borrower's
obligation to the holder of wdh & loan, induding in the event of the
curower™s ingohvency. Mezzaning loans are typically secured by a pledoge of
AR ety interest in fe morgege Dormower that owns thi real srate rather
than an inlenett in a mortgage

Imvettmients in |aans may ndude unlunded |oan comeniirmen ts, which are
contractual chisgations for funding. Unfunded loan commitments may indude
revolving red t fadlities, which may obligate 3 Fund to supply addtional cash
b the barmowes on demand. Unfunded loan commatments. frepresent a future
obligation in full, even though a percentage of the committed amount may
niot be utdized by the bomgwer When investing in a loan partidpation,

a Fund has the nght to feceiae pa-fmmsc'ipnnclpal interest and .]I'I'r'-'i-EE 1
whidh it is entitled onby from the lender seling the loan agreement and only
upon receipt of payments by the lendsr from the borower. A Fund may
fisciyie & Cofrnment ik based on the undroan pofion of the nderheng
[Ene of redit portion of 3 [oan. In cenain arourmstances, & Fund may recene 3
peralty e upan the prepaymient of 2 loan by 2 bormower. Fees ssmed o
paid are recorded a3 a cornpanent of inlenest incoms or inferest egenze,
respecively, on the Statements of Operations: Unfunded koan commiments
are reflected a5 a liabdity on the Statements of Assets and Liabilites

|d} Mertgage-Related and Oibar Asset-Backed Securities Certain Funds may
meetl in mortgage-related and other ssset-hadeed secunties that deecty or
ndrecty repeitent 3 parnapabion in, of are seored by and payable from,
boans onred property. Morlgage-rel sted securifies. e created from pools of
regdential or commerdal mortgage loans, induding mortgags |oans made by
savings and loan ireHhobons, mormgage bankers, commerdcal banks and

otfeers. These sequniies provide 3 monthly payment which consists of bath
interest and principal. Interest may be determined by foed or adustable rares
Thes fate of prepengrents on-underying mongages will alfect the prce and
wilatility of a mortgage-related security, and may hawe the effect of
shortening of extending te effecive deraton of the seauity rdlatbne 1o what
wias anficipated at the Gme of purchase. The timely payment of prindpal and
interest of Oertan mormgdge-related seomnties b quarantesd vath the full faith
and credit of the U5 Government. Pools areated and guaranteed by non-
govemnmental issuers, indudng government-sponsored corporations, may be
supported by viarious forms of insurance or quarantess, but there can be no
assurance that private insurers or guaraniors can meet their obligations under
the msirance pobdes o guarantee arrangements. Many of the risks of
Inwes g en morgage-relaed sequrites sequed by cofremerdial Fodigage
loans reflect the effects of local and other economic conditions on real estate
markets, the ability of tengnts 1o make lease payments, and the abdity of 2
property 1o atiract and retain tenants These seounities may be less ligeid and
may exhibat greater price volaility than other types of mortgage-related or
ottvel dset-badked secuities, Other aasar-badied Seounines e deatsd fom
many types of assets, indwding but not limited 10, auto loans, accounts
recebrable, such as oredit cand receivalbles and hosgitad acoount recesvables,
home equaty loans, stodent loans, boat boans, motile horme [aans,
recreational wehicle loands, manufactured housing loans, aircralt beases,
computer leases and syndicated bank foars. The Fund may invest in amy bevel
of the capital strucnare of an issuer of montgage-tadied o asset-badoed
sequrifies, induding the equity or “fistloss™ wanche

[e] Collateralized Marigage Obligatiers (7O MO} are debt obligations of 2
legal entity that are collateralized by whole mortgage foans o private
mortgage bonds and divided inbo dasses. TS are struchured into multiple
dhasses, often refermed o a5 “tranches”, with eadh dass bearing a different
stated mahanity and entitled oo 3 Gfferent schedude Bor payments of prindpal
And imbefest, incudeng prepayments. CWCk may be [ess lioued and may exdsebil
qreater price volatiling than ceher types of morigage felated of asset-backed
seqities

[f] Stripped Morigage-Back ed Securities ("SMES") are dedvative mult-dass
mortgage sourites. SMES are wsualy structured with two dasses that receive
different proportaens of the interest and princpal distibutions on 3 pod of
morigage dsers An SMBS will have one dass that wall receve Ji of the
interest {the interest-cnly or 10" dassh, while the other dass will receive the
entine peincpal (the prindpal-only or “PO" dass) Payments receved for 105
are indudied in intenestincome on the Staements of Operations. Becaiss no
principal will be regeived at the maturity of an [0, adjusiments are made o
the ooil of the seawity on & monthly basis untl mateity. These sdjusrments
are indidied in inferestincome on the Statements of Operasions. Payments
received for FOs are reated as reductons 1o the mst and parvaue of the
Seaities

[a) Collateralizad Debt Obligatiars (T CD0<"™) include Collaterahzed Bond
Ciligations (TCEOL"), Collateralized Loan Obligations ("CLOs™) and other
simdlarly sinsctured secunities. CBOs and CLOs are fypes of asset-badked
secumities A CEOis a trust which is badeed by a dversified pood of high i,
bt irvestment grade fixed income searities. & CLOTs a trust typically

coll terakzed by a pocl of loans, which may indude, among others, domestic
and foreign senicr secured loans, senior unsequred Boars, and subordinate
comporate bears, indudng loans that may be rated befow investment grage or
equivalent snraned koans. The nisks of an irvestment i & COO depend Langely
on the type of the oollateral secufities and the dats of the CDOin whidh

& Fund invests. in addition to the noomal risks sssociated with fived incams
seourities discuised elswhiens in this repant and the Funds” Offering
Memorandum (2 q., prepayment nisk, credit msk, hquidity nsk, market ntk,
structural sk, fegal risk and interest rate rick fahich may be exacerbated if
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the interest rate payable on 3 structured finendng changes based on
rusliples of changes in interest rates of inversely to changes in interest
rate), CBOs, CL0s, and other CDCS cary additicnal nsks ndudng, but not
lemited to, () the possbilicy that dsinbutions from collateral seouities wall not
b adecuate 1o make interest or ather payments, &) the quality of the
collabersl may dadine in value or default, (@) the risk that a Fund may imaest
I CEOs, CLOS, of othver COOE that dne subdedinate o other dasses, and (v)
the compl e stnachare of the security may nod be fully understood at the time
of investment and may produce digpu tes with the issuer or unexpected
imvestment resudts

(b Paymant Indind Securities Cértain Fundst may ifvedd in payment in-ind
securifes (T FIEST) PIES may gree the issuer the option ateach interest
payment date of making interest payments in either cash andfor addtional
debit sequrities. Those additional debt securities usually have fhe same terms,
induding mahgity dates and interest rates, and assodated risks as the
oniginal bonds. The daly market quotations of the oniginal bonds may indude
the soorued interest (eferred 10 35 @ 'rirl:w:r price”) and reguire a o 1A%
adustment from the unredized appredation of depred ation on invesiments
tointerest recesvable on the Siatements of Assets and Lisbelites

(i} Restricted Secaities Ceman Funds may hold investments that are subject
torlegal or contractual restrictions on resake These searties may be sold
privabely, but may be required to be registered or exempled from such

eI sion before Leesng Sl 30 the public. Private placement seuries. are
deneraly considensd 8o be resmicted. Disposal of nesmicted imvestments mmay
Imedve I'irﬂl‘*{EGEUH’iﬂ;I'IEI;l?I[IG[I(ﬂﬁ and expenses, and prompt sale at an
acceptalle prce fdy be dfficult o schisve. Redtincted imastments beld by
the Funds at May 31, 2022, as applicable, are disdosed in the Motes to
Shedile of nestments.

()} Structured Botes Certain Funds may investin stnuctured notes and other
related instruments, which ane privately negotiated debt obiigations in which
the princpal and’ or interest ks detemined by reference 1o the performance of
a benchmark asset, market o inferest rate {(an "embedded index ™), such as
selected sequitles, an index of seamities or speaied inberest rates, or the
differential performandce of two assets of markets, sudch &5 indexes reflecting
bomts. Structured irstraments may be issued by corporations, indudng
panks, & well a5 by governmiental agendes. The terms of such stuctured
nstruments noemally provide that their pondpal andfor interest payments are
[ b St upratangs of doweTrerarck (DUt ondinanly not below 2ero) 1o
reflect changes in the embedded index while the structunnd instrurments ane
subtandng. As a result, the intenest andfor princpal payments that may be
ke on & Struchuned product mdy vany widely, depending on a vanety of
tactors, induding the wolatility of the embedded index and the efect of
changes in the embedded index on prindipel andder interest payments

k) U5, Gavernment Agencies or Government-Sporsared Enterprises
Certain Funds may imvest in seqites of U5 Gowernment agendies of
government-sponsored enterprises. U5 Govemment seqanfies ane
obligations of and, in certain Cases, quaranteed by, the L% Govemment, its
agendies of insmumentalities. Some US. Government seouniies, wch a5
Treasury bdls, notes and bonds, and seoxiSes guaranteed by the Govemment
Mational Morgage Asodation CGNMA™ or "Ennie Mae"), are sapported
oy the full fath and dredht of this U5 Governiment; athers, such as hose of
the Federal Horme Loan Banks, are supported by the rght of the isuer to
boron from the U5, Department of the Treasury (e ~ULS. Treasury™); and
athers, such a5 thase of 1he Federal Mational Mortgage Associaton (TFNMA™
or “Fannie Mae™), are supported by the discretionary authority of the U5
Goverenent o purdhase the 3gency’s obligaticns. L5 Goemment e e
may ndisde 2ero coupon securities, whidh do ot destribute interedt on a

ourrent baws and tend to be sulbject (o a greater risk than interest-paving
secuities of similar matuites

Governmen-retated guarantors (e, not badeed by the full faith and credt of
thie L5, Gowemment) indude FRMA and the Federal Home Loan Matgage
Corporation (TFHLMC™ of “Fredde Mac™) FNMA & 3 givermiment Sponsoned
COMporation. FHMA purchases comentional § e, not insuned of quarantesd by
any government agency) reddential momgages from a list of appacwed
seflers/eendcers which indude state and federally charered savings and loan
Asodations, mubial savings banks, comimendal banks and aedt o and
mortgage bankers. Pass-through secunites issued by FHMA are guaranteed a3
1o timely payment of princpd and interest by FNMA, but are not badeed by
the full faith and creditof the U5 Government FHLMC issues Paridpation
Certificates ("PCs"), which are pass-through seqsites, each representing an
undividad inkerest in a pool of residential mosigages. FHIMC quaraniees the
frmely payrment of interest and Wtimane ollection of principal, but PCs are pat
backied by the fiulll f2ith and credit of the LS. Govemment

In Juree 2009, FRMA and FHLMC stamed sosng Linfiorm Mongage-Badoed
Sequriies ("UMBS") in place of their aament offerings of TEA-eligible
Lenphities (the “Single Seourty itame™) The Singie Seqrity Rikate Seeky
o wppoet the overall ligedty of the TBA market and aligns the
characteristics of FNMA and FRLMC certificates. The effects that the Single
Sequnly Inmbanve may have on the market for TEA and othet momgage-
backed securities ane uncertain

Ricll-timing sirategies can be used whee 3 Fund seeks to exdend the
expiration or maturity of 3 position, such as a TEA sequnty on an underfyding
assed, by disimg out the position before expiration and opening a new
position with regpect b substangally the same underying asset with a later
expiration date, TEA securities purchased or soid are reflected on the
Staterments of Assets and Liakilities as an asset or liablity, respectively

[ When-ssued Tranzsctions Certan Funds may punchase o sell secunties
on & when-ssued basis. Thete Wansactions e made condBonally because 4
seurity, althoagh authoeized, hat nod yet been iswed in the markel
Transactions to purchase or el securities on 3 when-dssued batis imaodve

4 commitment by a Fund bo purchiase or sall these sequrities for a

prede termened price o yield, with payment and defrvery taking place beyond
the astomany setement period A Fund may sell when-issied seqmities
befiore they are delivered, which may result in a realized gain or loss

[m) Bank Obligatiors Eank obligations in which a Furd ray imest endude
certificates of deposit, bankers” acceptances, and fioed time deposits
Certificates of deposit are negotiabie certificates issued against funcs
deposited in & commendal bank for 3 defiréte period of time and eaming a
cspedfied neturn, Bankers” acceptances are negotizble drafts or bills of
exchange, nommally drwm by an impoeter or exporter 10 pay for speafic
fefchanickse, which s "sccepted” by & bink, meaning, in effect, ghat the
bank unconditionally agrees to pay the face value of the instrument on
masurity. Fixed tme deposits are bank obligations payable 31 3 aated
maturity date and beanng interest at a foed rate. Fooed time deposits may be
widhdrawn on demand by the imvestor, but may be subject o eary
wathdiawal penalities which vary depending upon market condifians and the
remaining matunty of the oblgation

5. BORROWINGS AND OTHER FINARCIHG TRANSACTIORS

The fallowning disdodunes contamn information an the Funds” ability 4o lend o
bemowy cash or securities o0 the extent permitied ander the Offenng
Memorandum, which may be viewed as bormowing or fnandng transactions
by the Funds. The location of these instruments is desaribed below . For 3
detailed desaipton of credit and counterpaty risks that can be assodated
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with borrowings and other finanding transactions, please see Mote 7,
Prinaipad and Cither Risks

{4} Repurchase Agreements Certain Funds may engags in repurchase
agreements. Under the terms of a ngical repurdhase agresment,

a Fund purchases an undertying debt obligation (oolla tera) subject 10 an
obligation of the seller 1o regurchase, and a Fund to resell, the otfigation at
an agreed-upon price and Hme In an opsn maturity repurchase agreement,
there 15 00 pre-getemmined repurchase date and the FQreenent can be
Lesrrini il By Bk Fuined oF Cominterparty A0 any time. The market valie of e
coflateral must be equal 1o o exceed the total amount of the repurchase
obligations, ndudng nberett. Repunchase agreements, indudng sotrued
nierest, are induded on the Statements of Aseets and Liabilities Interest
eamed is recorded a5 3 component of interest income on the Statements of
Operatons. In perods of increased demand for ooflateral, a Fund may pay a
fee for receipt of collateral, which may result in interest expense to the Fund

(b} Reverze Aepurchaze Agraements Certan Funds may enter info revense
repurchase agreements. in 3 reverse repurchase agreement, 3 Fund delivers a
securify in exchange for cash to a finandal mstiuBon, the counterpaty, with
a simadtanecus agreement bo repunchase the same or substantially the same
SECurity 3t an -i-'}ﬂ?li‘d Upon price and dabe I an open mananty reverse
repurchase agresment, there is no pre-determined repunchiate date and the
agreement can be terminated by the Fund or counterparty at any ime

A Find ks enbiied o reene pendpad and Interest payrments, if Ay, Made on
U sescuity celiveeried 1o the counterparty during dhe beem of the agreement
Cash receved in exchange for sequrities delivered péus accued nterest
DuyTreenits 10 be iridcke by & Fishd 10 counbeipantes ane reRectied a5 & liabslity
on the Statements of Assets and Liabdides. interest payments made by 3 Fund
[ COURnREpar i & reoordied &% 3 Component of interes expenie on te
Staternents of Operations. In perads of increased demand far the sequnty,

2 Fund may recerve a fee for wse of the seqeity by the ccamterparty, whidh
iy resall in interest income to 3 Fund. A Fund will segregate assets
determined to be §quid by PIMCO cr will otherwise cower its obligations
unider reverse replrchase agreements

) SaleBuybeckes Certain Funds may enter into Snandng ransactions
referred to a5 ‘sale-buybacks’. A sale-buybadk finandng Iransadeon consse
of asale of a securnity by a Fund 1o 2 finandal institution, the counterparty,
with 2 simultaneqys agresment bo repunchase the same or substantialy e
tame seqmity 31 an agreed-upon price and date. A Fund is naf entiied to
recetve prindpal and interest payments, it any, made on fe sequnity sold 1o
the counterparty during the term of the agreement. The agresd-upon
procierds for securites to be repurdhased by a Fund are reflected s a [abilin
o the Statements of Assets and Liabities. A Fund will recogrize net ingome
pefretanted by e prioe dfferential between the peice feomed for the
transherred security and the agreed-upon repurchase prde This ks commanty
referred 1o a5 the ‘prwce drop’. A priok drop ConSist aof (1) the foredgane mbenest
and nflationary moome aduiments, § any, 3 Fundwould have otheranse
recetved had the security not been sobd and (i) the negofiated finandng terms
between 3 Fund and counterparty. Foregone interest and inflationary income
adjustments, if any, are rednded as components of interest income on the
Statemnents of Operations. Interest paymenits based upon negotiated fmandng
terms mmade by @ Fund o -:-Juf-[-':rrmir:s AN Teonded 85 4 Component of
interest expense on the Statements of Operations. In periods of indreased
demand fior the sequrity, & Fund may receive 3 fee for use of the security by
e CounBerparty, which may resal i interestinoome ia Fund. A Fund wall
Segrigale Siets detenimined to be Bouid by PIMCO of will otherwite Gover its
obligations under sbe-buybad Tansactions

{d} Short Sales Certam Funds may enter into short sales transactions. Short
sales ame wansactions i whidh the Fund selis a seourity that it may pot own
A Fund may make short sales of seqsities to §) offset potential dedines in
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long positions in similar sequrities, (i) to increase the Bedbaliy of the Fund
(it} for investment retum, {v) a5 pert of a e arbiirage strategy, and (v) as
parrt o i1s deverall portlolio man sgement strategied immbang the use of
derivative mstruments. When a Fund engages in 3 thon sale, it may bomos
thie Security sold shart and delaver it ta the counberpaty. The Fund wall
ordinarily have 1o pay 3 fee of prémium 0 bomow a seaurity and be obligated
0o repny the lender of the Security amy diadend or intenest that aorues on the
a0 Ty dusrineg thee pericad of the boan. Securities soid in short sale ransactions
and the dvidend or interest payable on such securities, if any, are reflected az
payatie for shoe sales on the Statements of Assets and Liatelities, Short sales
expose the Fund to the ridk that itwall be required to cover its short position
at & time when the sequrity of other asset has apprediated in value, tus
resulting i ksses to the Fund. A shoet sale s " against e box™ if

the Fund heids injits porticlio or has the nght 1o aoquire the sequrity sold
short, of securities identical to the seouity sobd short, at na sdditional cost

A Fundwill be wbgect to addional rsks 1o the extent that i engages n short
<ales that are nol "against the bax™ A Fund's loss on a shom sale could
tredhetically be unlirmited in cates whene the Find is enakie, forwhativer
reasan, bo dose out its short position

B. FIH AHCIAL DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

The fodlowing disdiosures contain information on bow and why the Funds use
financiad derivative instnuments and how nandd dedvative instruments
affect the Funds’ finangia position, resulits of operations and cash flows. The
location and fair value smounts of these instruments on the Statements of
Assets and LiabiiSes amd the net realized gain Joss) and net change in
unrealized pprecation {deprediation) on the Statements of Operatons, each
categon 2ed by type of finandal derivative conmract and relased risk expesure,
are induded in 2 table in the Motes to Schedule of nvestments. The inandal
derivative instrumenis outstanding a5 of period end and the amounts of net
realized gain (o) and nel change in enneali 2ed sppredabon (depredat on)
on in andal derivative indruments during the pericd, 2 dsdotedin the
Pt 10 Sohedule of Fnestments, senee a3 ndicatons of hie wolume of
financia derivative activity for the Funds

[a} Forwsard Foreign Currency Comtracts Certan Funds ray endgage in
fonerard foreign cumency confrads in connection with <ettling planned
purchases of sales of tequnied, ta hedge the curmen oy Exposune Jssoaated
wath sorme of all of 3 Fund™s secunties or & pan of an vestment strategy. A
fonsard foreign qurency conlract is an agreement behwien twio parties (o bay
and sell 3 curency a1 a se1price on 3 Tuture date. The marked value of 3
fonevard foreign @mency contract fluchuates with changes in foreign cumendy
exchange rates. Fonward foreign aurency contracts are marked to market
daty, and the change in value is recorded by a Fund a5 an wnrealized gain o
loss. Realized gains of Iosses are equal o the difference batween the value of
the contrac at the Gme [twas opened and he value 3 the time iTwas dosed
and &g necorded wpon delivery of receipd of the cumency. These oon racts
ey imvoive market nisk in excess of the unnealized gain or loss refleced on
the Statements of Assets and Labites. In additon, 4 fund could e epuied
b rigk if the counterparties are unable 1o mest the temms of the contracts of if
the value of the currency changes unfavarably to the funcionadl aurency. To
maligate sch risk, Cash o securities sy be exchanged as collateral pursuan
b the termis of the underhying contracts

Certain Funds, having a hedged Class, may dso enter inlo fonward foreign
Qumency confracts designed to offset the effiect of hedging at the Fund level in
order b leave the hedged Class with an exposure 1o oumendes otfer than e
functional awrency. There can be no guarantee that these Class spedic
fonward foreign currency conracts will be suocessil
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{5) Futares Comracts Cerlain Funds may enter into fulures confracts. &
futures confract is an agreement bo buy o w2l a security or ather asset for a
561 price on 3 future date andis traded on an exchange. A Fund may yse
fuanares. conIFacts to manage its exposune o the seunties markets of o
mwements in inferest rates and cumency values. The primary risks asodated
with the use of futures contracts an: the imperfect correlation Between the
change in maketvaue of the wecurntes hetd by @ Fund and the prces of
fuhares contracts and the possbilitg of an iliquid markel Futures confracls
are valed based upon ther quoted dilly settement pnces. Lipon entenng
Nt & Butures Coniract, & Fund is nedquained b deposilwith it futures broker an
amount of cash, U%. Govemment and Agency Obligations, or seledt sovereign
debt, in accordance with the initial margin requirements of the broker or
exchange. Fulures contracts are marked to market daity and based on such
mowverments in the price of the contracts, an appropniate payable o recefvable
for the change in valwe may be posted or aolected by the Fund (Futures
Variation Margin®). Futures Vaniation Margins, if any, are dsdosed within
ceniraly deared finandal derivative instruments on the Statements of Assels
and Liskeltes Gaing of [oises sne recognized but ot considered realized unal
the coniracts eqire or dose Futures Goniracts irmadve, 10 varying degrees,
risk: of ko in excess of the Futures Vanstin Margn indudsd within
exchange traded of centrally deared Snandal demvative mitrumints on the
Staterments of Assets and Liakilities

fd Qptiors Contracts Certain Funds may wiite of purdrase options 1o
enhande retums oF 10 hiedge an easing posabon of hatee investment. Cénan
Fursds mury write call and put aptions. on securies and fnandal dervatee
Imstruements they own of in which they may invest Writing put cpdons tends
tovincrease & Rend's éxpodune 5o the undedying insnament Wnting call
ophians tends to dedease a Fund's exposure ba the underding instnament
When a Fund wites acall or put, an amount egual 1o the premism regesved I
recorded and subtequenty marked to market to reflact the current value of
the opion written. These amounts are induded on the Statemnents of Assels
and Liabdities. Prerniuns receved from wiiting opSons which expire are
treated a5 redized gains. Fremiums received from writing cptions whidh are
exerdsed of dosed are added to the progeeds of offset against amounts paid
on e undedang ftuires, Svap, SeQurily OF QUITERCy Transaction Do detamine
the realized gain of Ioes, Certain opgions may be writlen with premiums o be
detemined on 3 fulure date. The premiums Tor thiese oplons & based bpon
nplied wolanlity parameters at speatied tems. A Fund a8 2 wiilsr of a0
ophion has no control ower whether the underlying enstrument may be s0bd
(Tcal™) or purchised ("put™) and a5 4 result bears te market mk of an
unfaeceatde changes in the price of the instrument uiderlying the written
option. There & the risk 3 Fund may not be able to enterinlo a doding
transacton becawse of an iilquid market

Certan Funds may also purchase put and call options. Purchasing call aptions
tends o inmease 3 Fund's exposure 1 the underhdng insrument. Purdhasing
put options tends to derease a Fund's expasure to the underhying instnement
A Fund pays a premivmwhich is induded &5 a0 a5eet on the Statements of
Asgets and Liabdibes and sudmequently marked 1o maket o reflect the
aament value of the option. Fremiums paid for purdhasing options whidh
fxping e meated 55 realized lodses Certan options may be purdhised with
prefraums o be determened on a futune date. The premiums for these opions
are based upon implied wolatlity parameters. at spedfed terms. The sk
aspaatedwith purchasing put and call options s limited 1o the premium
paid. Premiums paid for purchating aptions whidh are exercied of dosed e
added to the amounts paid or offset against the proceeds on the underdying
imeestment Eransaction to determine the realized gain or loss when the
undérking ramsaction is exequted

Cradit Default Swapttana Certain Funds may write of purchase credit default
swaptions 1o hedge exposure to the credit risk of an investment without

making 3 comemitment o the underlying instrement. A aredit default svaption
{5 am option to sell or by credi pratection 1o a spedlic reference by entening
into a pre-defined svap sgreement by some spedfied date in te future

Fereign Currenty Options Certzin Funds manywrite or purchase foreign
QuITency options 10 be used a3 3 short of long hedge against possitie
varatons in foregn exthange rates of [0 Qan exposen: b fonEgn ourmendes

Inilation-Cappad Optiens Certain Funds may write or purchaie infation-
capped oplions to enhance retumns o for hedging opportunites. The purpose
of purchzsing inflation-capped oplices is to protect 3 Fund from infation
erosn above 3 CErtain rate of 3 gven nodonsl eposure. A foor can be
used bogive downside protecthon toinvestments in inflationfinked producs

Inerest Rate-Capped Optisne  Certain Funds maywrite or purchase interest
rate-capped oplions 1o enhance rebars of for hedgng opportunities. The
purpose of purchasing interest rate-capped options & to protect a Fund from
foating rate risk above 3 ceriain rate on a given notional exposure. A flogr
cam be used (o gve dowmside DROTEC of 10 IMASImEn S i inRerest rate linked
products

Iniarest Aate Swaptions Certan Funds may write of purchase inferest rate
swaplions which are opfions to enter inta 2 pre-gefined swap agesment of
to shaonten, extend, cancel of ashensise f'r’-Cll.'l",' i #5000 B0 gTEErment,
by some spedfied date in the fuhare. The wiiter of the swaption beoomes te
Counberparty 10 thie twap if the buyer exerades. The mierest fale S¥aplion
agreement will spedtywhether tie buyer of the swaption will be 4 Soed-rate
receiver of 3 fiwed-rate payer upon exefdse

Ojptiore: on Exchange-Traded Futunes Contracts. Certain Funds may wiite of
punchase opaions of exchange-raded futures Conracs (" Futures Option ™)
Pedige an exishing poeitbon of future investrent, for speculative pUIDOSES of 10
TP 3 ENPROGLING 1 Marker mOvements. A Fullres QDU i &n opton
contract in whidh the undertying insrument 5 3 Snge ulures contrac

Optiors en Securities Cértan Fands may wiite of pundhase oplichs on
sequities toenhance refums of o hedge an exdsting positan of fubure
investment An option on & seauity uses a specied security as the underhing
insbnsment for the ophon Contrac

[ Swap Agrasments Certain Funcs may fvest in swap agreements. Swap
agresments are bdaterally negotised agreements betwesn 3 Fund and a
Counterparty 10 exdange of svap imestment cish Bows, asgets, Toregn
curmenides of marketdinked retams at spedfed, futue intenvaly. Swap
Mernents may De pivabely negotiated i the OTC marketor may be deded
throgh & third-party, known a5 3 ceniral counberparty of defivatives deardng
crganization (“centrdly deared swaps ™). A Fund may enfer inlo asset, gredi
delault, cnoss-currendy, inbenedd rate, kdal retum, vanance and afher fomns of
SWaD Agreements b manage its exposure B0 aedt, aaTendy, interesl rane,
commadity, equty sndinflation risk. In connection with these agreements,
a0 ties or C3sh may be identified as collateral o mangin in accordance with
the terms of the respeciive svap agreements to provide assets of value and
recourse in the event of default or banknpooginscivency

Centraby deared swaps are marked to market daly based upon valations as
determined from e underbding contract of In aocordance with the
Tequirermens Of Bhe Ceniral counternpadty of defivatives deanng ongan 2aton
Changes in market value, if amy, are reflected 35 3 component of net change
inunredined appredation (depreaanon) on the Stabements Df'-."p-.‘:&l.'l-.'ﬂs-
Draly changes in waluation of centrally desred Swaps (™ Swap Vanation
Masgin™), if sy, are dischosed within centrally deared finandal derivative
inatnaTenls on the Statements of Adtets and Liabdites OTC avap paymnénts
received or paid at the beginning of the meassrement period are induded on
the Statements of Assets and Liabilites and represent premimes paid or
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recaived upon entering into the swap agreement ip compersate for
differemnoes benwesn B stated tems of the swap sgresment and prevailing
riost conditions (medit Spreads, aerency exdhange rates, inteest rates, and
other relevant factors). Upfront premiurrs receboed (paid) ane inidally reconded
a5 hiahalives (aserd) and wbdedquently marked to macker o reflact the asment
waiue of the swap, Thess upfant premiums are reconded a8 reaized gains of
bossies on e S1aements of Operahons upon termination of mansity of the
swap. A liquidation payment received of made at the termination of the Svap
Is reconded as realized gain or loss on the S1atements of Operations. et
peripdc payments pecenved of paid by 3 Fund are induded a3 pant of reaized
gaing or losses on the Statements of OperaSons

For purpeses of applying certain of a Fund's invesement policies and
resirictions, swap agreements, like other denvative instruments, may be
watued by a Fund st market value, notiona value or full exposure valus. In the
case of a credt defaull swap, in applyng certain of the Fund's imeesirment
podicies and restrictions, the Fund will valus the credt default avap atis
noticnal valug of its full eposure vifue e, the sum of the nodona amount
for thie contract plus the mckel valwe), but may value the cedt default svap
atmarket value for purposes of applying certain of the Fund’s ather
nestmEnt pobdes and resricions. For axamgle, the Fund mdy value aédit
default swvapes at full expodure value fior purpodes of the Fund's aredit quality
quidelines (if any) because awch value in general better reSects the Fund's
actual sconomec exposure during the e of the gedit default swvap
agreement As a result, 3 Fund may, at times, have notional exposure 1o an
asset dass (before neting) that is greater or lesser than the stated limit or
resiricticn nited in e Fund's Offeng Memorandum. I tis context, bath
the natonal amount and the market vaue may be posiive of negative
dependng on whether thee Find is seiling or bising protection thaough e
et default seap. The mranmer in which censn secunbes of ofer
instruments are valied by the Fund for pomases of Apphing imvestment
policies and restnCTIons My differ foem the manner in which those
meestments ane vakued by other types of imeestors. Entenn g into s p

Ay eernen s involves, 1o vaning degrees, ebements of interest, credit, markel
and documentation ek inexceds of the amounts recodqnized on the
Ltaternents of Assets and Uabilities Such risks imedve the possibality that
there will be no liquid market for thess agreements, that the counterparty to
the agresments may default on its cbligation 1o perfomm of disagree as to the
meaning of contraciual terms in the agreements and that there may be
unfaecratie chamges in interest rates of the values of the asset upon which
the awap is based

A Fund's masdmurm risk of boss froe countenpamy cedit sk 15 the discoented
net valpe of the cash flows to be recetved from the counserparty over the
CONTaR"s remalming life, to the extent that amount is positve. The risk may
b mitigated by having a master netsng arcangement betwesn & Fund and
the counterparty and by the posting of collaterd to 3 Fund 1o cower 3 Fund's
expidure 10 thie counkerparty

T the extent 3 Fund has & policy 10 Bmit te nel amount owed 1o of 10 be
risceivied fromm & single colnbeparty tnder Easlng swap agnesments, wch
femitation only applies W counterparies 10 OTC Swaps and doss ol apply 1o
centrally deaned twaps whiene the counter party 5 3 cenral OUnlEpETy OF
derivatives dearing onganization

Credit Default Swap Agreements  Certain Funds may enter into

credt default swaps on corporate, loan, sovereon, US. minicpal of LS
Treasury issues io provige 3 measure of protection against defaults of the
Fosuers (1. e . bo reduce risk where 3 Fund owns of has exposure i he
riherenced ablegation) of 1o Rake an A0t |ong of short poimion wWith fespect
te the likeditood of 3 partiodar isswer's default. Credit default swap
Apeernents Fvolve one party making a stream of payrments (refamed 1o 4
thes by of pratectian) to anather party (e seller of praotecion) in axchange

fior the right to reveive a spedfied retem in the event that te referenced
enlity, obligation of index, a5 spedfied in the svap sgreement, undengoes
cetain edit event As a seller of protection on Tedit default swap
agresments, 3 Fundwill generaly reveive froen the buyer of protecsien a ficed
rate of ncome thaoughout the tenm of the ssap provided that e is no
redhit event At the saller, 3 Fund would effectively add leverage ta il
prortiolio because, in sddtion Do woaal pel asiers, the Fundwould be
subject b invesiment exposure on the notional amaount of the awap

It & Fand is & seller of probecton and a credt svent aodurs, & defined under
the terms of that particular swap agreement, 3 Fund will either () pay 1o the
banger of protection an amount equd o fhe notional amount of he swap and
take delivery of the referenced obligation, other defiverable obligations or
unckrhying securities comprising the referenced index or i) pay a net
cetifement amount in the form of cash or sequities e o the nofional
arnciant of the swap less the recovery value of the referenced obligation o
underhing securities compaising the referenced index. If 2 Fund is 3 buyer of
profection and & edt event oooirs. a5 defined under the terms of that
paricular swap agresment, a Fund will sither (1) recerve troem te <eller of
protection an amdunt equal to the noSonad amount of the tiwap and deliver
the feferenced oidigaton, other deliveratie abligatons o underying
securities comprising the referenced index or (i) receive a net <etfement
amount in the form of cash or secunties equal o the notiona] amount of the
swap less the recovenyvalue of the relerenced obligatien of enderlying
sequrities oomprising the referenced index. Regoveny values are estimated by
market makers considering either industry staniand recovesy rates of entity
spedfic factors and considerations uni a credit event ocours If & cedit event
hias oooumed, the: recovery vahpe is determined by a fadlitated aucion
witveredry & munimmum number of dlowabde beoker bk, together with a
spedfied valuation method, e ubed 1o Claulate the se1dement vatue The
alfiny to detiver osher obligations may result In 3 cheapest-to-gdeliver opton
{the biyer of prasection”s right 1o choose the delverable chgation with the
Icweest value foliowing a aredl event)

Crifit default wvap agresments on credit indices mvolve one party making a
stream of payments (o another party in exchandge fof the mght to redenve 3
spedified return in the event of 2 write-down, prindpal shortfall, inberest
shorsfal or default of all or part of the referenced entities comprising the
aredit index. A creditindex is a basket of gedt insinements of exposures
desegnied to be representative of seme pant of the credit maket &5 5 whaole
These indces are made up of reference aedits that are judged by a pall of
dealers to be the most liguid entities in the oredit default swap marker based
on mhe sector of Se index Components of te indices may indude, but are
ot Bmited to, investment grade securities, high yiekd sequrifies, asiet-baded
se0s fes, emergeng markets, andior vanous credit rabings within each secor
Creditindices ane raded using cedit defaull swaps with standardered terms
induding a foced spread and standard maturity dates. An index credit default
swap references o the names in the index, and if there is a defauly, the aedt
event is seted bated on that name"sweight in the indee The composition of
the indices changes perodically, uswally every six months, and for most
indices, each name has an equal weight i the index. A Fund may use qedit
default swaps on cedit indices to hedge a portiolio of cedit default swaps or
bonds, which I3 less expensive than it woud be 1o buy many cedi defaut
owaps to achieve 3 similar effen Creckt default swaps on indoes ae
instruments for profecting investors owning bonds against default, and
traders use them o peulate on changes in aedt quality

Il redhit spresds, represented in sbaclute terms, wtilized in detemnining
the marked value of Tedt default swap agreements on corporate, boan,
sorireign, LS. mumdpal of U5 Treasury issies a4 of pemnod end, it ary, an
disclosed in the Motes 1o Schedule of Fnsestments. They serve & an indicator
of the currend stahss of paymentperormance sk and represent the likelibood
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or risk of geaus for the referenced entity. The implied aredit speead of a
partioutar referenced entity refizcrs the cost of buyin giselling protection and
iy incade uplont payrments reguened to be made 1o entef nto the
agreement. Wider aedit spreads represent a detesionation of the referenced
entity's credit soundness and a greater [ikeshood or nsk of default or oher
credit event octuming & defined under the tems of the agreement. For credit
default svap agnetrents on asset-Dadied Securites gnd credt indices, the
quoted marke? prices and resudting values senve as the indicator of the qurrent
status of the paymentperfrmanace rigk. noeasing market values, in absolute
tesmns when compared [o the noticnal amaunt of the swap, represent a
deferioration of the referenced enfity's cred? soundness and a greater
[kelihcod or risk of default or other oredit event oourming a5 defined under
thie termns of the Joeeement

The maximum potential amount of future paaments (undisoounted) thal

a Fund a5 & seiber of prodecion could be required o make under 3 oredi
default svap agresment equats the notional amount of the agresment
Hortinal amounts of eadh indivics oedt gefault swap agreement
outstandng as of period snd forwiech 2 Fund is the teller of protection ane
disdosed in the Nates 10 Schedule of investments. These potential amownts
wiould be partially affset by any recovery values of the repectve refenenced
obligations, upfnont payments redeived upon éntering inlo the agreement, or
net amounts received from the settiement of buy protection gedit default
twap agreements entered into by 3 Fund for the same referenced entity o
entities

Imterest Rate Swap Agreemeris Cerlain Funds are subject bointerest rate
risk exposure in the nomnal coprse of pursuing teirinvestment objectives
The vaue of the foed rate bonds that 3 Fund holds may decreate ifinterest
rates rise. To help hedge against this risk and to maintain its 2ty to
generate income at prevaling market rates, a Fund may enter into interest
rate svap agreements. Interest rate swap agreements involve the exchange
by & Fund with another party for iheir respective commitment to pay or
recene interestan the nodona amoent of |:I|'iI'ID1Z-&1 Certain forms of interesty
Fabe S SOnesments mdy indude: (1) inbenedl rate caps, under whidh, in
et or 3 premium, one Pty agrees Lo make payments 1o he other to the
extent thatintenest rases eoceed 4 edlied rane, of “cap”, (i) intenest rane
Nors, under whidh, in retum for a premiom, one party agress 10 make
DyTreents 1o fe ather o the extent that interest fases Tall below a speatfied
rabe, of “floce™, (1) interest rate collars, under which a party slls 3 cap and
purchates a foor or vice versa in an attempd 1o prodect itelf against interest
rate mowerments exckeding given MEnEmum of Faamurm levels, () callabie
Imterest rate wvaps, under wiich the buyer pays an upfront fee in
consderation for the fight to early terminate the swap transaction in wisole,
at 2erg 006t and af 3 predetemmined date and Ume price 1o he I'f'-i-‘-uflfln’-‘i.’l e,
{v) spreadiocks, which allow the interest rate svap users to lodk in the
forward diflerential (or spread) betawen the interest rate swap rate and 3
spicfied benchmark, or (4) bass seaps, under whath g pares can
enchange vanable interest rates based on different segments of money
kLS

T. PRINCIPAL AND OTHER RISKS

|} Principal Risks In the nomal course of business, the Funds (or Acguined
Furdis), if applscabile) irsde fn sndal mstruments and enter into Snandal
Iransachons where itk of potential boss edsts due bosudh things a5 dhanges
I the manket {market nk) or falure of inabslity of the afher party (o a
transachan 0o pertorm (redit and counterparty risk), See bélow hor a detaled
description of select prindpal risks

Fund of Funds Risk To the @aent thal ceemam Fundgs imest ?Jlﬁfeﬂtijlh' all
Of their respedive asets in Acjuined Fundis), the nsks ssodatedwith
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investing in these Funcs will be docely related bo the rises assodated with the
senrites and other irvestments held by the Aoquired Fundfs). The atilitg of
thie Fusnds b achise Thisir respecinoe inves Irenl oby s may depend upon
the abiliey of the Acquired Fundis) to achieve their respective investment
oiedivies There can be 1o d4siprance that he mvestment objecte of amy
Acrpined Fund(s) will be schieved. The NAV of an Acquiring Fund wall
fluchsate i responie 19 dhanges in the reipedive NAN of the Aoguend
Funde) in which it imesis

In the rormal cowrbe Of business, Atqueted Fund(s) rade findnaal i rurments
and enter inio finanda fransactions where sk of potential loss exists due to
changes in the market {market risk), or falure or inabikity of the other party 1o
a tramsaction 1o perfom (oedt and oounterparty risk)

Market Riskz & Fund™ ivestments i Snancesl dematne i strurments and
other finandal instruments expote the Fund to vanouws risks sudh a4, but naot
limited £o, interest rate, foreign {mon-L 5 ) currency, equity and commedity
nisks

Interest rate rigk is the ik that fixed inoome securites and ofher instuments
hetd by 2 Fund may dedine in walue becaute of an indrease in interest rates. if
nominal interest rates ise, thevalye of certain fieed income seowifies held by
 Fund would likely derease. A nomingd interest rate can be desaibed a5 the
sum of a redl interest rabe and an expected infation rate Interest rate
changes can be sudden and unpredctable. and 3 Fund may lose money if
thiese chandges ane nat anticpated by Fund management. A Fund may nol be
atile 1o hedge againt dhanges @ inbenesl rates or may chiooie nat o do 4 for
Cost ol cheer reasond. n Sadon, amy hidges miny not work 35 intended

Couration s & measre used (o delemmine the sensiivly ofa SEQUARys prce 10
chianipes I iNDEreSt FAES AT InGOOraEs 4 seasity's vield, mupon, finad
maturity and call features, among other characteristics. Convexity is an
additional measure used o understand 2 secunity’s o Fund’ interest rate
sensitity that measures the rate of dhange of duration in response 1o
changes ininterest rates. Fioed income securiBies with longer durasions tend
tor be more sensitive to changes in inferest rates, uswally making them more
vilatile than secmities with shorter durations. A wide vanety of factors can
calse interest rates or vields of U 5. Trezsury secuities (or vields of other
fypies of bomdk) torise (2., central bank monetary podicies, inflaton rates,
general aoonormc oonditions, e ). This is expecially tnae under cument
condions because interest rates and bond yields are near historically fow
lewids. Thass, the Funds curmently face 3 heighiened livel of risk assodated
with rising inlenest rabes andéor bond vields. Thas could be diiven by a variety
of tactors, Inclding baut nat limted b0 central bank encnetany polndes,
changng inflation or real growth raes, general econamic condifions,
increasing bond rsuances or redsced market demand for low yieldng
investrents. Further, while U5 bond markets have steadly grown over e
past three decades, deaber "market making™ ability has remained relatively
stagnant. Given the importance of intermediary “market making™ in creating
& robust and active mazket, foved income seoutifies afe ourrently
fadngingreased wolatlity and Bquidity nisks. All of these factors, collectively
andior indvideally, could cause a Fund 1o lose value. If the Fund |ostenogh
valse, thee Fand could face increased Unitholder redemptions, which coud
further impair it performance. Also, the Fund may be adversely affected
witven & large Untholder puechases of redeems [arge smounts of umts, which
cam dcur 4t any Sme and may impact tae Fund in the <ame manner a3 a ligh
volume of redemplion requests. Large Unithobder fransachions may impact
thie Fand's Bgundty and net atset value. Sudh ransacions may also indesse
the Fund's trarsaction costs o otheraise cause the Rund to perfcem
differently than intended. Moreower, the Fund is subject 10 the risk that
orifver Linkthoddess muay miake imvestiment dedisions based on the choices of &
large Unitholder
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A Fund may have significant expaosure toissuers in the United Kingdom. The
United Eingacen’s withdrawal from e European Umion my impact Fund
rieharres. This dedision may cause wubstanial volatility in forsign exchange
rarkets, bead toweakness in the exchange rate of the Batish pound, resultin
A sustainisd period of market uncertenty, and deabilize sorme or all of the
other Buropean Urion member countries andfer the Euraaone

Foriign fmon-105.) securities in this report ane dassfied by the oty of
moorpoeation of 3 holdng In certain instances, a security’s ountry-of
incerporation ray be diffrent fiom its countny of stononmac sxpodure

1f a Fundimvests directly in foreign fnon-1 % ) cumenides or in secunities that
trade in, and receive revenues in, fonsgn (non=U 5 ) currendes, of in finanaal
derivalive instruments that provide expodure to foreign {non-U5 ) currendies,
itwill bee subiect to the risdk tat those currendies will deding in value relative
to the base qumendcy of the Fund, or, in the cxse of hedgng posiions, that
the Fund's base umency will dedine in vale refative to the cumency being
hedged Curmency rates in foreign countries may fluchuate sgnifcantly over
short periods of dme for a nurber of reasons, indudng duanges n interest
rates, intenvention or she failure todntervene) by U5 or foreign govemaments,
ceniral banks oF dupranadond entibes wdh 4 the lemational Manetary
Fund, or by the smpostion of crrency oontmals or other politcal develcpments
in the United S2ates or abroad. As a result, 3 Fund's investments im foreign
aerency-denominated secuntied may fduce the Fund's returms

The ket values of eqaties, such 35 comemon St and prefermed Seourities
o equity related investments such as futures snd aplions, hawe histonically
risen and fallen in periodic cpdes and may dedine due 1o general market
condtions which are not spedfically related 1o 3 particular company, such 3
real or perceived adverse economic condifions, changss in the general
gutlook for corporate eamings, changes in interest of cumendy rates, public
health emengendies, sich a5 the spread of Infectious Ainess or diseae, o
adverse investor sentiment generally. They may also dedine due to factors
which afect 3 particular industry o industries, widh 35 lbor shomages o
Incredsed produchon costs snd oompentve condiBond within an indutiny
Different types of equity seourities may react differently to these
disvelopments. Bouity seoxinies and equity relsted imvestmients generally huve
gredter market price wolatlity than Soed incomme tecunties

The: Fumds may IRest i certan irstnaments that mely in sceme fadhion upon
LIBGE. LIBOR is an average nterest rate, detemnined by the CE Benchmark
Administration, that banks charge ane angther for the wse of short-lemm
maney The United Kmgdom's Rrandal Conduct Authority, which negulates
LIBOR, has announced plars to ultimately phase cut the use of LIBOR There
remEns uncertzinty reqanding future utilization of LIBOR and the nature of
any replacernent rate (e g, the Sequred Cvernight Rnanang Rate, whichiis
mntended o replace U5 dotfar LIBOR and measures the cost of geernight
bodrowings throwgh repurchase agresment ransacuons collaterafized with
LS. Tregsury securities). Any potential effecs of te transation sway from
LIBOR cn & Fund of on certain instruments e whidh 3 Fund imests can be
difficuln o ascentain, and they may vary depending on a vasiety of factors. The
Iransithon may aiso reslt in @ reduction in e vaue of certain instruments
held by & Fund or a reduction in the effectivensss of relased Fund transactions
siach a5 hedges, Ay such effects of the ranstion asay from LIBOR, a5 well
a5 other unforeseen effects, could result in fosses to & Fund

Begnning in January 2020, gobal fnandal markets have expemenced and
ey continue bo experience significant wolatility resulting from the spread of a
nowel coronadnus known as COVID-19. The outheeak of COMIC-19 has
resylted in fraved and border restrictions, quarantines, supgly dhain
disruptons, bower consumer demand and general matket uncertanty, The
glatal egoncmy, the economies of cenain nations and indvided issuers have
been and may conftinue 1o be adversely affected by COVID-19, parficulay in

light of the mnterconnectivity beaween economies and finandal markets, 28 of
which may negatively impact the Funds' perfimance. in addition, COVID-19
and govemmiental reiponses o COVID-19 may negatiely ingpact the

capatilines of the Funds' service providers and disrupt the Funds' operations

Crecit and Cownterparty Risks A Fundwall be exposed fo oedit ik 0

par ies with whom it rades andwil also bea e risk of seqdement default
& Fund minimizes concentrations of aedit risk by undertaking ransactions
with a large nuember of oustomers and CoUREpartes on recogized and
reputable mochandges, where applicable. OTC defivalive ransacions are
subject bo the itk that a cunterparty io the ransacBon will not fulfll it
contracudl obligations to the osher party, & mary of the protecions afforded
to centrally deared dernvative transactions might not be avadable for OTC
desivative ransactions. For derivatives raded on an exchange or through a
central couriter party, creditrisk reddes with the credisworthiness of

the Fund's deanmg broker, or the deaninghouse itself. rather than with a
oojnterparty in an OTC derivative rarsaction. Changes in regulation relating
1o @ Fund's wie of derivatives and relased nstruments oould patent aly lmit
of Bmpact the Fund's abality to investin denvatives, limit the Fund’s ablity to
emgloy certain srategees that use defivatives andior adversehy affect the value
o perioemance of Genvativies and the Fund A Fund could bose money if te
issuer or quaranior of 3 Sxed Income sequnty, or the counbeparty e a
finandal derivalive insuments onirad, repundhase ageement of & loan of
portiolio securifes, is unable of unwiling 1o make timely prindpal andfor
interest payments, or to ofhenwise bonor its obligatons. Secunites and
finandal dervative instnuments are sulect 10 vaning degrees of credit rick,
whiich may b reffected in credit ratings

Similar to credit mdk, a Fund may be exporsed b0 counterpanty risk, of the sk
that an instilaion or otheer entity with which a Fund has unsetied o open
ransactions will default. FIMKCO, as the Manager, minimizes counterpaty
fisks bo the Funds through a ember of ways . Prior to enteringinto
transactions with 3 new counterparty, e PIMCD Counterparty Risk
Comnmties condedts an extensive qedi reiew of such counterparty snd mst
appioeee thie uie of sudh counterpaety. Furthenrmore, paruant bo the bemms of
the undetying conract, io the extent that unpaid amounts owed 10 3 Fund
xceid 4 precetermned trethold, sech counterparty shall ddvance collateral
1o a Fund in the Tomm of cash of securitied equal invalue to the unpaid
Armount cwied 10 & Fand A Fund iy invest such collaneral in sequniies of
oithed mistruments andwall typically pay inlenest o the counterparty on the
codl ateral received, If the unpaid amount owed 10 2 Fend whsequently
decréases, 3 Fund would be requined 8o return 1o the counterparty 3l o 3
portion of e collateral previcusly adwanced. FIMKCO's attempts to mirimize
oounberparty risk may, however, be unsuccessful

All frarsactions in Bsted secanties are settled'paid for upon delivery using
approved counterparties, The sk of default is considered minimal, as delivery
of senurities sold is only made once 3 Rand has received payment. Papmentis
made on 3 purchase cnce the seaurities have been delivered by the
colmnterparty. The track will fail if either party fails oo meet it obiganon

[b) Other Rizks In general, each Fund may be subjed to additional risks,
inclisding, but nod mited to, risks related to govemment regutation and
intervendon in firandal markets, operational risks, risks assodated with
finandal, economic and global markes disruptions, and cybersecurity risks
Flease refer to eadh Fund's offening documents for 2 more detaled
desiption of the ks of mvesting in e Fund

Market Disruptions Risk The Funds e subect 1o investment and
operational ks assodated with finandal, economic and other ghobal market
developments and dsupsions, induding those arising from war, termorism,
mruarkel FampULAB0n, QovEmmen [ InEnenmons, deefaults and shundowns,
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political changes or diplomatic developments, public hesith emengendies
{such a5 the spread of infecious diseases, pandemics ard epidemics) and
naturalfemvironmmental disasters, which can Al negatively Inpact the searities
rarkets, nterest rates, auctons, secondary radng, ratings, aedi rsk,
millanon, deflason and afer oo relating 1o te Fund's invesaments of the
Manager's operations and casse 3 Fund 1o lode value. Thets events may have
ackerse bong-ermn effects on the LS, snd world sconormies and markets
genieraly. Thete svenls can atsoimpair the technclogy and other opserational
systems ppon which a Fund's senice providers, nduding PIMCO as the
Furds” investment adviser, rety, and could otherwise disrupt a Fund's senvice
providers’ ability 1o fulfill Eheir obligations t the relevant Furd. For example,
the spread of an infectious respiratory lIness caused by a novel sirain of
coronadrus known a5 COVID-19) has caused valatibty, sewere market
dishcations and liquidty constraints in marmy markeds and may adversely
affect 3 Fund's investments and operations

Gowernment Intervention in Financial Markets Federd, state, and other
guwernments, their requiatony agences, of self-reguFlory crganizations may
take actons that affect the requiation of the instruments kn which a Fund
eneests, or the issuers of such instruments, Inways that ane unforeseesble
Legalation of requbaticn may alsa change the way inowhich  Fund insef is
requlated. Sudh legslation or regulaton coudd limet or predude a Fund's
abality b @chiewe s Enaestment objective. Furemmone, wlatile Bnandal
rarkosts can expotes 3 Fund 1o greater market and liquidity rek and patentia
ditfiqulty in valuing portfolio nstruments hedd by the Fund The value of 3
Furd’s hoddings is 5o generally subgect to the nsk of futere local, national, o
global economic dsturbances based on urknown weaknesses in the markets
inwhidh & Fund invests. In addition, it s not certainm that the U5 Govemment
will intervens in response 10 a future market dsturbance and the effect of any
such future intervention cannod be predicted 16 s difficult for isswers o
prepare for the impact of future finandal downtums, dtfough companies can
Sk 10 10en Oty and manage hulure unoertenbes Mough rigk managenment
[HOgrams

Reglatory Fisk Rnancid entities, sch &5 imvestment companies and

e TmEnT advisers, afe generally subject 10 exiensive govemment regulstion
and intervention, Gowernment regulation andior interventen may change the
way a Fund is regulated, affect the expenses inowved drectly by a Fund and
1w vl o i invesstrveenies, and limit andéor prediede a Fund's atality to
achieve its imvestment objecive, Government regulation may change
freuendy and may have signficant adverse corsequences. Moseover,
gowerniment regqulstion may hane unprediciable and urintended effects

Operational Risk An mvestmentin a Fund, Bke any fund, can invohee
operatcn I'Ifi‘ia'lfn;ﬂ'] from factors such & processing erors, human emors,
nadequate of faled internal of extesmal processes, failues n b and
technckogy, changes in personnel and errors caused by third-party service
providers. The oommenae of any of these failures, emors or breadhes could
resiltin aloss of micemanaon, requiatony scruting, reputabonal damage of
gther evenits, amy of whidh could have 3 matenal adverse effect on a Rund
While 2 Fund seeks o mirimize such events through controls and eversight,
there may 4l be failures that could cause bosses 1o the Fund

Cyber Security Risk AS the use of technology has become mone prevalent in
the course of business, the Funds hiave become potentially more suscepSble
Lo operational and infermation eounty rsks resuliEng from breadhes in cyvber
security. A breach in oyber secunty refers to both infentional and
unintenSional cyber events that may, among other things, cause a Fund o
bose peogristarny information, suffer data comuption andfor destuction of loe
operational capadty, result in the unauthonzed release or other misuse of
confidential information, or ciherwise dampt nomal business operations
Cyber security failures or breachies may resdtin fnandal losses 1o a Fund and
its Unitholders. These Esilres or breaches may also result in disrupions o

busivess operations, potentially resulting in financial losses; interference with
& Fund's abdity to caloul #e its ned asset value, process Unitholder
ransactions of otheryise bransao business with Unitholders, irpediments 1o
trading; volations of spplicable privacy and odher laws; regul stoey fines:
penates, reputational damage; remburterent of ofh er axmpertalion cosls;
additional compliance and oyber security risk management oosks and other
Aderie conGequences In addteon, whasnbal costs may be indurmed in ofder
[0 prévent any oyber incdents.in the future

E.MASTER NETTING ARRAN GEMERTS

Thee: Funds may be subject 1o vatious nedting amrangements {“Master
Agreements ™) with select counterparties. Master Agreements govem the
terms of certain rancactions, and are infended to reduce the countenparty risk
assonated with relevant ransactions by spedfying gedt protection
mechanisms and providing standardization that is intended to improve legal
cemainty. Each fype of Master Agreement govems cerain gypes of
trasactions. Different types of ransicsons may be raded out of different
legal entites of affibates of 4 particulas anganization, feultiag in the need for
mulbple agresments with 4 single counterparty. As the Master Agreements
are specific 1o unique operations of diferent sseel types, they aliow 3 Fund 1o
diose out and net its total expoture 1 3 cunterparty in the event of a default
wath reqpect o all the ansactons governed under J singe Mater
Agreement with & counlerparty, For finandal reporting purposes the
taterments of Assets and Liakilities generally present derivative assets and
lisbelities on 3 gross basis, which reflects the fill risks and exposures prior 1o
netting

Maser Agreements can also help limincounterpary sk by specifying

coll ateral posting amangements &t pre-aranged eposire bevels. Linder monst
Master Agreements, collatera is routinely ramifemed if the total nel exposure
by CeFLEN Aransactions (net of edsting collateral already in place) govemed
under the relevant Master Agreement with 3 counieeparty in 3 given acoount
enceids 3 speafied threshold, which typcally ranges from 2et0 to §250,000
depending on the oounterparty and the type of Master Agresment. Unitsd
Stages Treasury Bl and W05, dollar cash are generally the prefemed forms of
coll Steral, Although other Secuities may b used depanding on the erms
cauined in the applicable Master Agreemnent Sedurities and cash pledged as
collzteral are reflected a5 assets on the Statements of Assets and Uabilifes as
eitfier a component of Ivestments at value (Secuntes) or Deposits wath
cownterparty. Cash collateral received is not bypically held in 2 segregated
acoount and 35 such is reflecied as a liability on the Satements of Assets and
Liabilities a5 Depotits from counterparty. The market value of n]l'l'r'i-'."lJ..lllLiEE-
received s collateral is not reflected a5 3 componient of HAY. The Rund's
e Al exposune RO QoUMErparty risk Can change sulbstanbaly withan & short
peeriond, as it is aflected by each Wansadion sbject to the redevant Mgl
Agreement

Master Repurchase Agreements and Giobal Mater Repurchase Agreermenty
finchvicually and collecively " Master Repo Agreements ™) goverm repurdhase.
fewerse repurchate, and sale-biback rarsactions bebwesn the Funds and
sefect counterparties. Master Repo Agreements mantain provisions for,
afong ofher things., iINRIAGoR, incore payments, ety of defaull and
mantenance of collateral. The market value of transactions under the Master
Repo Agreement, collateral pledped o received, and the net exposire by
countesparty a5 of period end are dsdosed in the Notes 10 Schedule of
Investments

Master Senunifies Fonwand Transadion Agresments (T Master Farward
Agreements”™) goven ertain fonward settling wansactions, such as TBA
seapities, delayed-delivery or sale-buyback ransactions by and
beetwen thee Funds and seled colnterparnes. Thie Master Fonsiand
Agresments maintain provisions for, among other things, initiation snd

SraniRapart | Mag 31, 2027 "
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Notes to Financial Statements

8. FEES AND EXPENSES

Each Fund is subject to the following fees paysble at the idlowing anraa rates Stated a5 3 percentage of the sverage daly net sssets of eadh Fund, or Class, if
applicable, taken separately)

Fres

Fund Managemem Bdvisary Blministra tive Agency Distribution
PIKCT Bermuda Fereign Low Duration Furd 1Z5% - - - -
PIMGD Bermuda US. Law Duration Fund 0ZE% - - — -
PIMCO Eurs Total Return Fund - 0 45%! 0553 002% ik E
PIMCO Real Retwrn Furd - {145%% b} o 002% ik}
PIMGCT Shert-Tarm Strategy

= A a4 - - 010%™ 515

= CRBD - - - - -

& ][aP) - - - - -

* )LD - - - - -

. P 0.4 %" = = 010%™ 0 &7 %"

= B0 0&%™ - - 010%™ (67 %™

. Top B 0 farp Vol i g o s o e aeta vy o ke s o) o U v ool Y e Pl s oeume 1 5% e v o b St 50 S0 o 3 sl STy o ooy £ 557% o v appley 0l e O 500wl
i oy oo vy el 1% gl v o e Vs ot a0 e i e £ ) Rl

. Tor UL e P e i st 0 o i o it i o e et ' e i el 29 por s gl i i e 6 58wl e Vo et vty 8 5% por atveaw sl - 0 ! U
malive o de st mr ot and 8 1S e e e ou o o i P s ver ey & ey 3O 130 el

= T AL vy i oo ol ot @ it o b v vl e et e ot P’ i ol 81 0% o aronrm sl e vl e L S0 i i i ' ot oy 7 3 s e 0 ! £ S
wllpn o we Fons'r 2 avers and 8 I poe aveaw gy pa o i i Vi s s aperny o oy 00 | il

B T B Findl Rtre Vo' o rithect 1. idvicery w22 sy e 20 by acere vl o oo Vollpan. 7% e v sl e B Vrr B0 mallim b Pl e ety 1M o e iy o v et SH0 mdlon vl P 1
i vy g% gl om ol e Voo ey oty i e 2 5] il

= T FAL ) Fpal e Fand & ritbeec 1 o i it S 208 v e ot i ot vl o 2 P Pl 300 % o e i 2 i Pt S0 walom o vk Pl v et vty & 7% e s aplien v o vy 40 il iy
s ovr sty o 59 e v ey e o 1 s el e et i ey ¥ L0SY mdipe

L) T FIAEC Fparl et Fad i salyncs 13 dictbaii v S0 v il i i et o ke o i el 8.07% s amea e gl 0 B S S500 ol 1 it P st it 3V poie v i 0 By o 100 il el 0
s 2o v et 5.7 e e e ot il o Futhfs 0 ity e 4157 e

= T Ul o T v e s ey oA vaneed et ot Tkt FET (Pl ol Ky [l “pendey ar) o e 1t o e Dt 0y et o et oY i i ey 100 o) ol 5 PG, liet i el Bt 8 20 21 e ot e i i
el geslcy e ot e 0 P et oh ol o 7 VPG e o e T v ey 0 o il 8 5 1 ST, et 0 o vl B 5 4 [T ey Tk diid ey i a1 P P e it o el B
AT o Dl o it o e e iy v i g, e i i e 1 P o ey 0 i Ve iy i i o (i o o el B Sl el (T 6 oot 138 M 1 S i i

& T Ul T 1 30 ey i S ey B e e S O it r ik iy by T 0 e il v B it oy 1 SRS ot e ok adand poley o8 i Bolear 0 . ot by Sl B 7 SOV Ul i ey o T
et ey i o v -0 PG i obe o el b T BP0 it o T iy pnly S Meaie TSN 1 st 2t o il B 8.0 [Ty e it P aind ey i  hiarie | PTG e e g sl B
& 0 Sl wer ety Sk el gy v 0% g graaee, sk v sy wiall e F (PR o iy 2 vy F she iy o b ol i o et vl S0 g o T 0 e R 1 ST S

L Tir Eliey & s 0 i i Mg YOG i el ot g FIET (Wil it B Pk iy s e i e plied o Lt Bt 2ty il vl v sty Ytk vl gy vty o B 8 P55 vt e e il B 81 20% 21 i ot ity 1V b
s pwley v o derasn B 5 che o o el b 2% o Cllery st ety & o s s vy &0 erasee 5% | 7% rive che e el e 209 of Clier e amory o e o’ sl v o Brase [ e 2 I e e i il e
S o7 Sl ey o e o gy R 8 T b e e The e il e 1 S0 of ey e s o padaye v e ol Dl i arvilelily 1 Lianag il TNKT 36 il 1 T I BT RN

L The Claee @ salbet 10 2 o agmannr oy v v hatsand' e v ami o' g Clesoarnd) ivemgis £l e Mg wernd i iy viare i o v clowd i vy Barvrwnay iy o b povvipas o ol v sy s @ oo 109 sl s e el e
o B0 o Cle o o F s i sy e o Bovasa O 55580 1, sbat she e wed e 8 2039 00l o miry o vl s p ok v i st 0 W [ %y i rie e sl e A0 o Uiy e iy o i i gy ity 8 et
TR Iy v by Yo el b 1 D09 iy i vt o vy v paley b 0% o it i Dot o vl Bop G T Ul it iy F sl gy vt Vv Ul it vl it i s el idn it iipnieibe S SR i

it

B Ml e 1 ey e S i M 0 g Ll g bl Pt gt Y ety A4 T ) 8N o 8 L i iy 9 i S (YO0 ceiend iy 0 o Bl 4 e P e e B
£ (i o Ly avr o She arcad el e e SR R e s o sl e o CEIN Ui v vy el i iend ki e o derisoem £ 6 1 % o i e wial B 0% S ey v arseey i s puadey e i e
1T, e by for el e 0% S Ul ot i o B s ey e B o it e e oy ol Be O 0% 5l ot et W el prdoy e e he Dans o vt sy 3 Bleeigre wall sl i pgunatledt rife SR o g
FPTar

B el o s o drabanat e T e e ot Yo Sanik o7 Jgpan Chiscond Sovenglr ol S Expocnad b kg sire T i o e v i s v ity ) ot v Tl Tl v oy e o Dok %, e phe i il
I8 T A T I e Sy S et TP et th e sl e 7 5 (R it o D ! Ay A et 505 R Bt b 7 i o i 1S b i ey 0 e | P
P i 2t ool bt SO (T e ity i v iy ity o 2% o it Ay g S d o 5% 6 e ety F e iyt et il iy o e vl it Al ol i gt g St oy
Ay

B (T bt i s et by T wiry P it S Eoiied! Fanh Tyt Fup (e iy it T i oty Sl Ui B¢ vy 110 jovion TR Wby i pely e o Bl 0%, Bivet Sy i wal b ) 50 ol o, ey
b ! el A o el (1% 3, e s e el e 7 308 5l o ey i e gk T o8 deiaenee 5 9% 7%, e vt S ol e 1 7% Yl e T o X v gl e o Bescwe | P R ke o il Be
I O o ey o o i sty G 8 T e, ot 1 Bl B 556 eyt . o gy e e i o e bl b Bl T AT S B S0 O S B

M el o elinc i e vy e S vy ki e Sy Fade il Fimdh Tirgrt St tshe oy s | o o i i it uvitont ey 21 00 piaiin it ek ! gy st i ok (0% shom e S wall e ) 0% i ot ity it
vl gy xaty i itamsen (90 G, e e S el by 1 LSl o it e e sy e i v F 391 S e e oo vl B 0 & e o - o i mvaend! oy s o b |05 Mt 2 dop el B
o 0 o Sl v e o sho e iy e 8 T P oy e shaw it wall e F 1% o e s vy I sk iy oo o el o vkl o S adl ol 0 gt sl v S iy g ey
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- e (o sacr o0 a derabasam o e ey laend i rite Pdsal Fands Targer R (1w psicy T 9 0 vler i 00 e sy oy S vy sk T conand by vt o v i1 %, e e e ol % o i e iy o
by v iy vy o e i e P e e e ol e 2% i gt ity ot ! iy e i Bt 1 PN 147y e ke e e 1.50% 2 e ot e f i o’ i it ot | (Mied % tiee iy e el e
S r Clmy wt moy of th acens podcy vatw 8 5% o e, shon e S il 0 S o ey o ety e ey e i e ey o oo arelaile 3 Bl wal yelir a0 poparale e A © e e ir sy

The rrunagement, advisery and adrministrative fees, if applicable, are puid monihly in amears to PIMCO for providing of amanging for the provision of advsony,
adminishrative and third-party seraces induwding aud, arstodal, rustes, porttoho acoounting, routing legal, transter agent and printing seraces. The agency and
distribution fees, if apgficable. are paid monthly in amears to remburse finandal intermedianies that provide sendces and distibuBion refating 1o the units of the
appdicable Fund {or Class thereof, as applicable) In the case of the PIMCO Bermisda Foreign Low Duration Fund and FIMCO Besmuda U % Losw Duraion Fund, FBMCO
out of its management fee, will bear. the costs assaated with advisory and administrative senices, 0.1% of whidh is designated to cover administrafive spenses, in
exchange for fis fee, FIMCO will bear the costs of certain thind-party senvices required by the Funds, induding awdit, custodial, mstes, portfiolio acoounting. legal,
transfer agent and printing services. FIMKCO, and not Unitholders, woukd benefit from amy peice deease in the oost of such third-party sendces, induding dedreases
regulting from an ingease innet xsets. In additon, with respect to Funds that are subject to an administrative fee, PIMCO generally mates a profit on sudh 2 fee

As noted in the table above, certan Funds and Classes of Funds ane not idect bo man sgemenl, adisory, sdmnismatve, agency of dsmibuteon fees. FIMCOO Japan
Ltd, PIMCO"s afifiate in Japan, is pad a fee from the Japaness wvestment Trusts or osher imeesment vehicles that investin such Funds or Classes and a poriion of
sipch fee is then 2located to PIMCO to compensate it for it senices, 55 applicable

The Funds (or Classes thereof, a5 applicable) may bear otfeer expenses related to their operation that are not oovered by the management, ad,ﬁ:r;.n_ administrative,
agency of dsmbution fees, indudng butnat limited to; {) taxes and geemmental fesees, (i) broker e Tees and commessions and othes pOFTCIG TANSaction expenses;
(i) ooses of boamowang mioniey, induding interésl expende; (n] extraccdnary pensss, indudng oots of inigation and indemnification expences; and () ay Expensss
dllecated of allocade to g speafic Class of wnits, a5 applhcable. PIMICO has paad the onganize tional expenses wsocsted with the areation of each Fund

PEACO has pad the organizationdl expentes ssodated with the aeaton of e Trust Bfurther Funds are laundhed, such costs directly atinbutable to the relevant
Fured muay be bome by the rélevant Fund

10. RELATED PARTY TRARSACTIORS

Thie Imvestrment Adwiser is 3 related party to the Finds and is a magority-temed subadiany of Allianz Asset Management AG Fees paid to the related party, if any, are
disdoded m Note 3, and dooneed relsted pady Tee amounis, if amy, are disdosed on the Statements of Assets and Liablities

Certan Funds aré permitted to purchase o sell securnities from or to centain related affiliated finds under spedfied condBons outlined in procedures adopted by the
Ivestmien Adviser The procedures have been dessgned 1o entsune that amy' purdhase o 3 of Seamites by a fund from of 10 anather fund that is or could be
considered an affilate by virtwe of having a cormmaon adviser (o affiliated investment advisers), is effected a1 the cument market price. During the period ended May
31, 2022, the Fundf) belows engaged in punchiases and sales of sequrities among affliated funds (amounts in thousands)

Fund Purch Bl
FIMCD Bastrrands Fosegs Loy Disrabon Fund 3 S50 3 X8
FIMED Bewrmucds UL Lows Durmen Fund 0 18
PIMCD Emar ging Markegs Bond Fund (M) 14,130 &6 68
FIMCO Euro Togsl Rietom Fund 18 a7
FMCD Faval Resem Fund L1 240
FIMCO Shoi t-Tarm Strakegy 16,277 3014

11. GUARARTEES ARD INDEMRIFCATIONS

Under the Trust's ooganizafionad dooements, certaen parties (ncedng the Trusiee and FIMICO) are mcemnified against certain liabilities that may anse out of
perfomance of their duties to the Funds, Addtionally, in the normal course of business, the Funds enter into contracts that contain a variety of indermification dauses
Thee Funds” masirnuen edqposuse widir e Srandements is unknown as it would imialve fulure daims that may be made ag@nst the Funds that have nod ye1
ooodrred. Howewer, the Funds have nothad prior daims o [osses pursiant (o thess confradts

12. URITS OF BENEFICIAL IHTEREST

The Trust may saue up 1o S00,000.000,000 units. The Fends may have a significant concentration of risk, a5 certain Uinitholders own mone than 1en percent of the net
assets of each regpecive Fund Sudch concentration of Unitholders’ interests could hawe 2 materid effect on the Funds in the event these Unitholders request to
withdraw wibetannal amonte of cagntal an e same t Subricrapions and rederpiaons of units of the Funds ane denominated in the Funds” NAY currency and
comverted 10 the Funds’ funcional qurmency at fe spot rate on the ransaction date. Units of eadh Fund ae fssued withcat par value. The Tristee, with the consent of
the Manager, may in the fubure geate and offer an sddtional Fund or Class or Classes of units

Brven | Bapart | My 30, 25T m
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(U stwere 35 follows (units and amounts in thousands*)
Vour Ended Your Erced Yoar Ended Y Erded
iy 71, 2022 My 71, 202 Wy 71, W22 Ny 31, 1022
Units B pusl Urim Amant Unin Amoar lnin sl
At for unie sakd f B e 1 % m [ 140 N Nk
&) Wi N H# L] L] S0 4311 & ms
Coxt of wri radeamad [Tl {2576 [ (26501 fLrai] 1,334 Y N
|50 L A L] L] R KK ossm 1180594
Mt [decrpers] nessking from
Fund uni? raresction 1.1 (355N [, S | (23 B3 8 (a3 B & (580G
Viewr Eniad Yiuur Enched Yar Enched Yowr Encded
My 31, 2022 My 71, 2022 Moy 31, 1022 Ny 31, M122
Unz Bt Unim hmont Unin Ampur lnin Az
Rmcaipn lor urie skl o TE3 W& L 1 EUR Xl Fe R BT |
} [EAL) [Ty [ 1w # ELTE] [T N& [ N
| D0 He T i el K Ny N N
| INR N Y » 1,33 L N MN'& i
| N Ne [T [ o T3 N T3 N
) (TRY N Ly Fal 2082 [ L] 1} L] MiA
J AR N A 18 575 R R L) M
Cort of wris rackwmad ne ] i L2 [as 0,930 (27 1.1 ]
J EAL) N R 25 (5,654 Ha MK N i
J 00F1 H& L Wy [m Ne N N Nix
J ONR Yk LY 2n 17,630 MR L) N8 Mk
J TRLRY L] L @n (2048 A NA N& Mi%
| (TR i R .35 CEATE LT 1Y N M
J AR N N B (1651 RA MK L] | 1]
M2 [decrmara] rking from
Fund it rarcesfon 1.1 | {33 0EH ¢ M (188 EUR 11,588} (711 ] 413
Yiur Erded
My 31, A2
Unm Ll
Paca i for uniw ssld
AL 18 ¥ 11535
C a0 14 14645
J UPY i 240
J S0 n 185
IFY il 18535
|50 1 JIE6 115,058
Coxt of i recesmed
ALD (e (26,8261
{250 (26045
11E: 1145500
S0 (] 2218
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Yar Erclad

My 31, 222
Unm fapt
IFY L7 T S . |
150 115431 [VES ST
= — Courdt il
Fund unit meneecions LT B =

" 7w Sl My T mal aeetesty Nostding B s phan ek Dviesaned

13. REGULATORY ARD LITIGATION MATTERS

ifraton procesdings and are not aware of ar

et T A Fmi ¢ ]
WIS IO Audust 17
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2023
55,567 8,123,895
15,481 2,263,322
40,086 5,860,573
2,091,656
19.16 2,801
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2023
1,134,745,782.24 1,658 9,983
1,250,000 850,000
150,000 250,000
850,000 150,000
98,819.08
2019 388,027,447
2020 941,473,871.63
2021 1,053,391,472.93
2022 984,456,267.25
2023 1,134,745,782.24
Managing Member
limited liability company
agreement
2023
L

Adam Gubner

Adam Shukovsky

(Alejandro Kersman)

Alessandro Gandolfi

Alfred T. Murata

Andrew Balls

Anna Dragesic

Ashish Tiwari

Ayman Hindy
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Brett Condron

Bryan Tsu

Caleb Pitters

Whitten, Candice Stack

(Cathleen M. Stahl)

Chris Dialynas

Craig A. Dawson

Daniel H. Hyman

Daniel J. lvascyn

David L. Braun

David Fisher

David C. Flattum

David Forgash

David Hammer

Dirk Manelski

Elizabeth Cantrill

(Emmanuel Roman)

Eric M. Sutherland

Erin Browne

Frank Witt

Geraldine Brigliadori-Walsh

Greg E. Sharenow

(Gregory W. Hall)

Harin de Silva

Jamie Weinstein

Jamil Baz

Jason Mandinach
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Jason R. Steiner

Jerome M. Schneider

Jing Yang

John Devir)

J
(John J. Kirkowski)

John W. Murray

John J. Studzinski

Jonathan L. Horne

Joshua Anderson

Joshua Davis

Julie Meggers

Kimberley Korinke

Kristofer Kraus

Lorenzo Pagani

Mangala V. Ananthanarayanan

Marc P. Seidner

Marcellus Fisher

Mark R. Kiesel

Mathieu Pierre Luc Clavel

Michael Chandra

(Michael A. Cudzil)

Mohit Mittal

Nadia Zakir

Nicolas Granger

Patrick Feigley

Peter G. Strelow

Philippe Bodereau
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Pramol Dhawan

Qi Wang

(Rene Martel)

(Richard Clarida)

(Richard Colasuonno

Richard R. LeBrun

Rick Chan

Robert English

Robert Mead

Robert 0. Young

(Robin C. Shanahan)

Russell Gannaway

Ryan P. Blute

(Sachin Gupta)

Sharad Bansal

Sonali Pier

Stephen Chang

Stephen A. Rodosky

Stuart T. Graham

Sudi N. Mariappa

Sung Hee Suh

Thibault Stracke

Tiffany Wilding

Yacov Arnopolin
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BMA

BMA

60

BMA
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2023 342
731,157,658,647

119 440,204,628,546
21 13,805,916,235
18 21,093,259,693
69 174,351,714,176
9 7,776,431,856
31 17,168,419,341
35 17,425,226,423
15 22,616,020,567
4 760,149,304
5 2,339,123,608
16 13,616,768,898
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2021 12 31 2022 12 31

131

23 103

UFJ 2023 31
146.20
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2022 2021 12 31

2022 2021
2(c) 692,286,956 101,212,353 721,198,092 105,439,161
2(d),3 23,611,226 3,451,961 29,741,057 4,348,143
2(e) 760,075,930 111,123,101 993,957,179 145,316,540
2(e) 298,953,809 43,707,047 317,540,465 46,424,416
42,455,591 6,207,007 47,497,769 6,944,174
2(e) 16,419,794 2,400,574 21,577,432 3,154,621
2().,7(c) 31,213,708 4,563,444 32,250,845 4,715,074
6 20,366,756 2,977,620 33,463,658 4,892,387
93,819,191 13,716,366 54,848,716 8,018,882

1,979,202,961 289,359,473  2,252,075,213 329,253,396

2022 12 31
252,958,658 2021 12 31
230,285,768 2(0),4 94,477,969 13,812,679 111,294,054 16,271,191

2(1),9 231,158,864 33,795,426 173,842,283 25,415,742
2().7(c) 1,122,167,785 164,060,930 1,140,825,289 166,788,657

2(h) 30,865,176 4,512,489 30,865,176 4,512,489
2(9).5 26,699,575 3,903,478 32,984,825 4,822,381
2(b) 28,471,674 4,162,559 36,988,617 5,407,736

8 60,321,209 8,818,961 61,620,430 9,008,907

1,594,162,252 233,066,521  1,588,420,674 232,227,103

3,573,365,213 522,425,994  3,840,495,887 561,480,499
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2022 2021
401,344,504 58,676,566 444,187,520 64,940,215
7(c) 254,261,222 37,172,991 301,432,498 44,069,431
57,704,815 8,436,444 81,689,779 11,943,046
2(1),9 31,647,773 4,626,904 31,437,762 4,596,201
6 84,349,623 12,331,915 95,602,945 13,977,151
2(r),7(c) 31,213,708 4,563,444 32,250,845 4,715,074
5,767,625 843,227 10,676,405 1,560,890

866,289,270 126,651,491 997,277,754 145,802,008

2(r),7(c) 1,122,167,785 164,060,930  1,140,825,289 166,788,657

2(1),9 241,298,327 35,277,815 182,746,288 26,717,507
7(c) 144,363,847 21,105,994 138,931,408 20,311,772
3,517,589 514,272 4,046,469 591,594

1,511,347,548 220,959,012  1,466,549,454 214,409,530

2,377,636,818 347,610,503  2,463,827,208 360,211,538

850,000 (103,727,757)  (15,164,998) (6,433,247) (940,541)
150,000 1,289,007,163 188,452,847  1,333,506,696 194,958,679

2022 12 31 90,957
2021 12 31 74,205 74,137,242 10,838,865 69,610,604 10,177,070

2022 12 31 59,004
2021 12 31 102,231 7(a) 24,899,178 3,640,260 32,693,374 4,779,771

2(0) (88,587,431)  (12,951,482)  (52,708,748)  (7,706,019)

1,195,728,395 174,815,491  1,376,668,679 201,268,961

3,573,365,213 522,425,994  3,840,495,887 561,480,499
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2022 2021 12 31
2022 2021
2(e) 3,829,526,077 559,876,712 4,520,575,834 660,908,187
2(e) 1,013,190,320 148,128,425 1,166,893,208 170,599,787
2(e) 1,161,877,051 169,866,425 1,272,072,660 185,977,023
2(e) 289,992,929 42,396,966 350,424,117 51,232,006
2(e) 44,812,438 6,551,578 32,477,418 4,748,199
6,339,398,815 926,820,107 7,342,443,237  1,073,465,201
7 2,096,156,066 306,458,017 2,695,488,619 394,080,436
414,744,909 60,635,706 666,590,135 97,455,478
2(s) 610,193,500 89,210,290 633,462,121 92,612,162
242,700,768 35,482,852 233,154,167 34,087,139
2(t),4,5,9 198,119,507 28,965,072 186,670,745 27,291,263
2(n) 119,548,680 17,478,017 105,285,247 15,392,703
32,998,070 4,824,318 47,627,284 6,963,109
2(0) 51,076,118 7,467,328 41,501,327 6,067,494
3,765,537,618 550,521,600 4,609,779,645 673,949,784
2,573,861,197 376,298,507 2,732,663,592 399,515,417
7(c) (139,931,743) (20,458,021) 126,921,569 18,555,933
2(i).9 (5.,102,108) (745,928) (5,545,277) (810,719)
2(b) (8,516,943) (1,245,177) (1,327,780) (194,121)
2,420,310,403 353,849,381 2,852,712,104 417,066,510
8 99,310,016 14,519,124 107,478,838 15,713,406
2,321,000, 387 339,330,257 2,745,233,266 401,353,103
2(0) (35,878,683) (5,245, 463) (7,967,178) (1,164,801)
2,285,121,704 334,084,793 2,737,266,088 400,188,302
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2022 2021 12 31

2020
12 31
850,000  (103,214,782) (15,090,001) 150,000 1,308,035,518 191,234,793 58,608 43,399,986 6,345,078
1,942,092,906 283,933,983 614,678,821 89,866,044 188,461,539 27,553,077
(1,861,825,611) (272,198,904) (589,207,643) (86,142,157) (171,157,203) (25,023,183)
8,451,432 1,235,599
PINMCO
8,062,808 1,178,783 8,906,282 1,302,098
2021
12 31
850,000 (6,433,247) (940,541) 150,000 1,333,506,696 194,958,679 74,205 69,610,604 10,177,070
1,612,749,721 235,784,009 517,338,542 75,634,895 190,912,124 27,911,353
(1,716,943,889) (251,017,197) (561,838,075) (82,140,727) (196,629,414) (28,747,220)
2,254,594 329,622
PINCO
4,645,064 679,108 10,243,928 1,497,662
2022
12 31

850,000 (103,727,757)  (15,164,998) 150,000 1,289,007,163 188,452,847 90,957 74,137,242 10,838,865
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2022 2021 12 31
2020 12 31
148,726 37,843,422 5,532,708  (44,741,570)  (6,541,218)  1,241,322,574 181,481,360
2,745,233,266 401,353,103
(2,622,190,457)  (383,364,245)
8,451,432 1,235,599
PINCO
11,819,042 1,727,944 11,819,042 1,727,944
(16,969,090)  (2,480,881)
(7,967,178)  (1,164,801) (7.,967,178) (1,164,801)
2021 12 31
102,231 32,693,374 4,779,771 (52,708,748)  (7,706,019)  1,376,668,679 201,268,961
2,321,000, 387 339,330,257
(2,475,411,378)  (361,905,143)
2,254,594 329,622
PINCO
7,094,796 1,037,259 7,094,796 1,037,259
(14,888,992)  (2,176,771)
(35,878,683)  (5,245,463) (35,878,683) (5,245,463)
2022 12 31
59,004 24,899,178 3,640,260  (88,587,431)  (12,951,482)  1,195,728,395 174,815,491
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2022 2021 12 31
2022 2021
2,321,000, 387 339,330,257 2,745,233,266 401,353,103
7,007,233 1,024,457 11,600,078 1,695,931
72,011,201 10,528,038 65,880,266 9,631,695
5,102,108 745,928 5,545,277 810,719
8,516,943 1,245,177 1,327,780 194,121
2,110,095 308,496 1,665 243
1,697 248
517,601 75,673 29,028 4,244
4,206,963 615,058
13,733,834 2,007,887 15,036,589 2,198,349
(8,121,604) (1,187,379) (13,788,912) (2,015,939)
(126,296,902) (18,464,607) (108,645,764) (15,884,011)
(5,102,108) (745,928) (5,545,277) (810,719)
257,625,543 37,664,854 (194,961,547) (28,503,378)
(19,444 ,611) (2,842,802) (18,406, 245) (2.,690,993)
17,730,085 2,592,138 180,065, 741 26,325,611
(16,690, 982) (2,440,222) 63,479,303 9,280,674
2,529,700,520 369,842,216 2,751,058, 211 402,204,710
(144,367) (21,106)
(14,102,890) (2,061,843) (17,229,114) (2.,518,896)
(991,693) (144,986) (4,902,545) (716,752)
(23,500, 150) (3,435,722)
(15,094,583) (2,206,828) (45,776,176) (6,692,477)
579,000,000 84,649,800 337,000,000 49,269,400
(579,000, 000) (84,649,800) (337,000, 000) (49, 269,400)
(2,475,411,378) (361,905,143)  (2,622,190,457)  (383,364,245)
2,254,594 329,622 8,451,432 1,235,599
(34,481,606) (5,041,211) (33,282,796) (4,865,945)
(2,507,638,390) (366,616,733) _ (2,647,021,821) _ (386,994,590)
(35,878,683) (5,245, 463) (7,967,178) (1,164,801)
(28,911,136) (4,226,808) 50,293,036 7,352,842
721,198,092 105,439, 161 670,905,056 98,086,319
692,286,956 101,212,353 721,198,092 105,439, 161
2,547,664 372,468
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2022 2021 12 31
AAM LP
PIMCO
AAM LP 850,000 150,000
AAM LLC
AAM Holding 250,000
PIMCO 2022 12
31 90,957
AAM LP  AAM LLC AAM Holding
PIMCO PIMCO Pl
LLC
P1 LLC PIMCO
PIMCO PIMCO
P1 LLC 1934

FINRA
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PIMCO

PGA

FINMA

PIMCO

AREOA
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1ASB IFRS
IFRS

2023 20

PIMCO

PIMCO
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AAM LP

2022 2021 12 31 4447 323.9

FDIC
FDIC

PIMCO
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PIMCO

18

2022 2021

12
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12

IFRS

PIMCO
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PIMCO
30

2022 2021 12
31

IFRS
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IAS 19

IFRS
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[ J
[}
[ J
2022 2021 12 31 23.6 29.7
2022 2021 12 31
NAV
2022 2021 12 31
2020 12 31 41,331,662 78,708,410 1,071,610 121,111,682
11,894,806 5,334,168 140 17,229,114
(1,665) (1,665)
(15,475,576) (11,569,501) (27,045,077)
2021 12 31 37,749,227 72,473,077 1,071,750 111,294,054
10,150,192 3,952,698 14,102,890
(1,521,360) (588,736) (1,119) (2,111,215)
(16,079,748) (12,728,012) (28,807,760)
2022 12 31 30,298,311 63,109,027 1,070,631 94,477,969
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2020 12

2021 12

2022 12

20

PIMCO

2022
23.6

PIMCO
31

LIBOR 0.2

183

31

31

31

22

PIMCO

2022
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2021 28.8 27.0

13,670,295 21,440,000 155,172 35,265,467
4,902,545 4,902,545
(4,948,015) (2,080,000) (155,172) (7,183,187)
13,624,825 19,360,000 32,984,825

991,693 991,693

(1,697) (1,697)
(5,195, 246) (2,080,000) (7,275,246)
9,419,575 17,280,000 26,699,575

2021 7.3 7.2
AAM LP AAM LLC
2021 24.3
AAM LP AAM LLC
2022 2021 12
23.5 21.5
SOFR 0.2 2021
90 AAM LP PIMCO
2021 PIMCO AAM LP
PIMCO 2022 12 31 2021 12 31
PIMCO 2022 2021
102
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2022 12 31 776.5
2021 10
2022 2021 45.3
55.9
PIMCO
2022 2021
6.3 7.3
PEG
PEG PIMCO
PIMCO
2022
PEG 418.3 2021 400.4
PEG 34.0 2021 41.6
PEG 2022 PEG 66.6 2021
85.8
2022 12 31 15.7 2021 26.2
PEG 60.8 2021 74.1 PEG
AAM LP 2023 11
600.0 SOFR 20 2021
LIBOR 20

AAM LP PIMCO
2022 2021 12 31
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PIMCO PIMCO PIMCO
AAM LP
PIMCO
PIMCO
250,000 2020
2022 2021 12 31 59,004 102,231

90,957 2022 12 31

2022 2021
2022
2021

2020 12 31 148,726 148,726 14,674
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2021 12 31

2022 12 31
2022 12 31

2022 12 31

1.46

20,924 2021

2022 31

2022 12 31
AAM LLC

2021
28

41,017

4.6

AAM LP

59.1
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41,017 (41,017)
(41,017) (41,017) 12,967
(5.478) (5.478) 15,218
102,231 102,231 15,330
38,379 (38,379)
(38,379) (38,379) 13,960
(4,848) (4,848) 16,186
59,004 59,004 16,151
14,516 17,806
24,780 2022
2022 38,379
2022 28
16,752
90,526 431
2021 31 2021
15,597
2022 2021
7.0 11.6
2022 12 31 2025 12 31
401
100
2022 2021 62.2
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AAM LP
1974 201 301
401
2022 2021 12 31
12 12
2022 160.0

2021 112.1
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12 31
2022 2021
50,000 81,038
3,037,815 3,988,116
100,156,227 115,094,758
103,244,042 119,163,912
(3,934,026) (11,685,074)
(3,934,026) (11,685,074)
99,310,016 107,478,838
2022 2021 12 31 16.9 32.8
2022
2021 12 31 52.5 54.8 2022
2021 12 31 146 285
12 31
2022 2021
30,598,714 31,256,186
4,919,604 5,443,382
699,666 312,947
883,439 578,204

2,341,128 1,319,717
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2022 2021 12 31
43.3 40.9
2022 12 31

12 31

2023 39,348,587

2024 22,579,980

2025 34,908,435

2026 34,012,100

2027 29,593,384
171,102,531
331,545,017
(58,598,917)
272,946,100

2021 12 31

12 31

2022 35,796,969

2023 37,499,114

2024 23,189,168

2025 34,006,401

2026 33,302,410
69,700,751
233,494,813
(19,310,763)
214,184,050
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2022 12 31

AAM LP
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2022 12 31 2022 12

PIMCO
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13

2023

2023

2023
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2022 2021
3.3
12 31
2022 2021
2,629,358,116 2,408,685,532
1,057,636 567,143
2023 20
AAM LP  AAM LLC AAM LLC
850,000
AREOA
PIMCO PIMCO

31,548 PIMCO
2023 31
7,862
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition
December 31, 2022 and 2021

Assets
Note 2022 2021
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivaents 2(c) $ 692,286,956 721,198,092
Investments carried at fair value through profit and loss 2(d), 3 23,611,226 29,741,057
Investment advisory and administrative fees receivable:
Pooled funds 2(e) 760,075,930 993,957,179
Private accounts 2(e) 298,953,809 317,540,465
Prepaid expenses 42,455,591 47,497,769
Distribution and servicing fees receivable 2(e) 16,419,794 21,577,432
Interest in non-consolidated deferred compensation trust 2(j), 7(c) 31,213,708 32,250,845
Receivables from affiliates 6 20,366,756 33,463,658
Other current assets 93,819,191 54,848,716
Total current assets 1,979,202,961 2,252,075,213
Noncurrent assets:
Property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation of $252,958,658
and $230,285,768 at December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively 2(f), 4 94,477,969 111,294,054
Right-of-use assets 2(i), 9 231,158,864 173,842,283
Interest in non-consolidated deferred compensation trust 2(j), 7(c) 1,122,167,785 1,140,825,289
Goodwill 2(h) 30,865,176 30,865,176
Intangible assets 2(9), 5 26,699,575 32,984,825
Investments in associates 2(b) 28,471,674 36,988,617
Other noncurrent assets 8 60,321,209 61,620,430
Total noncurrent assets 1,594,162,252 1,588,420,674
Total assets $ 3,573,365,213 3,840,495,887
Liabilities and Capita
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 401,344,504 444,187,520
Accrued compensation 7(c) 254,261,222 301,432,498
Commissions payable 57,704,815 81,689,779
Lease liabilities 2(i), 9 31,647,773 31,437,762
Payables to affiliates 6 84,349,623 95,602,945
Deferred compensation 2(r), 7(c) 31,213,708 32,250,845
Other current liabilities 5,767,625 10,676,405
Total current liabilities 866,289,270 997,277,754
Noncurrent liabilities:
Deferred compensation 2(r), 7(c) 1,122,167,785 1,140,825,289
Lease liabilities 2(i), 9 241,298,327 182,746,288
Other accrued compensation 7(c) 144,363,847 138,931,408
Other noncurrent liabilities 3,517,589 4,046,469
Total noncurrent liabilities 1,511,347,548 1,466,549,454
Tota liabilities 2,377,636,818 2,463,827,208
Capitd:
Class A members (issued and outstanding 850,000 units) (103,727,757) (6,433,247)
Class B members (issued and outstanding 150,000 units) 1,289,007,163 1,333,506,696
Class M members (90,957 unitsissued and outstanding at December 31, 2022
and 74,205 units issued and outstanding at December 31, 2021) 74,137,242 69,610,604
Class M unit option holders (59,004 options issued and outstanding at
December 31, 2022 and 102,231 options issued and outstanding at
December 31, 2021) 7(a) 24,899,178 32,693,374
Cumulative trandation adjustment 2(0) (88,587,431) (52,708,748)
Tota capital 1,195,728,395 1,376,668,679
Total ligbilities and capital $ 3573365213  3,840495887

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income
Y ears ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

Revenues: Note 2022 2021
Investment advisory fees:
Pooled funds 2(e) $ 3,829,526,077 4,520,575,834
Private accounts 2(e) 1,013,190,320 1,166,893,208
Administrative fees - pooled funds 2(e) 1,161,877,051 1,272,072,660
Distribution and servicing fees 2(e) 289,992,929 350,424,117
Other 2(e) 44,812,438 32,477,418
Total revenues 6,339,398,815 7,342,443,237
Expenses:
Compensation and benefits 7 2,096,156,066 2,695,488,619
Commissions 414,744,909 666,590,135
General and administrative 2(s) 610,193,500 633,462,121
Professional fees 242,700,768 233,154,167
Occupancy and equipment 2(t),4,5,9 198,119,507 186,670,745
Marketing and promotional 2(n) 119,548,680 105,285,247
Subadvisory and subadministrative services 32,998,070 47,627,284
Other 2(t) 51,076,118 41,501,327
Total expenses 3,765,537,618 4,609,779,645
Operating income 2,573,861,197 2,732,663,592
Other (loss) income, net 7(c) (139,931,743) 126,921,569
Finance costs 2(i), 9 (5,102,108) (5,545,277)
Equity in loss of associates 2(b) (8,516,943) (1,327,780)
Net income before income taxes 2,420,310,403 2,852,712,104
Income tax expense 8 99,310,016 107,478,838
Net income 2,321,000,387 2,745,233,266

Other comprehensive loss:
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Foreign currency trandation adjustment 2(0) (35,878,683) (7,967,178)

Comprehensive income $ 2,285,121,704 2,737,266,088

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Capital
Y ears ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

Cumulative
Class M unit option
Class A members Class B members ClassM members holders trandation Tota
Units Amounts Units Amounts Units Amounts Options  Amounts adjustment capital

Balances at December 31,
2020 850,000 $ (103,214,782) 150,000 $ 1,308,035518 58,608 43,399,986 148,726 $ 37,843,422 $ (44,741,570)$ 1,241,322,574
Net income 1,942,092,906 614,678,821 188,461,539 - - 2,745,233,266
Distributions (1,861,825,611) (589,207,643) (171,157,203) - - (2,622,190,457)
Contribution 8,451,432 - - - - 8,451,432
PIMCO Class M unit
equity plan:

Compensation expense - - - 11,819,042 - 11,819,042

Reallocation of basis on

vested options 8,062,808 - 8,906,282 (16,969,090) - -
Other comprehensive loss - - - - (7,967,178) (7,967,178)
Balances at December 31,
2021 850,000 (6,433,247) 150,000 1,333,506,696 74,205 69,610,604 102,231 32,693,374 (52,708,748) 1,376,668,679
Net income 1,612,749,721 517,338,542 190,912,124 - - 2,321,000,387
Distributions (1,716,943,889) (561,838,075) (196,629,414) - - (2/475,411,378)
Contribution 2,254,594 - - - - 2,254,594
PIMCO Class M unit
equity plan:

Compensation expense - - - 7,094,796 - 7,094,796

Reallocation of basis on

vested options 4,645,064 - 10,243,928 (14,888,992) - -
Other comprehensive loss - - - - (35,878,683) (35,878,683)
Balances at December 31,
2022 850,000 $ (103,727,757) 150,000 $ 1,289,007,163 90,957 ¢ 74,137,242 59,004 $ 24,899,178 $ (88,587,431)$ 1,195,728,395

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Y ears ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

2022 2021
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income $  2,321,000,387 2,745,233,266
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Equity compensation 7,007,233 11,600,078
Depreciation and amortization 72,011,201 65,880,266
Finance costs 5,102,108 5,545,277
Equity inloss of associates 8,516,943 1,327,780
Net loss on disposal of property and equipment 2,110,095 1,665
Net loss on disposal of intangible assets 1,697 -
Unrealized and realized net loss on investments carried at fair value
through profit and loss 517,601 29,028
Contingent consideration fair value adjustments - 4,206,963
Proceeds from sale of investments carried at fair value through profit and loss 13,733,834 15,036,589
Purchases of investments carried at fair value through profit and loss (8,121,604) (13,788,912)
Income taxes paid (126,296,902) (108,645,764)
Interest paid (5,102,108) (5,545,277)
Change in operating assets, liabilities, and income tax expense:
Fees receivable 257,625,543 (194,961,547)
Recelvables from affiliates, prepaid expenses, and other assets (19,444,611) (18,406,245)
Accounts payable and accrued expenses, commissions payable, accrued
compensation, and income tax expense 17,730,085 180,065,741
Other liabilities and payables to affiliates (16,690,982) 63,479,303
Net cash provided by operating activities 2,529,700,520 2,751,058,211
Cash flows from investing activities:
Payment for business acquisition, net of cash acquired - (144,367)
Purchases of property and equipment (14,102,890) (17,229,114)
Purchases of intangible assets (991,693) (4,902,545)
Purchases of investments in associates - (23,500,150)
Net cash used in investing activities (15,094,583) (45,776,176)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from short-term borrowings from affiliates 579,000,000 337,000,000
Repayment of short-term borrowings from affiliates (579,000,000) (337,000,000)
Distributions paid (2,475,411,378) (2,622,190,457)
Contribution received 2,254,594 8,451,432
Principal elements of lease payments (34,481,606) (33,282,796)
Net cash used in financing activities (2,507,638,390) (2,647,021,821)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (35,878,683) (7,967,178)
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (28,911,136) 50,293,036
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 721,198,092 670,905,056
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period $ 692,286,956 721,198,092
Supplemental disclosure of noncash activities:
Assets acquired and liabilities assumed through acquisition, net $ - 2,547,664

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2022 and 2021

(D) Organization and Business

Pacific Investment Management Company LLC (PIMCO or the Company), a Delaware limited liability company
and subsidiary of Allianz Asset Management of AmericaL P. (AAM LP), the Managing Member, is a registered
investment adviser, headquartered in Newport Beach, California. The Company manages a variety of
predominately fixed income portfolios for a wide range of investors located throughout the world. Investors
include public and private pensions and retirement plans, educational institutions, foundations, endowments,
corporations, financial advisers, individuals, and others through the use of private accounts and pooled funds.

Capitalization

AAM LP owns al 850,000 Class A units of the Company. There are atotal of 150,000 Class B units, which are
owned by Allianz Asset Management of AmericaLLC (AAM LLC) and Allianz Asset Management U.S. Holding
I LLC (AAM Holding I1). The Company has authorized 250,000 Class M units for issuance and options on Class
M units have been granted to certain employees of PIMCO. As of December 31, 2022, 90,957 Class M units have
been issued and are outstanding. Class B units have priority over Class A and M units with respect to income and
distributions.

AAM LP, AAM LLC, and AAM Holding Il are indirectly wholly owned by Allianz SE. Allianz SE is a global
financial services provider predominantly in the insurance and asset management business.

Consolidation
The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly owned
subsidiaries. All significant intercompany transactions have been eliminated in the accompanying consolidated
financial statements.
PIMCO, as the primary investment adviser, has several wholly owned subsidiaries including PIMCO Investments
LLC (PI LLC) aswell asinternational subsidiaries that are included in these consolidated financial statements as
follows:
Pl LLC is a registered broker/dealer with the Securities and Exchange Commission that is the primary
distributor and provides shareholder services to ingtitutional and retail mutual funds (PIMCO Mutua Funds)
and exchange-traded funds that are managed and advised by PIMCO (collectively, PIMCO Funds). Pl LLC
is a member of the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority (FINRA) that is subject to the Uniform Net
Capital requirements under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, which requires maintenance of certain
minimum net capital levels.
StocksPLUS Management, Inc. isthe general partner of StocksPLUS L P.
PIMCO Europe Ltd (PIMCO Europe) is aregistered investment adviser in the United Kingdom.
PIMCO Japan Ltd is aregistered investment adviser in Japan.
PIMCO Australia Pty Limited is aregistered investment adviser in Australia

PIMCO Australia Management Limited is aregistered responsible entity in Australia.

(Continued)
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2022 and 2021

PIMCO AsiaPte Ltd is aregistered investment adviser in Singapore.
PIMCO AsiaLimited is aregistered investment adviser in Hong Kong.

PIMCO Global Advisors (Resources) LLC provides certain global payroll services to PIMCO and its
subsidiaries.

PIMCO Canada Corp is aregistered investment adviser in Canada.
PIMCO Globa Holdings LLC isthe holding company for PIMCO Canada Corp.

PGA Global Services LLC is a holding company, with branches in the United Kingdom, Hong Kong, and
Ireland.

PIMCO Global Advisors LLC isaholding company, with abranch in Argentina.

PIMCO (Schweiz) GmbH provides certain services to PIMCO Europe in Switzerland and is a registered
distributor with Swiss Financial Market Supervisory Authority (FINMA).

PIMCO Latin America Administradora de Carteiras Ltda. is aregistered investment adviser in Brazil.
PIMCO Globa Advisors (Ireland) Limited provides management services to certain international funds.

PIMCO Global Advisors (Luxembourg) S.A. administers and manages investment funds under the laws of
L uxembourg.

PIMCO Taiwan Limited is aregistered investment advisor in Taiwan.
PIMCO Investment Management (Shanghai) Limited is an investment advisor in China.
Gurtin Fixed income Management LLC (Gurtin) is aregistered investment advisor in the U.S.

PIMCO Aurora LLC provides avariety of transaction-related and other services to certain PIMCO sponsored
private accounts.

Allianz Real Estate of AmericaLLC (AREOA) isareal estate investment and asset manager.

Third-party assets managed in an agency or fiduciary capacity are not assets of the Company and are not
presented in these consolidated financia statements.

(20 Significant Accounting Policies

(@) Basisof Preparation

These consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS), which are in compliance with standards and interpretations approved by either the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) or the IFRS Interpretations Committee or their predecessors. The accounting

policies have been applied consistently to all periods presented in the consolidated financial statements. These
consolidated financial statements are presented in U.S. dollars.

(Continued)
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2022 and 2021

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis as well as a going-concern basis
using the historical cost convention modified for certain financial assets that have been measured at fair value.
After reviewing the Company’s current plans and forecasts, the Managing Member considers that the Company
has adequate resources to continue operating for the foreseeable future.

These consolidated financial statements were authorized for issuance by the Managing Member on April 20, 2023.
(b) Basisof Consolidation

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Company. Control exists when the Company has the power to govern
the financial and operating policies of the other entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. Management
must make judgments when it assesses these various elements and al related facts and circumstances to determine
whether control exists.

Investments are classified as associates when it is determined that PIMCO does not control these entities;
however, the Company has significant influence. The Company accounts for investments in associates under the
equity method of accounting. An investment in an associate is recorded at its initial cost and adjusted thereafter
for the post acquisition change in PIMCO'’s share of net assets of the investee. The equity income or loss
primarily represents the Company’s proportionate share of the unrealized and realized gains and losses from
changes in fair value of the investments held by these associates.

In evaluating its involvement with, and exposure to, interests in structured entities, as well as the requirement as
to whether or not any identified interest in a structured entity should be consolidated, the Company considers
factors including the nature of the Company’s investment (if any), the nature of the fees earned by the Company
from the structured entities, powers held by other entities associated with the structured entities, including the
power to direct or control operations, and the rights and restrictions of the investors in the structured entities.

A structured entity is an entity that has been designed so that voting and similar rights are not the dominant factor
in deciding who controls the entity, for example, when any voting rights relate to administrative tasks only, and
key activities are directed by contractual agreement. Structured entities often have restricted activities and a
narrow and well defined objective.

(c) Cashand Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all liquid financia instruments with an original maturity of three months or less to be
cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents may include cash on deposit with financial institutions, nonaffiliated
money market accounts, and cash deposited into a cash pool, through AAM LP, administered by Allianz SE.
There was $444.7 million and $323.9 million invested in nonaffiliated money market accounts at December 31,
2022 and 2021, respectively. Management considers investments in money market accounts to be cash
equivalents for purposes of the consolidated statements of cash flows. These investments are carried at amortized
cost, which approximates fair value. The Company maintains its remaining cash and cash equivalents in various
federally insured banking institutions. The account balances at each institution generally exceed the Federal
Deposit Insurance Corporation’s (FDIC) insurance coverage (or similar federal foreign programs), and as a resullt,
thereis a concentration of credit risk related to amounts in excess of FDIC insurance coverage.

(Continued)
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2022 and 2021

(d) Investments Carried at Fair Value through Profit and Loss

Investments carried at fair value through profit and loss represent financial assets in the held for trading business
model. Investments held for trading consist primarily of investments in PIMCO pooled funds with a short-to-
moderate term duration objective. Investments held for trading are measured at fair value. Changes in fair value
are recognized directly in other (loss) income, net in the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive
income. Transactions in these investments are recorded on a trade-date basis.

(e) Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue as it transfers services to customers at an amount that the Company expects to
be entitled to in exchange for those services.

Investment Advisory and Administrative Fees

Investment advisory and administrative fees are recognized as the services are performed. These feesare earned in
exchange for investment advisory services and, in many cases, providing or procuring administrative services for
the customer including audit, custodial, portfolio accounting, legal, transfer agency, and printing costs. The
performance obligation is considered a series of distinct services performed each day that are substantially the
same. Such fees are primarily based on percentages of the fair value of the assets under management and
recognized for services provided during the period, which are distinct from services provided in other periods. As
the investment advisory and administrative fees are primarily based on a percentage of assets under management,
the consideration for this revenue is variable and deemed constrained due to the dependence on unpredictable
asset values. Revenue is recognized once the constraint is removed which is generally once these values can be
determined.

Private accounts and pooled funds may also generate a fee based on investment performance. The Company may
also receive carried interest from certain alternative investment products that exceed performance hurdles. Such
fees are recognized when it is highly probable that significant reversal will not occur.

Distribution and Servicing Fees

Distribution and servicing fees are ongoing fees that the Company receives for completing the performance
obligation of distribution and servicing activities on behaf of PIMCO Mutual Funds. For distribution and
servicing fee revenue, the performance obligation is considered a series of distinct services performed each day
that are substantially the same. This revenue is earned ratably over time to match the delivery of the performance
obligation each day over the life of the contract. As the distribution and servicing revenue amounts are based on
percentages of the average daily net assets of the PIMCO Mutual Funds, the consideration for this revenue is
variable and deemed constrained due to dependence of unpredictable asset values. The constraint is removed
once these values can be determined.

Contract assets and liabilities

Receivables related to investment advisory and administration revenue are included in investment advisory and
administrative fees receivable in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition. Receivables
related to distribution and servicing fees revenue are included in distribution and servicing fees receivable in the
accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition. There was no impairment of any receivables
recognized during the year related to revenue from contracts with customers. There are no contract liabilities
related to these contracts.

(Continued)
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2022 and 2021

() Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and amortization. Office equipment,
furniture, and fixtures are depreciated on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives, generally three to
five years. Leasehold improvements are amortized on a straight-line basis over the remaining terms of the related
leases or the useful lives of such improvements, whichever is shorter.

The assets useful economic lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial period-end and adjusted if
appropriate. An item of property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal of the asset, calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item, is included in the
consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income in the year the item is sold or retired.

(g) Intangible assets

Intangible assets consist of computer software and assets acquired in a business combination which include
customer relationships and developed technology. Computer software is amortized on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives, generally three to five years. The fair values of the acquired assets were determined
using the multi-period excess earnings method for the customer relationships and the replacement cost method for
the developed technology. The intangible assets are amortized over their estimated useful lives, which range from
18 months to three years, using the straight-line method. Certain contracts to manage funds without a specified
termination date are classified as indefinite-lived intangible assets.

(h) Goodwill

On an annual basis, management assesses certain qualitative factors to determine whether it is more likely than
not that the fair value of the Company’s reporting unit is less than its carrying amount. This assessment is
performed as of September 30th or sooner if events or circumstances exist that indicate that it is more likely than
not that a goodwill impairment exists. No impairment charges have been recorded during 2022 or 2021.

(i) Leases

The Company’s leases consist of leases for real estate for corporate offices and other facilities. The Company has
measured the lease liability using its estimated incremental borrowing rate and the index or market rate of variable
lease payments at commencement date. Any subsequent changes to the index or market rate result in a
remeasurement of the lease liability and adjusted against the right-of-use asset. The portion of lease liabilities that
is expected to be extinguished over the next 12 months has been classified as a current liability in the
accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition.

Certain leases contain an option for the Company to extend the term of the lease. The Company has included
options to extend the lease term to the extent we are reasonably certain to exercise the options after considering all
factors that create an economic incentive for the Company, including significant leasehold improvements.

The Company recognizes the finance cost of lease payments in the accompanying consolidated statements of
income and comprehensive income on a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability
each period. The right-of-use asset is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the asset’s useful life
and the lease term and is included in occupancy and equipment in the accompanying consolidated statements of
income and comprehensive income.

(Continued)
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2022 and 2021

The Company has elected not to recognize right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for leases of low value assets
and short-term leases that have alease term of 12 months or less. Lease payments associated with these leases are
recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

(i) Interest in Non-consolidated Deferred Compensation Trust

The Company elected the fair value option under IFRS 9 Financial Instruments for the interest in the non-
consolidated deferred compensation trust.

(K Income Taxes

The Company is not subject to U.S. federal income tax as it is organized as a limited liability company and is
taxed as a partnership. Ultimately, the members of PIMCO are responsible for taxes on their proportionate share
of the Company’s taxable income. The Company is subject to state taxes in certain jurisdictions in the United
States.

Certain consolidated entities are subject to federal, foreign, state, and local income tax, and file separate tax
returns and account for income taxes under the asset and liability method. This method gives recognition to
deferred tax assets and liabilities based on the expected future tax consequences of events that have been
recognized in the consolidated financial statements or tax returns. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized
for al taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilized. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are measured on an undiscounted basis.

() Distributions

Although there is no contractual requirement, PIMCO generally distributes its operating income (as defined in the
Company’s Limited Liability Company Agreement) for each calendar quarter no later than 30 days after the end
of such quarter. At the Company’s discretion, distributions can be reduced in an amount reasonably necessary or
appropriate for the Company to conduct its business in the normal course.

(m) Share-Based Compensation Plans

The Company accounts for share-based payment arrangements by determining the value of employee services
received in exchange for an award of equity instruments based on the grant date fair value of the share-based
award. The cost of employee services is recognized as an expense, with a corresponding increase to capital, over
the period during which an employee provides service in exchange for the share-based payment award. As the
Company’s equity instruments have no publicly traded market price, fair value is determined by the Company’s
management based in part on a comprehensive analysis of trading values of comparable public entities, discounted
cash flows, market transactions of comparable entities, and consideration as to the Company’s historical and
forecasted financial performance.

(n) Marketing and Promotional
The Company incurs marketing expenses to promote its products to retail and institutional investors by creating

marketing materials and supporting third party intermediaries. The Company expenses marketing and
promotional fees asincurred.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2022 and 2021

(o) Foreign Currency Trandation

The assets and liabilities of foreign subsidiaries have been translated into U.S. dollars at the current rate of
exchange existing at year-end. Revenues and expenses are translated primarily at the exchange rate on the date on
which the transactions are recognized. The effects of translating the results of operations of subsidiaries with a
functional currency other than the U.S. dollar are included in other comprehensive income or loss. The cumulative
trandation adjustment of translating the balance sheet of subsidiaries with a functional currency other than the
U.S. dollar is included as a component of capital in the consolidated statements of financia condition as of
December 31, 2022 and 2021.

(p) Useof Estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make
estimates and assumptions about future events. These estimates and the underlying assumptions affect the
amounts of assets and liabilities reported, disclosures about contingent assets and liahilities, reported amounts of
revenues and expenses, and the accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements. These estimates and
assumptions are based on management’s best judgment. Management evaluates its estimates and assumptions on
an ongoing basis using historical experience and other known factors, including the current economic
environment, which management believes to be reasonable under the circumstances. Management adjusts such
estimates and assumptions when facts and circumstances dictate. As future events and their effects cannot be
determined with precision, actual results could differ significantly from these estimates. Changes in those
estimates resulting from continuing changes in the economic environment will be reflected in the financial
statements in future periods as they occur. Management believes that the significant areas where judgment is
necessarily applied are those which relate to the:

Measurement of share-based payment arrangements, which includes estimates of fair value of the Company’
s membership units. These estimates can be particularly sensitive to assumptions in regards to the Company’
sfuture earnings; and

Assessment of provisions.

Critical judgments have been made by management in applying accounting policies. Those that have the most
significant effect on amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements include the following:

Evaluation of the measurement criteria associated with the recognition of revenues associated with
performance fees (as discussed in note 2(€)).

Evaluation of control associated over entities (as discussed in note 2(b)), and the impact to consolidation of
such entities.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2022 and 2021

(@) Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past
event and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. The amount
recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the obligation at the reporting date. If the effect is material,
provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risk specific to the liability. Future events that
may affect the amount required to settle an obligation are reflected in the amount of a provision where there is
sufficient objective evidence that they will occur. Where some or al of the expenditure is expected to be
reimbursed by insurance or some other party, and it is virtually certain, the reimbursement is recognized as a
separate asset on the consolidated statements of financial condition, and the amount is recorded in the
consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no longer probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed.

(r) Défared Compensation

The Company accounts for its deferred compensation liability in accordance with IAS 19 and adjusts the carrying
value of the liability for changes in the fair value of the interest in the non-consolidated deferred compensation
trust in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition and compensation and benefits in the
accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.

() General and administrative

General and administrative expenses are mainly comprised of costs related to performance obligations under the
administrative fees contracts that do not meet the criteria as costs to obtain or fulfill a contract. The Company is
considered the principal in these arrangements and recognizes these costs on a gross basis.

() Reclassifications

Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to current year presentation.

(3) Fair Vdue of Financia Instruments

IFRS 7 requires that financial instruments carried at fair value in the consolidated statements of financial

condition are classified into a three-level hierarchy depending on the valuation techniques used and whether the
inputs to those valuation techniques are observable in the market.

Level 1 - Financia instruments for which the fair value is determined by using quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities are classified into this category. A financial instrument is
regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily available and those prices represent actual
and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis.

Level 2 - Financial instruments for which the fair value is determined by using valuation techniques, with
any significant input being based on observable market data (observable inputs), are classified into this
category.

Level 3 - Financial instruments for which the fair value is determined by using valuation techniques, with at

least one significant input not being based on observable market data (nonobservable inputs), are classified
into this category.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2022 and 2021

The Company has evaluated its investments carried at fair value through profit and loss totaling $23.6 million and
$29.7 million as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively, and determined that based on the unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets used to determine fair value that the investments are classified as Level 1
instruments.

The underlying investments of the non-consolidated deferred compensation trust consist of mutual funds and
equity securities which are classified as Level 1 instruments, and investment partnerships which are measured at
net asset value (NAV) of the respective investment partnership at December 31, 2022 and 2021.

There have been no changes to the Company’s valuation policies during the year ended December 31, 2022 or
2021.

The fair value of investment advisory fees and administrative fees receivable, distribution and servicing fees
receivable, receivables from affiliates, and payables to affiliates has been deemed to approximate their carrying
value through reference to their short maturity as well as low credit risk. The fair value of short-term borrowings
from affiliates is based upon the Company’s comparison to current market rates available to the Company for
comparable debt. It isthe Company’s intention to hold such instruments until maturity or collection.

(4) Property and Equipment

The major classifications of property and equipment are as follows:

Office
equipment,
furniture, and Leasehold
fixtures improvements Art Tota
Carrying amount as of
December 31, 2020 $ 41,331,662 78,708,410 1,071,610 121,111,682
Additions 11,894,806 5,334,168 140 17,229,114
Disposals (1,665) - - (1,665)
Depreciation and amortization (15,475,576) (11,569,501) - (27,045,077)
Carrying amount as of
December 31, 2021 37,749,227 72,473,077 1,071,750 111,294,054
Additions 10,150,192 3,952,698 - 14,102,890
Disposals (1,521,360) (588,736) (1,119) (2,111,215)
Depreciation and amortization (16,079,748) (12,728,012) - (28,807,760)
Carrying amount as of
December 31, 2022 $ 30,298,311 63,109,027 1,070,631 94,477,969

The Company recorded depreciation and amortization expense of $28.8 million and $27.0 million during 2022
and 2021, respectively, which is included in occupancy and equipment in the accompanying consolidated
statements of income and comprehensive income.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2022 and 2021

(5) Intangible Assets

The major classifications of intangible assets are as follows:;

Computer Customer Developed
Software Relationships Technology Tota
Carrying amount as of
December 31, 2020 $ 13,670,295 21,440,000 155,172 35,265,467
Additions 4,902,545 - - 4,902,545
Disposals - - - -
Amortization (4,948,015) (2,080,000) (155,172) (7,183,187)
Carrying amount as of
December 31, 2021 13,624,825 19,360,000 - 32,984,825
Additions 991,693 - - 991,693
Disposals (1,697) - - (1,697)
Amortization (5,195,246) (2,080,000) - (7,275,246)
Carrying amount as of
December 31, 2022 $ 9,419,575 17,280,000 - 26,699,575

The Company recorded amortization expense of $7.3 million and $7.2 million during 2022 and 2021,
respectively, which is included in occupancy and equipment in the accompanying consolidated statements of
income and comprehensive income.

(6) Related-Party Transactions

PIMCO and its subsidiaries reimburse AAM LP and AAM LLC for certain overhead, administrative services, and
occupancy costs, including short-term lease costs, that are allocated based on time and usage factors. These
expenses generally consist of rental costs and salaries and related benefits for legal, internal audit, and other
general and administrative services. The amount charged for such services totaled $24.3 million and $23.6 million
during 2022 and 2021, respectively, which is a component of general and administrative and occupancy and
equipment in the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income. The payable to affiliates includes
a liability to be paid to AAM LP and AAM LLC in connection with these services, as well as payables to other
affiliates in connection with services they have provided to PIMCO and for expenses that have been paid on
behalf of PIMCO over the ordinary course of business, totaling $23.5 million and $21.5 million as of December
31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

From time to time, short-term interest-bearing advances are granted between AAM LP and PIMCO for generally
less than 90 days, at a rate of overnight SOFR plus 0.2% (2021: LIBOR plus 0.2%) to cover short-term operating
cash needs. During 2022 and 2021, PIMCO borrowed and fully repaid several of these short-term cash loans from
AAM LP to cover its operating cash needs. At December 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021, PIMCO had no
outstanding short-term loans. During 2022 and 2021, PIMCO incurred $183 thousand and $102 thousand,
respectively, in interest expense on loans, which is included in finance costs in the consolidated statements of
income and comprehensive income.

(Continued)
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2022 and 2021

The Company earns investment advisory fees, administrative fees, and distribution and servicing fees from
affiliated fund complexes, which comprise substantially all of the amounts included in the consolidated statements
of income and comprehensive income as investment advisory fees - pooled funds, administrative fees - pooled
funds, and distribution and servicing fees, respectively. As of December 31, 2022, the Company had $776.5
million (2021: $1.0 billion) in related receivables from affiliated fund complexes.

The Company manages private accounts for certain affiliated subsidiaries of Allianz SE. Investment advisory fees
earned on these accounts totaled $45.3 million and $55.9 million during 2022 and 2021, respectively, which are
included in investment advisory fees - private accounts in the accompanying consolidated statements of income
and comprehensive income.

Allianz Life Insurance of North America, an indirectly wholly owned subsidiary of Allianz SE, provides certain
services on behalf of the Company to certain variable annuity and/or variable life insurance contracts invested in
PIMCO Funds. The total fees paid for these services by the Company were $6.3 million and $7.3 million during
2022 and 2021, respectively, and are included in general and administrative expenses and marketing and
promotional expenses in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.

For certain advisory contracts with institutional clients, the Company shares the responsibility of fulfilling such
service contracts with PEG and its branches, a wholly owned subsidiary of Allianz Asset Management GmbH,
who in turn, is a wholly owned subsidiary of Allianz SE. PEG, together with al of the PIMCO subsidiaries, are
subject to PIMCO' s Global Transfer Pricing Policy (Transfer Pricing Policy) for shared management services that
are provided by al entities. Shared management services provided include portfolio management, account
management, and business management and administration. Revenues earned from third parties for shared
management services are allocated in accordance with the Transfer Pricing Policy. In 2022, the revenue earned
from third parties for shared management services allocated to PEG was $418.3 million (2021: $400.4 million)
and the revenue allocated from PEG was $34.0 million (2021: $41.6 million) and are presented within investment
advisory fees - pooled funds and investment advisory fees - private accounts in the accompanying consolidated
statements of income and comprehensive income. In addition, costs for performing other shared services are
allocated to PEG based on headcount and estimated time and usage factors. During 2022, costs allocated to PEG
were $66.6 million (2021: $85.8 million) and are included as a reduction of compensation and benefits and
general and administrative in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.
As of December 31, 2022, the Company had a $15.7 million (2021: $26.2 million) receivable from PEG and a
$60.8 million (2021: $74.1 million) payable to PEG, which are included within receivables from affiliates and
payablesto affiliates, respectively, in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition.

AAM LP has a $600.0 million revolving credit facility with Allianz SE to cover short-term operating cash needs,
which expires in November 2023. The facility permits short-term borrowings at a floating rate of interest of SOFR
plus 20bps (2021: LIBOR plus 20bps). To the extent necessary, AAM LP could draw on this revolving credit
facility on behalf of its subsidiaries, including PIMCO. There were no amounts outstanding under this agreement
at December 31, 2022 and 2021.

Managing Directors and certain other executive officers are considered to be key members of management.
Management believes that these individuals provide significant contributions to the Company. In return for their
service, they receive remuneration, which management believes to be in line with its select group of peers. In
addition to an annual base salary, key management participates in certain benefit plans, some of which are
discussed in note 7. Total compensation of key members of management comprises the majority of compensation
and benefits included in the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2022 and 2021

(7) Benefit Plans
(@) ClassM Unit Equity Participation Plan

PIMCO has established a Class M Unit Equity Participation Plan (the M Unit Plan) for certain individuals
providing services to PIMCO and certain of its affiliates. Participants in the M Unit Plan are granted options to
acquire M units, which vest in one third increments on the third, fourth, and fifth anniversary of the option grant
date. M unit options are converted to M units based on the appreciation of fair value of the M unit over the related
vesting period. At the exercise date, vested options will be automatically exercised in a cashless transaction unless
the participant has elected to defer the receipt of M units through the M Unit Deferral Plan. As disclosed in note 7
(©), participants can defer their M units into the AAM LP Executive Deferred Compensation Plan. If, at the time
of vesting, the PIMCO Class M unit estimated fair value is less than the exercise price of the option award, no
Class M units will be issued. Class M units are nonvoting units of PIMCO and entitle the holder to receive
quarterly distributions in accordance with the Company’s Second Amended and Restated Limited Liability
Company Agreement. Those participants electing to defer the receipt of M units through the M Unit Deferral Plan
continue to receive quarterly distributions.

A maximum of 250,000 M units were originally authorized for issuance under the M Unit Plan. During 2020, the
M Unit Plan was amended to stop the granting of options to acquire M units and resulting in no M units being
issued, except pursuant to the exercise of options that were outstanding prior to the plan amendment. As of
December 31, 2022 and 2021, 59,004 and 102,231 M unit options, respectively, were outstanding and 90,957 M
units have been issued from the exercise of options as of December 31, 2022.

The fair value of each option grant is estimated on the date of grant using the Black Scholes option pricing model.
The model requires management to develop estimates regarding certain input variables. A third-party valuation
was completed to assist management in determining the fair value of a Class M unit. The dividend yield was
estimated based upon the historical Operating Profit Available for Distribution to M unit holders. Expected
volatilities are based on the average historical and implied volatility of a select group of peers using the Merton
Method. The expected life was calculated based upon treating the three vesting tranches (one third in years 3, 4,
and 5) as separate options.

No M unit options were granted during 2022 or 2021. A summary of the activity in 2022 and 2021 related to the

number and weighted average exercise price of the M unit options outstanding and exercisable is as follows:

(Continued)

294/349



EDINETO O OO
O0o000000000000000000000000000000000(EL5034)
00O0000000000000000
PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2022 and 2021

Weighted
average
Number of options grant date
Vested Nonvested Tota fair vaue
Outstanding at
December 31, 2020 - 148,726 148,726 $ 14,674
Changes during the year:
Granted - - - -
Vested 41,017 (41,017) - -
Exercised (41,017) - (41,017) 12,967
Forfeited - (5,478) (5,478) 15,218
Outstanding at
December 31, 2021 - 102,231 102,231 $ 15,330
Changes during the year:
Granted - - - -
Vested 38,379 (38,379) - -
Exercised (38,379) - (38,379) 13,960
Forfeited - (4,848) (4,848) 16,186
Outstanding at
December 31, 2022 - 59,004 59,004 $ 16,151
Exercisable as of
December 31, 2022 - - - 3% -

The M unit options outstanding as of December 31, 2022 have an exercise price between $14,516 and $17,806
and aweighted average remaining contractua life of 1.46 years.

The weighted average fair value per unit at the date the options were exercised was $24,780 for 2022 and $20,924
for 2021. M unit options totaling 38,379 vested during 2022. On March 31, 2022 and September 28, 2022, these
vested awards exercised under the cashless exercise feature provided in the M Unit Plan, resulting in the issuance
of approximately 16,752 M units. As of December 31, 2022, 90,526 M units are owned by current and former
employees and 431 M units are owned by AAM LLC.

M unit options totaling 41,017 vested during 2021. On March 31, 2021 and September 28, 2021, these vested
awards exercised under the cashless exercise feature provided in the M Unit Plan, resulting in the issuance of
approximately 15,597 M units.

The fair value of M unit option awards is amortized to compensation expense on a graded vesting attribution
method over the related vesting period of each separate tranche. The total number of M unit option awards
expected to vest is adjusted for estimated forfeitures. Compensation expense recognized under the M Unit Plan
during 2022 and 2021 was $7.0 million and $11.6 million, respectively, and is included in compensation and
benefits in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income. As of December 31,
2022, the total estimated compensation cost related to nonvested M unit option awards, net of estimated
forfeitures, expected to be recognized in future periods through December 31, 2025 is $4.6 million.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2022 and 2021

(b) Savingsand Investment Plans

AAM LP isthe sponsor of adefined contribution employee savings and retirement plan covering substantially all
employees of the Company and subsidiaries. The plan qualifies under Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue
Code and allows eligible employees to contribute up to 100% of their annual compensation, as defined, and is
subject to a maximum dollar amount determined from time to time by the Internal Revenue Code. Employees are
generally eligible to participate on the first day of the month following their start date. After the completion of one
year of credited service, the Company matches an amount of annual compensation, subject to Internal Revenue
Code limits, contributed by the employees. In addition, certain subsidiaries can contribute an additional amount to
the plan of eligible compensation to the retirement plan. The amount expensed by the Company related to this
plan during 2022 and 2021 was $62.2 million and $59.1 million, respectively, and is included in compensation
and benefits in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.

(c) Executive Deferred Compensation Plan

AAM LP has anonqualified deferred compensation plan pursuant to which a portion of the compensation accrued
by the Company and subsidiaries and otherwise payable to certain eligible employees may be deferred at the
election of the employees. The plan is maintained primarily for the purpose of providing deferred compensation
for a select group of management or highly compensated employees, within the meaning of Sections 201(2), 301
(a)(3), and 401(a)(1) of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended. Amounts deferred
under the plan are invested in marketable securities and M units or other investment partnerships as directed by
the employees and are held in a grantor trust. The assets held in grantor trust are not available to fund ongoing
activities of the Company and only would be available to the Company’s creditors in the event of insolvency.
Compensation expense or benefit and unrealized gains or losses are recognized to the extent the underlying
investments appreciate or depreciate in value. Total investments and restricted cash and cash equivalents held in
trust and the related liability at December 31, 2022 and 2021 was $1.2 billion and $1.2 hillion, respectively, and
are included in interest in non-consolidated deferred compensation trust and deferred compensation on the
accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition. During 2022, unrealized losses amounted to $160.0
million, and is included within compensation and benefits and other (loss) income, net in the accompanying
consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income. During 2021, unrealized gains amounted to $112.1
million, and is included within compensation and benefits and other (loss) income, net in the accompanying
consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income

(8) IncomeTax
The provisions for income tax expense (benefits) are as follows:

Y ear ended December 31

2022 2021
Current:

Federa $ 50,000 81,038
State 3,037,815 3,988,116
Foreign 100,156,227 115,094,758
Tota current 103,244,042 119,163,912

Deferred:
Foreign (3,934,026) (11,685,074)
Total deferred (3,934,026) (11,685,074)
Total provision $ 99,310,016 107,478,838
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The differences between the reported amount of income tax expense and the amount that would result from
applying the federal corporate statutory tax rates to pretax income arise primarily from the Company’s status as a
partnership for U.S. tax purposes as well as the effects of state and international taxes and nondeductible expense.

At December 31, 2022 and 2021, income taxes payable amounted to $16.9 million and $32.8 million,
respectively, and are included in accounts payable and accrued expenses in the accompanying consolidated
statements of financial condition. Additionally, at December 31, 2022 and 2021, deferred tax assets amounted to
$52.5 million and $54.8 million, respectively. Deferred tax liabilities at December 31, 2022 and 2021, amounted
to $146 thousand and $285 thousand, respectively. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are included in
other noncurrent assets and other noncurrent liabilities, respectively, in the accompanying consolidated statements

of financial condition.

(9) Lease Arrangements

The following table represents lease costs that are included in the accompanying consolidated statements of

income and comprehensive income:

Depreciation of ROU assets

Interest expense on lease liabilities
Variable lease cost

Short-term lease cost

Expenses of leases of low value assets

Y ear ended December 31

2022 2021
$ 30,598,714 31,256,186
4,919,604 5,443,382
699,666 312,947
883,439 578,204
2,341,128 1,319,717

For the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, total cash outflow for leases amounted to $43.3 million and

$40.9 million, respectively.

The following table represents a maturity analysis of the Company’s lease liabilities as of December 31, 2022:

Year ending December 31
2023
2024
2025
2026
2027
Thereafter

Total operating lease payments
Lessimputed interest

Present value of lease liabilities

$ 39,348,587
22,579,980
34,908,435
34,012,100
29,593,384

171,102,531

331,545,017
(58,598,917)

$ 272,946,100
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The following table represents a maturity analysis of the Company’s lease liabilities as of December 31, 2021

Year ending December 31.

2022 $ 35,796,969
2023 37,499,114
2024 23,189,168
2025 34,006,401
2026 33,302,410
Thereafter 69,700,751
Total operating lease payments 233,494,813
Lessimputed interest (19,310,763)
Present value of lease liabilities $ 214,184,050

(10) Financia Risk Management

The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:
Credit risk
Liquidity risk
Market Risk

Risk management is integral to the whole business of the Company. Management continually monitors the
Company’s risk management process to ensure that an appropriate balance between risk and control is achieved.
Risk management policies and systems are reviewed to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s
activities. Management reports its significant activity to the Risk and Controls Committee of Allianz Asset
Management GmbH, a subsidiary of Allianz SE.

(@ Credit Risk

Credit risk isthe risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to afinancial instrument fails
to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Company’s receivables from customers, bank
deposits, and investment securities.

Investment advisory and other receivables. The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the
individual characteristics of each customer. The demographics of the Company’s client base, including the default
risk of the industry and country in which client operates, has less of an influence on credit risk. However,
geographically there is no concentration of credit risk, and no single customer who is individually material to the
Company’s operations.

The creditworthiness of customersis assessed as part of new client acceptance procedures. The Company does not
require collateral in respect of trade or other receivables, but monitors the assets under management for each
customer in relation to their outstanding receivable balance. The Company has an excellent history of collection
on outstanding receivables and establishes an alowance for impairment only when an individual customer has
been identified as at risk for collection.
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Interest Bearing Deposits with Banks. The interest bearing deposits with banks are due from major institutions.
The Company reviews the creditworthiness of such banks and does not deal with such institutions if it is not
satisfied with the institution’s financial strength.

Investments: The Company’s investments are within investment vehicles, which it manages subject to detailed
investment guidelines. Compliance procedures are in place to ensure that the individual vehicles operate within
their applicable credit and liquidity risk limitations.

(b) Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The
Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient
liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring
unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation. The mgjority of non-derivative financial
liabilities have a contractual maturity of less than six months at December 31, 2022.

The Company seeks to actively monitor its cash flow requirements. Typically, the Company ensures that it has
sufficient cash on demand to meet expected operational expenses, including the servicing of financia obligations;
this excludes the potential impact of extreme circumstances that cannot reasonably be predicted, such as natural
disasters. In addition, the Company has accessto AAM LP's line of credit with Allianz SE as discussed in note 6.

(c) Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates will affect
the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financia instruments. The objective of market risk
management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the
return.

Currency risk: The Company is exposed to currency risk on revenues, purchases, and borrowings that are
denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the Company. The majority of the Company’s
transactions are in U.S. dollars, but transactions in foreign currencies also occur on a more limited basis by the
Company’s international subsidiaries.

The Company considers its exposure to currency risk to be limited, and currently does not actively employ any
hedging or other techniques to limit such risk.

Interest rate risk: The Company is subject to interest rate risk only to the extent of its borrowing arrangements
with affiliates, al of which are short term in nature. As management considers this risk to be minimal, no active
hedging or other strategies are employed to limit such risk.

Other market price risk: Market price risk arises from investment securities held within the investment funds the
Company holds and manages, each of which are subject to specific investment guidelines. Material investments in
such funds are managed on an individual basis and all buy and sell decisions are made in accordance with client
guidelines or the funds governing documents.

In monitoring the Company’s exposure to market risks, management evaluates the Company’s sensitivity to
changes in currency rates, interest rates, and other market risk factors. As of December 31, 2022, there were no

changes in such factors that were deemed reasonably possible that would have resulted in any material differences
to members capital as of December 31, 2022 or the reported comprehensive income for the year then ended.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2022 and 2021

(d) Capital Management

The Company’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to preserve investor, creditor, and market
confidence and to sustain future development of the business. There were no changes in the Company’s approach
to capital management during the year. Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries, with the exception of PI
LLC (see note 1) and certain foreign subsidiaries, are subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

(11) Provisions

The Company is subject to various pending and threatened legal actions as well as regulatory inquiries, which
arise in the normal course of business. In the opinion of management, the disposition of these matters currently
pending and threatened will not have a material adverse effect on PIMCO and its subsidiaries financia position,
results of operations, or cash flows. Management believes that they have made appropriate estimates for
provisions in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition and in the accompanying
consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income. The Company expenses related legal fees as
incurred.

(12) Interest in Unconsolidated Structured Entities

The Company manages a number of structured products and other funds for the purpose of investing monies on
behalf of the Company’s clients in a range of investment strategies. In most cases investment vehicles managed
by the Company have substantive removal or liquidation rights. Investment vehicles for which substantive
removal or liquidation rights do not exist have been identified as structured entities. The vehicles are separate
legal entities, and are financed by investments made by the Company’s clients. The Company is paid for the
investment management services it provides to the vehicle directly from the vehicle. The Company earned $4.4
million and $3.3 million in investment advisory fees from structured entities during 2022 and 2021, respectively,
which isincluded in investment advisory fees - pooled funds and investment advisory fees - private accounts in
the accompanying statements of income and comprehensive income.

The following table summarizes both the size of the unconsolidated investment vehicles where substantive
removal or liquidation rights do not exist and the Company’s interestsin those vehicles:

December 31
2022 2021
Net assets of unconsolidated structured
entities $ 2,629,358,116 $ 2,408,685,532
Investment advisory fees
receivable - pooled funds and private accounts 1,057,636 567,143

The Company’s maximum exposure to loss from unconsolidated structured entities is limited to the investment
advisory fees receivable.
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(13) Subsequent Events

The Company has evaluated events occurring after the date of the consolidated statements of financial condition
through April 20, 2023, the date the consolidated financial statements were available to be issued, to determine
whether any subsequent events necessitated adjustment to or disclosure in the consolidated financial statements,
noting the Company has identified the following events to disclose:

On January 1, 2023, AAM LP and AAM LLC merged with AAM LLC being the surviving entity, new managing
member of the Company, and new owner of al 850,000 Class A units of the Company.

On March 1, 2023, AREOA was legally renamed to PIMCO Prime Real Estate LLC.
On March 8, 2023, Gurtin and PIMCO merged, with PIMCO being the surviving entity.
PIMCO M unit options totaling 31,548 vested subsequent to the date of the specia-purpose consolidated

statement of financial condition. On March 31, 2023, these vested awards were exercised under the cashless
exercise feature provided in the M Unit Plan, resulting in the issuance of approximately 7,862 M units.
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30

1,013,661,485 148,197,309
19,326,102 2,825,476
667,548,950 97,595,656
294,910,245 43,115,878
68,702,831 10,044,354
15,476,137 2,262,611
17,875,238 2,613,360
20,851,016 3,048,419
113,247,731 16,556,818
2,231,599,735 326,259,881
90,760,961 13,269,252
222,667,521 32,553,992
1,253,588,749 183,274,675
30,865,176 4,512,489
30,756,522 4,496,604
26,570,990 3,884,679
64,587,773 9,442,732
1,719,797,692 251,434,423
3,951,397,427 577,694,304
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420,903,866 61,536,145
565,044,623 82,609,524

60,382,239 8,827,883

18,609,056 2,720,644

75,542,357 11,044,293

17,875,238 2,613,360

3,053,533 446,427

1,161,410,912 169,798,275

1,253,588,749 183,274,675

249,841,855 36,526,879

121,224,559 17,723,031

3,662,023 535,388

1,628,317,186 238,059,973

2,789,728,098 407,858,248

850,000 (127,315,540) (18,613,532)
150,000 1,278,193,858 186,871,942
98,819 78,788,846 11,518,929
25,675 10,689, 383 1,562,788
(78,687,218) (11,504,071)

1,161,669,329 169,836,056

3,951,397,427 577,694,304
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2023 30

1,795,001,444 262,429,211
503,285,567 73,580,350
537,256,999 78,546,973
130,015,913 19,008,326

25,359,475 3,707,555

2,990,919,398 437,272,416

1,191,137,960 174,144,370
182,234,609 26,642,700
298,763,424 43,679,213
103,315,358 15,104,705

98,229,025 14,361,083
58,380,832 8,535,278
16,272,450 2,379,032
22,988,744 3,360,954

1,971,322,402 288,207,335

1,019,596,996 149,065,081
105,578,918 15,435,638

(5,183,285) (757,796)
(1,900, 684) (277,880)
1,118,091,945 163,465,042
42,922,025 6,275,200
1,075,169,920 157,189,842
9,900,213 1,447,411
1,085,070,133 158,637,253
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2023 30

2022 12

31
850,000 (103,727,757) (15,164,998) 150,000 1,289,007,163 188,452,847 90,957 74,137,242 10,838,865
741,351,472 108,385,585 238,583,350 34,880,886 95,235,098 13,923,371
(776,776,518) (113,564,727) (249,396,655)  (36,461,791) (95,723,759) (13,994,814)

1,673,156 244,615

PIMCO
10,164,107 1,485,992 5,140,265 751,507

2023

30

850,000 (127,315,540) (18,613,532) 150,000 1,278,193,858 186,871,942 98,819 78,788,846 11,518,929
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2023 30
2022 12 31
59,004 24,899,178 3,640,260  (88,587,431)  (12,951,482)  1,195,728,395 174,815,491
1,075,169,920 157,189,842
(1,121,896,932)  (164,021,331)
1,673,156 244,615
PINMCO
1,094,577 160,027 1,094,577 160,027
(15,304,372)  (2,237,499)
9,900,213 1,447,411 9,900,213 1,447,411
2023 30
25,675 10,689,383 1,562,788  (78,687,218)  (11,504,071)  1,161,669,329 169,836,056
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2023 30

1,075,169,920

157,189,842

1,101,860 161,002
31,273,527 4,572,190
5,183,285 757,796
1,900,684 277,880
(646,394) (94,503)
10,752,956 1,572,082
(5,821,438) (851,094)
(50, 880,780) (7,438,770)
(5,183,285) (757,796)
97,514,201 14,256,576
(50, 433,887) (7,373,434)
360,761,679 52,743,357
(11,376,924) (1,663,306)

1,459,315,404

213,351,912

(8,244,538) (1,205,351)
(8,727,998) (1,276,033)
(16,972,536) (2,481,385)
408,000,000 59,649,600

(408,000,000)

(1,121,896,932)
1,673,156

(10,644,776)

(59,649,600)
(164,021,331)
244,615
(1,556, 266)

(1,130, 868,552)

(165,332, 982)

9,900,213

1,447,411

321,374,529

692,286,956

46,984,956

101,212,353

1,013,661,485

148,197,309
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PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO
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1940 15
PIMCO PIMCO
PIMCO 2023
2018 18 PIMCO PL
PIMCO PL
2018
PIMCO
2020 PIMCO
PIMCO 2020 31 PIMCO
PIMCO
PIMCO 2021 22
CDO
CDO PIMCO
PIMCO
PIMCO
2022 13 PIMCO PL PIMCO PIMCO
PIMCO
2022 23 2022 29 PIMCO PIMCO

FGMC
FGMC
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Pacific Investment Management Company LLC
2023 1,134,745,782.24 1,658 9,983
PIMCO
PIMCO 1971 1940

PIMCO

PIMCO

Maples

Trustee Services Bermuda Limited

2023 25 3,655

2016

Brown Brothers Harriman and Company

2023 10 6,000 1,549 7,200

Brown Brothers Harriman  Luxembourg S.C.A

2023 1,209 17 6,756

1989
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2023 1,350
2023 100
2023 29 54,323,146,301

2023 30 6,700
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Pacific Investment Management Company LLC

Trustee Services Bermuda Limited

BMA
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Brown Brothers Harriman Luxembourg S.C.A

AML KYC
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2019
50,000
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2012
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2012
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BMA

2006

IF
31

1,040.00
1,040.00
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1,250.00
1,870.00
1,325.00
1,860.00
1,170.00
1,170.00
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1,870.00
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Report of Independent Auditors

To the Trustee and Management of PIMCO Bermuda Trust

Opinions

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of PIMCO Bermuda Foreign Low Duration Fund, PIMCO
Bermuda U.S. Low Duration Fund, PIMCO Emerging Markets Bond Fund (JTF), PIMCO Emerging Markets Bond
Fund (M), PIMCO Emerging Markets Bond Fund (Y en-Hedged), PIMCO Emerging Markets Bond Fund 1I, PIMCO
Rea Return Fund and PIMCO Short-Term Strategy (collectively referred to as the “Funds’), which comprise the
statements of assets and liabilities, including the schedules of investments, as of May 31, 2023 and the related statements
of operations, of changes in net assets, and of cash flows for PIMCO Real Return Fund, including the related notes, and
the financial highlights for the year then ended (collectively referred to as the "financia statements').

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in al material respects, the financial position of
each of the Funds as of May 31, 2023, and the results of each of their operations, changes in each of their net assets, and
the cash flows of PIMCO Real Return Fund, and each of the financia highlights for the year then ended, in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America (US
GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Funds and to meet our other
ethical responsihilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Satements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
materia misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events,

considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Funds ability to continue as a going concern for one
year after the date the financial statements are available to be issued.
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Auditors Responsibilities for the Audits of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with US GAAS will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the
judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with US GAAS, we;

Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audits.

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financia statements, whether due to fraud or error, and
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis,
evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audits in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Funds
internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial
doubt about the Funds ability to continue as a going concern for areasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audits, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we identified during
the audits.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Boston, MA
August 14, 2023
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm Translated from English

2022 2021 12 31

2022 2021 12 31

12
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2023 20
"This version of our report is a translation from the original report, which was prepared in

English. In all matters of interpretation of information, views or opinions, the original English

language version of our report takes precedence over this translation."
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Report of Independent Auditors

To the Management of Pacific Investment Management Company LLC

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Pacific Investment Management Company LLC
and its subsidiaries (the “ Company”), which comprise the consolidated statements of financial condition as of December
31, 2022 and 2021, and the related consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income, of changes in capital
and of cash flows for the years then ended, including the related notes (collectively referred to as the “consolidated
financia statements’).

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in al material respects, the financial
position of the Company as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the
years then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International

Accounting Standards Board.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America (US
GAAYS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors Responsihilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Company and to
meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We

believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board,
and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation

of consolidated financia statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern for at least, but not limited to, twelve months from the end of the reporting period,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless

management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic aternative but to do so.

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonabl e assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as awhole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an

audit conducted in accordance with US GAAS will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not
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detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the

judgment made by a reasonable user based on the consolidated financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with US GAAS, we:

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on
atest basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

e FEvauate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise

substantial doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a going concern for areasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope

and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we identified during

the audit.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Los Angeles, California
April 20, 2023
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Report of Independent Auditors

To the Trustee and Management of PIMCO Bermuda Trust

Opinions

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of PIMCO Bermuda Foreign Low Duration Fund, PIMCO
Bermuda U.S. Low Duration Fund, PIMCO Emerging Markets Bond Fund (JTF), PIMCO Emerging Markets Bond
Fund (M), PIMCO Emerging Markets Bond Fund (Y en-Hedged), PIMCO Emerging Markets Bond Fund Il, PIMCO
Euro Total Return Fund, PIMCO Real Return Fund and PIMCO Short-Term Strategy (collectively referred to as the
“Funds’), which comprise the statements of assets and liabilities, including the schedules of investments, as of May 31,
2022 and the related statements of operations, of changes in net assets, and for PIMCO Real Return Fund and PIMCO
Euro Total Return Fund each of their cash flows, including the related notes, and the financial highlights for the year
then ended (collectively referred to as the "financial statements’).

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all materia respects, the financial position of
each of the Funds as of May 31, 2022, and the results of each of their operations, changes in each of their net assets, and
for PIMCO Real Return Fund and PIMCO Euro Total Return Fund each of their cash flows, and each of the financial
highlights for the year then ended, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America

Basisfor Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America (US
GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Funds and to meet our other
ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Satements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events,

considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Funds ability to continue as a going concern for one
year after the date the financial statements are available to be issued.
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Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with US GAAS will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the
judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with US GAAS, we:

Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financia statements, whether due to fraud or error, and
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis,
evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Funds
internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial
doubt about the Funds ability to continue as a going concern for areasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we identified during
the audit.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Boston, MA
August 17, 2022
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